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| Important Information

(THE INFORMATION IN THIS SECTION IS REQUIRED UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT 1978)
INVESTMENT DECISIONS ARE VERY IMPORTANT THEY OFTEN HAVE LONG-TERM
CONSEQUENCES READ ALL DOCUMENTS CAREFULLY ASK QUESTIONS SEEK ADVICE

BEFORE COMMITTING YOURSELF

Choosimg an investment

When deciding whether to invest consider
carefully the answers to the following questions
that tan be found on the pages noted below

What sort of investment 15 this? 20
Whao 15 lnvolved 1n providing it for me? 21
How much do I pay? 21
What are the charges? 21
What returns wall I get? 22
What are my risks? 22
Can the vestment be altered? 25
How do [ cash tn my investment? 26

Whea do | cantact with encuiries about

my investment? 26
Is there anyone to whom I can complain

1f 1 have problems with the investment? 26
What other information ¢an 1 obtain about

this investment? 27

In addition to the information set out in thus
section of this Offer Document 1mportant
information can be found 1n the current registered
prospectus for the Investment You are entitled to
a copy of the prospectus on request '

Choosing an Investment Advisor

You have the right to request from an investment

advisor a written disclosure statement stating

tus or her experience and qualifications to give

advice That document will tell you

m whether the advisor gives advice only about
particular types of investments and

m whether the advice 15 limited to the
wnvestments offered by one or more particular
financial orgamsations and

m  whether the advisor will receive a commission
or other benefit from advising you

You are strongly encouraged to request that
statement An investment advisor commits an
offence if he or she does not provide you with a
written disclosure statement within five working
days of your request You must make the request
at the time the advice Is given or within one
month of recelving the advice

In additlon

m if an Investment advisor has any conviction
for dishonesty or has been adjudged
bankrupt he or she must tell you this
n writing and
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u 1if an investment advisor receives any money
or assets on your behalf he or she must tell
you in writing the methods employed for this
purpose

Tell the advisor what the purpose of your
wvestment is This 15 important because different
investments are suitable for different purposes

Important notke

This Offer Document 15 a combined prospectus
and nvestment statement for the purposes of

the Securtties Act 1978 ( Securities Act ) and
the Securities Regulations 1983 ( Securities
Regulations ) The purpose of the Answers

to Important Questions section of this Offer
Document is to provide certain key information
that is Iikely to assist a prudent but non expert
person to decide whether or not to acquire
Perpetual Preference Shares mn ASB Capital under
this Offer However investors should note that
other Important information about the Perpetual
Preference Shares and the Offer 15 available in the
remainder of this Offer Document

Registration

This Offer Document Is prepared as at and dated
30 Qctober 2002 A copy of this Offer Document
signed by the directors of ASB Caputal {as tssuer)
and by ASB Bank and 1ts directors (as promoters})
for the purposes of the Securlties Act (and having
endorsed on or attached to this Qffer Document
the contracts documents information

certificates and other matters required to be so
endorsed or attached by section 41 of the
Securitles Act Including the material contracts
described on page 52 the auditor s report set out
on pages 93 and 94 the consent of the auditor
to the report appearing in the Offer Document
and an acknowledgement from the NZSE) has
been delivered to the Regstrar of Companies at
Auckland for registration under section 41 of

the Securities Act

Definitions

Capitalised terms used in thus Qffer Document
have defined meamngs which appear in the
Glossary sectlan or within the relevant section
of this Offer Document in which the term is
used All references to $ are to New Zealand
dollars unless specified otherwise All references
to time in this Offer Document are to time in
New Zealand

This 1s the wording requirec by Schedule 3D of the Sequniuies Regulations 1983
which contemplates a separate prospectus and investment statement For this
Offer the two toguments have been combined and the prospectus available
on request Is this dotument



[ Offer Timetable

Opening Date
Closing Time
Dividend Rate Set Date

Expected date of imitial quotation and
trading on NZSE

First Dividend Payment Date
Subsequent Dividend Payment Dates

First Dividend Reset Date

11 November 2002
500 pm on 9 December 2002

10 December 2002

10 December 2002
15 February 2003
15 february May August November

15 November 2003

1 The above dates are wdicative only Subject to applicable law ASB Capuital has the right 1o extend or

otherwise vary the Opening Date and the Closing Time This may have a consequent effect on other dates

listed above

2 The Dividend Rate Set Date may vary as a consequence of any change in the Closing Time If the Offer
closes earlier or later than 5 00 pm on 9 December 2002 the Dhvidend Rate Set Date will be the Business
Day immedrately following the earlier or later closing tune

3 The first dividend 1s payable or 15 February 2003 and 15 payable to the original subscriber (irrespective

of any transfer of the Perpetual Preference Shares by that original subscriber prior to the first dividend

payment date)

Perpetual Preference Shares Key Features

Issuer

Rating

Maximum Principal Amount
Initial Mirmmum Dividend Rate
Dividend Reset Date

Dividend Rate

Dividend Payment Dates

Minimum Application
Purpose of Offer
Opening Date

Closing Time

ASB Capital Limited

The Perpetual Preference Shares are rated
A- by Standard & Poors (Australia) Pty Limited

$150 mullion plus up to $50 million oversubscriptions
7 4 percent per annum payable quarterly
Annually on 15 November

A fixed margin of 13 percent over the Benchmark
Rate (see definition in the Glossary on page 95)

15 February 15 May 15 August and 15 November
commencing 15 February 2003

$5 000 and thereafter in $1 000 increments
Raise capital for ASB Group of comparies
11 November 2002

5 00pm on 9 December 2002

o
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‘ Letter from Chairman of ASB BANK

Dear Investor

I have pleasure 1n introducing this opporturty to subscribe for up to $200 millien Perpetual Preference
Shares 1n ASB Capitai ASB Capital 15 a special purpose company formed to issue these Perpetual Preference
Shares The issue of ASB Camtal Perpetual Preference Shares provides New Zealand resident investors

with an opportunity to subscribe for an investment associated with the ongoing success of the ASB Group
of companies

Whulst the 1ssue of Perpetual Preference Shares 1s by ASB Capital and these shares are not guaranteed by
ASB Bank ASB Bank s parent company ASB Group {Holdings) has granted certain security and covenants in
relation to the Perpetual Preference Shares The nature of the security and covenants is described 1n detail 1n
this Offer Document

Several high profite brands operate within the ASB Group of companies including ASB Bank BankDirect and
ASB Securities ASB Bank 1s a recogrused Jeader in customer service the practical application of leading edge
technology and support of the New Zealand community

For the year ended 30 June 2002 ASB Bank s after tax profit was a record $225 million up 23% on the
previous year This performance was achieved through strong across the board business growth and a sharp
focus on cost management and margins This combination enabled ASB Bank to Iift productivity by 6% with
the percentage of total operating expenses to income declming 1o 51 3%

This Offer Document cantains a review of the ASB Group of compames past and present activities and full
details of the Offer of Perpetual Preference Shares I strongly commend the Perpetual Preference Shares to

New Zealand investors

Yours farthfully

S ——

Gary Judd Q C
Chairman
ASB Bank Lirnited
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‘ Terms of the Offer

J Introduction Thus Offer Document
which 15 dated 30 October 2002 15 a
combined prospectus and investment
statement for an offer by ASB Capital of
$150 mllion of Perpetual Preference
Shares ASB Caputal reserves the nght to
accept oversubscriptians of up to $50
million of Perpetual Preference Shares

ASB Capital 15 a wholly owned subsidiary
of CBA Funding (NZ) Limited CBA
Funding {(NZ) Limuted does not guarantee
arnounts payable 1n respect of the Perpetual
Preference Shares The relationship between
ASB Capital and ASB Bank 1s described an
page B under the heading Relationship
with ASB Bank The Perpetual Preference
Shares are being offered to New Zealand
resident insiitutional and retail investors at
an issue price of NZ$1 00 per Perpetual
Preference Share

i This Offer Document contains important
nformation and should be read in its
entirety Investors should note that other

mportant information about the Perpetual

Preference Shares and the Qffer 1s available
in the Trust Deed the Loan Agreement
and the Constatution Copies of these
dacuments can be obtained from ASB
Caputal s registered office at Level 28

ASB Bank Centre 135 Albert Street
Auckland

Credit rating The Perpetual Preference
Shares have been assigned a separate 1ssue
rating of A- by Standard & Poors
{Austrahia) Pty Limited ASB Bank holds a
New Zealand dollar long term rating of
AA- {stable cutlock) from Standard & Poors
(Australia) Pty Limated For the relationship
between ASB Capital and ASB Bank see
the provisions under the heading
Relationship with ASB Bank on page 8§

Use of Proceeds ASB Capital has been
incorporated for the sole purpose of 1ssuing
the Perpetual Preference Shares ASB
Capital will lend the proceeds of this 1ssue
of Perpetual Preference Shares to ASB
Group (Holdings) on the terms set out in
the Loan Apreement The terms of the
Loan Agreement are described on page 18
under the heading Terms of ASB Capital
Loan to ASB Group (Holdings) ASB
Group (Holdings) wiil then mvest the

praceeds of this loan i ASB Bank

Perpetual Preference Shares

The terms of the ASB Bank Perpetual
Preference Shares are described on page 19
under the heading Terms of ASB Bank
Perpetual Preference Shares

Opening Date and Closing Time

The Openming Date for the Offer of the
Perpetual Preference Shares 1s 11 November
2002 The Closing Tune for applications 1s
expected to be 5 00pm on 9 December 2002
or the date on which subscriptions are
recewved and accepted for $150 mullion of
Perpetual Preference Shares plus the level
of oversubscriptions (af any) that ASB
Capital decides to accept up to a
maximum of $50 mullion ASB Capital
reserves the right to vary the Opemng
Date or the Closing Time

Issue Price The 1ssue price of NZ$1 00
per Perpetual Preference Share must be
paid n cash in full on application

Imtial Dividend Rate From the date
of allotment of the Perpetual Preference
Shares unti] the first Dividend Reset Date
dividends will be payable at a rate set on
the Dividend Rate Set Date as the greater
of
7 4 percent per annum payable
quarterly or
m the Benchmark Rate as at the
Dividend Rate Set Date plus a
margin of 1 3 percent adjusted to
a quarterly equivalent rate

Subsequent Dividend Rates Following
the first Dividend Reset Date dividends
will be payable at the Benchmark Rate
set on each Dividend Reset Date plus a
margin of 1 3 percent adjusted to a
quarterly equivalent rate

Payment of Dividend Dividends accrue
on a daily basis from the date of allotment
The first dividend 1s payable on 15 February
2003 and 15 payable to the ariginal
subscriber (irrespective of any transfer of
the Perpetual Preference Shares by that
original subscriber prior to the first
dwidend payment date) Dividends are
payable 1 quarterly instalments 1n arrears
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on 15 February 15 May 15 August and 15
November m each year or if that day 1s
not a Business Day the next Business Day
The payment of dividends 1s subject to
ASB Capital s right to cancel dividends
(See the provisions under the heading
Cancellation of dividends on page 17 )

Imputation The dividends may consist
of a combination of cash payments and

imputation credits Accordingly 1f
dividends are fully imputed the cash
payment receved will be 679 of the amounts
| referred to above (assummg a corporate tax
rate of 3396) If no imputation credits are
attached to a dividend the cash payment
made will be 100% of the amounts referred
to above

Applications  Applications must be for

a mimmum of 5 000 Perpetual Preference
Shares and thereafter in multiples of 1 000
Perpetual Preference Shares ASE Capital

may refuse all or any part of any
application without giving a reason

How to Apply Instructions on how to
make an application are contained in the

section of this Offer Document headed
Appiication Instructions  If you wish
to apply for Perpetual Preference Shares
you should complete the Application
Form attached to this Offer Document

in accordance with the instructions

Completed Application Forms {other than

applications under firm allocations) should
ASB Capital Limited

C/- ASB Securities Limmited

P O Box 35

Auckland

be sent ta

Applhicants accepting a firm allocation
from a NZSE member firm need to lodge
the Apphication Form with the offices of
the member firm of the NZSE which has
provided that firm allocation in time for 1t
to be forwarded to the Registrar before the

Closing Time Applications for Perpetual
Preference Shares must be made on the

Application Form You need to

s complete the Application Form 1n

accordance with the instructions set out
in the section of this Offer Document
and

headed Application Instructions

Investment Statement and Prospectus ‘

= return the completed Application
Form together with payment of the
full amount of the application as soon
as possible but 1n any event so as to
enable 1t to be received by the Registrar
no later than the Closing Time

ASB Capital may at :ts discretion treat
any Apphlication Form as vahd even 1f it
does not comply with the requirements
above or 1s otherwise irregular An
Application Form may be treated by

ASE Capital as a vahd application whether
or not 1t 15 recerved before the Closing
Time By sigmng the Application Form

an applicant irrevocably offers to subscribe
for the Perpetual Preference Shares on the
terms set out in the Offer Document and
the Application Form notwithstanding any
changes to the Closing Tiume or other dates
which ASB Caprial 1s entitled to change

Offer in New Zealand only The
Perpetual Preference Shares are being
offered only to New Zealand residents

and no offer 1s being made outside

New Zealand No action has been or will
be taken by ASB Capital which would
permit an offer of the Perpetual Preference
Shares or possesslon or distnbution of
any offering material 1n any other country
or jurisdiction where action for that
purpose 15 required No person may
purchase offer sell distribute or deliver
any Perpetual Preference Shares or have in
1ts possession or distnbute to any person
any offering matenial or any documents in
connection with the Perpetual Preference
Shares to any person outside New Zealand

Unless otherwise agreed with ASB Capital
any person o entity applying for Perpetual
Preference Shares 15 deemed to represent
that they are not 1n a jurisdiction which
prohsbits the making of an offer of this
kind and are not acting for a person 1n
such a jurisdiction

Tax Investors should ebtamn thewr own
advice regarding this Offer and in respect
of subscribing for and holding Perpetual
Preference Shares The information
(including the tax information} contained
m this Offer Document 1s general in nature
and may not apply to mnvestors ndrvidual

circumstances



Lising on NZSE Application has been
made to the NZSE for permission to hist
the Perpetual Preference Shares

All requirements of the NZSE relating to
the listing that can be complhed with on or
before the date of this Cffer Document
have been duly complied with However
the NZSE accepts no responsibility for
any statement in this Offer Document

Brokerage The NZSE has authorised
member firms to act 1n this Offer
Applicants are not required to pay
brokerage for Perpetual Preference Shares
under the Offer Details of the brokerage
to be paid to member firms of the NZSE
are set out in the Answers to Important
Questions sectuion of this Offer Document

under What are the Charges?

Payment of Issue Price  The Issue Price
must be paid in full on application
Cheques must be made payable to
ASB Capntal Offer
Not Transferable and must be for

must be crossed

immediate value If a cheque 15
dishonoured ASB Capital may cancel
any Perpetual Preference Shares allotted
or pursue any other remedies available to
it at law

Refunds If ASB Capital accepts an
application 1n part the balance of the
application money will be refunded
{without interest) withimn five Busimness
Days of the date of allotment of the
Perpetual Preference Shares to the appheant
under that application If an Application
Form 1s not accepted by ASB Caputal any
application morney received with that
application will be returned to the applicant
within five Business Days of the Closing
Time Interest will not be paid on any
refund or applhication money which 1s

nat accepted

Aliotment of Perpetual Preference
Shares The mimmum amount to be
raised by the Offer 15 $50 million Unless
and unnl vahd apphcations for that
amount have been received and accepted
Perpetual Preference Shares will not be
allotted Pending allotment all subscription
morues recesved from mvestors will be
held on trust for those investors

Once valid applications for $50 million
have been recerved Perpetual Preference
Shares will be allotted in respect of

the applications already received and
thereafter will be allotted on a daily

basts following receipt and acceptance of
applications by ASB Capstal The Registrar
will advise successful applicants of the
allotment of Perpetual Preference Shares to
them as soon as possible after allotment

Firm Allocations All of the Perpetuat
Preference Shares may be reserved for
subscription by chents of the Lead
Managers Orgamsing Broker and other
member firms of the NZSE

The amount of Perpetual Preference
Shares so reserved will be determined

by the Lead Managers and notified to
mvestors by way of general announcement
to the NZSE on or before the Opening
Date It 1s anticipated that all of the
Perpetual Preference Shares wall be so
reserved Any amount not so reserved

will form part of a public pool
Arranger ASB Bank Limnited

Lead Managers ASB Bank Limuted and
UBS Warburg New Zealand Limited

Organising Broker ASB Securities
Larmited

Security Trustee The New Zealand
Guardian Trust Company Limited

Estimated Expenses of the Offer

Issue expenses associated with the Offer
comprising accounting and auditing fees
legal fees listing fees registry expenses
ratings agency fees advertising printing
and distribution of this Offer Document
and brokerage fees are estimated to be

$3 1 millien and will be paid by ASB Bank
and ASB Group (Holdings)

Underwriting This Offer is not
underwritten

Important Document If you are i any
doubt as to how to deal with this Offer
Document please immediately contact a
member firm of the NZSE an accountant
or a financial advisor
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' Relationship with ASB Bank

The ultimate parent company of each of
CBA Funding (NZ) Limited ASB Capital
ASB Group {Holdings) and ASB Bank 1s
the Commonwealth Bank of Australia

ASB Capital 1s a company formed for the
sole purpose of 1s5uing these Perpetual
Preference Shares It has and will have

no other business and its only asset will
be a loan ta ASB Group (Holdings) of

the proceeds of the issue of the Perpetual
Preference Shares ASB Group (Holdings)
will 1nvest that loan mn ASB Bank Perpetual
Preference Shares Holders of the Perpetual
Preference Shares wiil have recourse in
certain circurnstances to these ASB Bank
Perpetual Preference Shares for amounts
payable in respect of the Perpetual
Preference Shares (See the provisions
under the heading Structure of Transaction
on page 15)

No member of the Commonwealth Bank
or ASB Group of companies, imcluding
Commonwealth Bank CBA Funding (NZ)
Limited, ASB Group (Heldings) or

ASB Bank guarantees amounts payable in
respect of the Perpetual Preference Shares

f
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In the normal course of events ASB Capital
will only be able to make payments under
the Perpetual Preference Shares to the
extent that ASB Bank makes payments to
ASB Group (Holdings) under the ASB Bank
Perpetual Preference Shares and ASB Group
(Holdings) makes payments to ASB Capital
under the Loan Agreement

For that reason the business and financial
position of ASB Bank 1s relevant to investors
in the Perpetual Preference Shares Set out
on pages 9 to 12 15 an overview of ASB Bank
and on pages 54 to 91 the most recent
audited financial statements of ASB Bank
for the year ended 30 June 2002

Other information about ASB Bank is

available as follows

= a copy of the current disclosure statement
may be obtained from any branch of
ASB Bank

» copies of financial statements of
ASB Bank for previous financial years
and other information about ASB Bank
can be inspected at the Companies
Office Business and Registries Branch
Mirustry of Economic Development on
its website www companies govt nz
Where documents are not available on
the website a request for the documents

can be made by contacting the
Companies Office on 0508 266 726

A
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The business overview set out 1n this
section 15 a summary of ASB Bank and the
ASB Group of compames It 1s not a
summary of the business of ASB Capital
It should be read in conjunction with the
further information contained in this
Offer Document 1ncluding the summary
financial wnformation set out 1n the section
entitled ASB Bank Financial Statements”
on page 54 ASB Bank 1s a full service
nationally operating bank and financiak
services company It provides a seamless
total service that covers a comprehensive
range of financial options that can be
tatlored to the needs of its 80O 000
nternational corporate busmess rural
and personal customers

Personal Banking

ASB Bank 15 a recognused leader 1n
customer service the practical apphcation
of leading edge technology and community
support The Bank has been at the forefront
of introducing advanced interactive
electronic banking and self service
products and services

One of ASB Bank s specialised areas 1s

home loan finance The Bank is the main
financial services provider to 16 6% of
New Zealanders (as reported in AC Neilsen
CFM (Consumer Finance Momtor} Q2
2002 released on 2 August 2002)

Direct Banking

BankDirect 15 ASB Banks virtual bank
brand with a strong focus on the direct
home lending market Customer interaction
with BankDirect 1s undertaken through
the Internet self service or the telephone

Business and Rural Banking

The Bank supplies banking and financial
services to corporates small businesses
and farmers ASB Banks point of
difference 1s offering innovative flexible
solutions and dehvering 1ts services through
the use of advanced online technology

7 ﬁ G sgg_,s?gg

Treasury and International Banking
ASB Bank specialises in those treasury and

international banking services in which it
can make a sigmficant contribution
especially those where advanced
technologies offer customer benefits

ASB Secunities - Sharebroking Services
ASB Securities 15 a full service sharebroking
operation and a member of the NZSE Chents
can trade online through the Internet use

the discount telephone service or seek

professional advice from the advisory

drvision ASB Securities also has a dedicated
fixed interest department and an
mntermediary service for finantal planners
and other third party advisors ASB
Securities chents have access to New

Zealand and overseas markets new share E‘
issues research information fixed interest
and other investment products such as
margtn lending cash management and
foreign currency accounts

Investment Services ¥ |
Through ASB Investments Limited the

Barnk s customers can invest In a range

of international and domestic managed 9
funds and retirerment savings options

Insurance Services

Customers insurance needs are met
through a range of life borrawers
protection health and fire and general
msurance offerings, all of which are
available through the Bank s branches
and Insurance Advisory Service
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Trade Finance
ASB Bank provides importers and exporters with a range of specialist trade finance services

ASB BANK

ASBE BANK ASE SECURITIES
Personal Banking Online Share Trading
BankDirect Discount Broking
Business Banking Client Advisory Service
Rural Banking Margin Lending
Institutional Banking Fixed Interest
Investment Services Intermediary Services

Insurance Services

Trade Finance

Highhghts 2002 Financial Year

For the third successive year the Bank increased Its net surplus after tax by more than 20% setting a new
record profit of $225 million

The Bank improved 1ts productivity by 6% reducing the percentage of total operating expenses to total

income to 51 3% and achieving a greater than 1% return on assets for the first ume

The Bank opened a branch in Queenstown ASB Bank 1s now represented by a branch office in every major
centre in New Zealand

The Bank s rural lending portfolio exceeded $2 bilhon This mulestane was achieved five years ahead of progections

In the competitive area of wealth management funds under management exceeded $1 bilhon for the first ime

ASB Bank was rated New Zealand s best orgamsation and best practice globally for handling customer
complaimnts by TMI an international people strategy and development organisation with offices in
35 countries TMI announced these results in September 2001 and February 2002

ASB Bank introduced New Zealand s first mobile telephone based banking service Fastnet Mobile which
allows customers to view banking services on screen The linking of banking and mobile phones marks the
first step toward the mtroduction of an extensive range of screen based services

The Bank introduced a new transaction account named Streamhine Offering lower EFTPOS transaction fees
the product has particular appeal to high electronic transaction users

To ASB Bank custamer service 1s of critical importance The Bank has internal performance criteria against
which 11 measures customer service on an ongomng basis It also seeks to benchmark its performance externally
against other New Zealand and international banks

Investment Statement and Prospectus.



CONSOLIDATED PERFORMANCE IN BRIEF OF ASB BANK For the yer ended 30 Jun. 2002

For a better understanding of the financial performance and position of ASB Bank far the following periods the information below should be read in
conjunction with the related annual audited financial statements of ASB Bank

2002 20017 2000 1999 1998

STATEMENT OF FINANCGIAL PERFORMANCE ($ milhons}
Interest Income 1,500 7 14739 10781 954 0 11215
Interest Expense 992 3 10165 693 6 626 4 8018
Net Interest Earnings 508 4 457 4 3845 3276 3197
Other Income 2153 1872 177 4 1370 1211
Total Operating Income 7237 6446 5619 464 6 4408
Debt Pravisions Expense 180 135 1 4 128 08
Tota! Operating Income after Debt Provisions Expense 7057 6311 9505 4518 4299
Totat Operating Expenses 37110 3510 3220 2753 2672
Net Surplus before Taxation 3347 2801 228 5 1765 1627
Taxation 1100 967 78 4 596 548
Net Surplus after Taxation 2247 1834 1501 1169 1079
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION ($ muthons)
Total Assets 242496 200217 171795 147099 12896 8
Advances 19,0319 161735 14 406 6 12 460 3 10821 4
General Provision nsa 593 510 441 373
Specific Provisions 68 68 75 66 BO
Tota! Liabiliues 232168 19202¢ 163326 139665 122385
Deposits (includes Amounts Due to Other Banks) 22,680 4 18762 8 16 074 6 138220 120776
SHAREHOLDER'S FUNDS ($ millions)
Shareholder s Funds at end of year 10328 8197 846 9 743 4 6573
Cividends QOrdinary 100 1500 438 227 210

Special - - - 50 -

MNon Cumulative Preference - 31 31 31 31
PERFORMANCE
Return on Ordinary Shareholder s Funds 24 26% 22 30% 1873% 17 50% 18 55%
Return on Total Average Assets 102% 087% 092% 082% 088%
Net Interest Margin / Total Average Assets 230% 246% 241% 2371% 268% 11
Growth in Total Assets 2112% 16 54% 16 79% 14 D&% 17 35%
New Home Lending Approvals ($ millions) 4,748 2 31416 33011 28876 256368
PRUDENTIAL
Shareholder s Funds as a % of Total Assels 426% 4 09% 4 93% 505% 510%
Tier One Capital as a % of Risk Weighted Exposures 790% 725% 774% 768% 7 94%
Totat Capital a5 a % of Total Risk Weighted Exposures 10 44% 1007% 9 69% 873% 910%
OTHER INFORMATION
Full tme Equivalent Employees 3,050 2937 2747 2723 2594
Number of Branches 119 118 117 121 120
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Communsty Support

Communrty support is a major element of ASB Bank s henitage and the Bank mantains a strong community presence

Dunng the year ASB Bank became a sponsor of Team New Zealand and 1s their exclusive suppler of banking services

ASB Bank makes donations to and sponsors numerous New Zealand sporting attistic and charitable orgamsations

Nationwide

= Teamn New Zealand Operauon
Marlin - {Police boats and safe
boating campaign around
America s Cup Regatta)

# ASB BANK Classic (Womens
Internaticnat Tenmis Tournament)

x Filarshie Flower Show

» Post Graduate Medical
Committes (ASB Bank Visiting

Prof essor)

a Starship Chidrens Health

1
l.‘F 1 The New Zealand Bregst Coneer
.-1f.. Foundation

w Varnety Club

nvestment Statement and Prospectus

Auckland

m ASB BANK/ Auckiand Primary
Schools Principals Association
Travellng Fellowship

= ASB BANK College Sport

» ASR BANK Festival (Auckland
Secondary Schools Maon and
Pacific lslands Cuitural Festival)

= ASH BANK Lounge (North
| larbour Stadium)

w ASB Stadium

» ASB Bank Stand al Eden Park
(ASB Lounge}

n ASB BANK Tenmis Centre

u Auckland Netball

w Auckland Rugby Foathall Union
m Auckland Tennis

w Auckland Theatre Compary

m Lounties Manukau Rugly
Football Unon

» Hobsan Wharf Information
Centre

n MRX Yachts

m Neiball North Harbour
n Nelball Waitakers

w North Harbour Rugby

w Northy Harbour Ruyby Referees
Asscclation

Northiand

» Norhiand Rughy Football Union
w Sport Northland

Centra! North Island

s Hamilton City Nelball Centie
» N7 Ironman (Taupo}

= Sport Bay of Plenty

w larsnakl Rugby Unmion
Hawkes Bay

» Hawkes Bay MultSport Club
= Sport Hawkes Bay
Wellington

» Welhngton Netball

a Wellington fennis

Upper South island

» ASB BANK Nelson Glants
(Basketball Team)

Christchurch

m ASB BANK Slarry Nights

m Canterbury Tennis

Lower South Canterbury
» fenmis South Canlerbury
Otago

w Otago Rugby Union
Southland

= Netball Southland



\ Directors

ASB Capital Limited
Directors

The Board has three directors being

PS (Peter) Hall

BS MSc

Mr Hall has been a banker for more than
20 years He was Treasurer of ASB Bank
for six years before being appointed as
Head of Corporate Bankig Mr Hall 1s
now also Head of ASB Securities and
Commonwealth Bank Country Head for
Institutional Banking Pricr to jomning
ASB Bank Mr Hall was treasurer of a
bank i Hong Kong He 15 a qualified
electrical engmeer and has a B Scin
electrical engineering and an M Sc in
industrial management

J W {tohn) Duncan

CA

Mr Duncan has in excess of 30 years
expertence 1n banking accountancy
and semior management A Chartered
Accountant, Mr Duncan jomned ASB Bank
in 1987 ta head up the Bank s Visa card
operations and 1n 1989 was appointed
Assistant General Manager Personal
Banking He was appointed as Group
General Manager Finance 1n 1992 and
assumed his current position of Group
General Manager Financial and Risk
Management n 2001

J A (John) te Wechel

MA

Mr te Wechel 1s General Manager Group
Funding for Commonwealth Bank Mr te
Wechel joined Commonwealth Bank in
1974 and held a number of general banking
positions in Australia and overseas prior 1o
sorrung Group Funding Mr te Wechel was
appointed to his current role in 1992

He has a Master of Arts in banking
management from Macquane University

I
%

ASB Bank Limited
Dhyrectors

There are eight directors on the ASB Bank
board including three Commonwealth
Bank executives one executive director
and four independent directors

The directors are

G J (Gary) Judd

Q¢ LLB (Hons) F nst D Chawrman

A practising barrister Mr Judd has been
associated with ASB Bank as a trustee and
director since 1985 He became Chairman
1n 1988 when the Bank was owned by the
ASB Bank Community Trust and was
reconfirmed in this position when the
Commonwealth Bank Group obtained

a controlling interest

GH (Hugh) Burrett

Managing Director

Appointed as Managing Director in
Qctober 2001 Mr Burrett has more

than 30 years banking experience and has
held a variety of executive roles within
ASB Bank He has overseen the expansion
of ASE Bank s branch network nationally
the extension of 1ts services nto business
and rural banking and has focused on
achieving an award winning level of
customer service

JMR (Jun) Syme

Btom FACA CMA Deputy Chairman
A leading figure in the New Zealand
financial industry Mr Syme has over 30
years experience in retail commercial
and merchant banking He is a director
of Waste Management NZ Limited

and Metro Water Lunited and the
chairman of Software of Excellence
International Limited and Kiwi Income
Properties Limited

R (Rick) Boven

BA (Homs) MA MBA

Mr Boven is a partner of The Boston
Consulting Group He has been a strategic
management consultant since 1983 and a
member of the ASB Bank board since 1994
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L G (Les) Cupper

B Econ (Hons) M Econ Dip Ed

Mr Cupper who has 28 years experience
n education munng manufacturing

and banking was appownted a director

of ASB Bank 1n February 1998 Currently
he 15 General Manager Group Human
Resources of the Commonwealth Bank
and an Executive Commttee member of
Commonwealth Bank

1 A {John) Hood

BE (Hons) PhD (Auckland) M Phil (Oxf)

Dr Hood 15 Vice Chanceilor of the
University of Auckland He has an
extensive corporate background 1s the
chairman of Tonkin & Taylor Limited a
director of Fonterra Co operative Group
Limited a trustee and governor of Kings
School and New Zealand Secretary for the
Rhaodes Trust

PA {Patrick) Edwards

FCCA MCT FFTP

Mr Edwards was appointed to the

ASB Bank board i September 2001

He has been General Manager Capital
Management at Commonwealth Bank since
July 2000 Prior to this appointment he
was Treasurer of Colomal Lamited for

4 years and has held financial management
and audit positions n several Australian
companies

G L {Garry) Mackrell

B Sc BEcon{Hons} M Com

Mr Mackrell was appointed to the

ASB Bank hoard in Becember 2001

Mr Mackre!] has held several executive
positions at Commonwealth Bank and

is currently the Group Executive of
International Financial Services (IFS) and
an Executive Committee member

The ASB Group of companes 1s part of IFS
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‘ Structure of Transaction

This section contains a description of the structure of the transaction involving the 1ssue

of the Perpetual Prefcrence Shares It 1s a brief summary only of the relevant documents
The Glossary on page 95 contains defimitions of terms used in this summary The full terms
of the transaction are recorded 1n

a the Constitution

s the Loan Agreement and the secunity document securing the amounts payable under the
Loan Agreement

w the terms of the ASB Bank Perpetual Preference Shares and

u the Trust Deed

Coples of these documents may be obtained free of charge from ASB Capital Level 28 ,
ASB Bank Centre 135 Albert Street Auckland (09) 377 8930 or may be mspected at the g
same address ¢

Steps in the Transaction
The principal features of the transaction are i

w ASB Capital will offer and 1ssue the Perpetual Preference Shares to New Zealand
residents The terms of the Perpetual Preference Shares are outhined under the heading
Terms of Perpetual Preference Shares on page 17

s ASB Capital will lend the proceeds of the 1ssue of the Perpetual Preference Shares to
ASB Group (Holdings) The terms of that loan are outlined under the heading Terms
of ASB Capital Loan to ASB Group (Holdings) on page 18

w ASB Group (Holdings} will apply the proceeds of this loan from ASB Capital to
subscribe for ASB Bank Perpetual Preference Shares The terms of the ASB Bank
Perpetual Preference Shares are outined under the heading  Terms of ASB Bank
Perpetual Preference Shares on page 19

» ASB Group (Holdings) the Trustee and ASB Capital are party to the Trust Deed under
which ASE Group (Holdings) gives covenants ta the Trustee for the benefit of holders
of the Perpetual Preference Shares and grants security over the ASB Bank Perpetual
Preference Shares in favour of the Trustee The terms of the Trust Deed are outlined
under the heading Terms of Trust Deed on page 19

tnvestmant Statement and Prospectus
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Transaction Structure

The diagram sets out the structure of the transaction

TRUSTEE FOR HOLDERS

Covenants and first ranking
security over ASB Bank
Perpetual Preference Shares

Loan

ASE GROUP

(HOLDINGS) LIMITED

Second Ranking Security
over ASB Bank Perpetual
Preference Shares

ASB Bank Perpetual
Preference Shares

" ASE BANK LIMITED

ASB Capital Perpetual
Preference Shares

ASE CAPITAL LIMITED
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Terms of Perpetual Preference Shares

The terms of the Perpetual Preference
Shares are set out 1n Article 4 of the
Constitution Article 4 of the Constitution
1s reproduced 1n full on page 30

The impertant terms of the Perpetual
Preference Shares are

Dividend The Perpetual Preference
Shares carry the right to a dividend
payable quarterly i arrears The aggregate
of cash dividends paid and immputation
credits will equal the Dividend Rate

Cancellation of dividends The Board
has the rght to cancel the payment of any
dividend or dividends on the Perpetual
Preference Shares The Board may do that
if for any reasan 1t determnes that dividends
should niot be pad or 1if ASB Bank or
Commonwealth Bank have given nouce to
ASB Capatal that dividends should not be paid

If a dividend or dividends are cancelled

the obligation of ASB Capital to pay and
the right of holders of Perpetual Preference
Shares to recerve that dividend or dividends
1s cancelled absolutely and for all hime

In thus event ASB Capital will not be able
to pay dividends or make any Distributions
to ordinary shareholders until two consecutive
dividend payments have been made in
respect of the Pespetual Preference Shares
However ASB Bank will remain free to
pay dividends to 1ts ordinary shareholders
unless ASB Bank cancels dividends on the
ASB Bank Perpetual Preference Shares

Perpetual
Shares have no fixed term and are not

The Perpetual Preference

repayable or redeemable by ASB Capatal
in any arcumstances Perpetual Preference
Share holders may call for payment of the
Issue Price oniy 1n the event of a liquidation
of ASB Capital The Perpetual Preference
Shares may however be purchased by
Commonwealth Bank Subsidiary at the
discretion of Commonwealth Bank
Subsidiary 1n the circumstances set out
under the heading Buy Qut Right (see

next column)

Voting The holders of Perpetual
Preference Shares have no right ta receive
notice of attend or vote at meetings of
shareholders of ASB Capital or of any
other Commonwealth Bank Group
company except in the Limted

circumstarnces set out 1n the full terms
of the Perpetual Preference Shares as set

out 1n the Constitution

Rights m liqudation  In a hquidation
of ASB Capital a holder of Perpetual
Preference Shares will be entitled to recerve
i prionty to the nghts of holders of
ordinary shares 1n ASB Capital both the
Issue Price in respect of the Perpetual
Preference Shares held by that holder
and any dividends then payable and

not cancelled but will not be entitled to
participate further in the assets of

ASB Capital Holders may however

have certain rights against ASB Group
(Holdings) under the Trust Deed See the
provisions under the heading Terms of
Trust Deed on page 19

Buy-out Right Commonwealth Bank
Subsidiary may require holders of
Perpetual Preference Shares to transfer
those Perpetual Preference Shares to
Commonwealth Bank Subsidiary for a
price per share equal to the Issue Price
plus dividends accrued but unpaid {unless
dividends have been cancelled)
Commonwealth Bank Subsidiary may only
do this
» five years or more after the Perpetual
Preference Shares are 1ssued or
= at any earlier ime f there occurs
any change 1n law or interpretation
or apphcation of law (including as
to taxation) o©r In any directive or
the Iike by a Regulatory Authority
or other Government agency which
materially adversely affects the benefits
of the Perpetual Preference Shares to
ASB Capital ASB Bank or
Commonwealth Bank

and must give holders of Perpetual
Preference Shares at least 90 days prior
notice of such transfer Cammonwealth
Bank Subsidiary may give notice 1n respect
of all Perpetual Preference Shares or a
specified proportion of the Perpetual
Preference Shares held by each holder

Transfer The Perpetual Preference Shares
are transferable to other persons without
restriction except as provided . Article

4 18 of the Constitution (see page 35)
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Terms of ASB Capital Loan
to ASB Group (Holdings)

ASB Caputal wall advance to ASB Group

| (Holdings) the proceeds of the 1ssue of the

| Perpetual Preference Shares The full terms

of that loan are recarded in the Loan

Agreement a copy of which may be obtained

in the manner specified on page 15

The important terms are

» Interest 13 payable at the Dividend Rate
quarterly the first interest payment
date being 15 February 2003

i m The loan 1s repayable only 1n the

event of the hquidation of ASB Group

| {(Holdings) However if ASB Group

| (Holdings) recerves any amount other

I than dividends 1n respect of the
ASB Bank Perpetual Preference Shares
ASB Group {Holdings) 1s required to
pay that amount to ASB Capatal 1n
reduction of the loan (unless the
Trustee requires 1t to be paid to the
Trustee instead)

» The loan 1s limited 1n recourse to the
ASB Bank Perpetual Preference Shares
held by ASB Group (Holdings) and to
any morues received by ASB Group
(Holdings) 1n respect of those shares
This means that 1if ASB Captal takes
action to recover the loan or interest on
1t from ASB Group (Holdings) then
ASB Capital can have recourse only to
the ASB Bank Perpetual Preference Shares
and to any monies receved by ASB Group
{Holdings) in respect of those shares

and cannot have recourse to any other
i assets of ASB Group (Holdings)
1‘ = The loan is secured by a security over

the ASB Bank Perpetual Preference

‘ Shares This 15 a second ranking
security ranking after the security in
favour of the Trustee referred to under
the heading Terms of the Trust Deed
on page 19
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Terms of ASB Bank
Perpetual Preference Shares

The full terms of the ASB Bank Perpetual

Preference Shares are set out on page 38

Important terms are

« Dhividends are payable at the rate
determined from time to time by the
directors of ASB Bank However if
certain events of default occur dividends
are payable at the same rate as applies
to the Perpetual Preference Shares

» Dividends may be cancelled by the board
of ASB Bank

» In a hgquidanion of ASB Bank the
ASB Bank Perpetual Preference Shares
would rank ahead of ordinary shares
of ASB Bank but after all other
shareholders and creditors of ASB Bank

m The terms of the ASB Bank Perpetual
Preference Shares are otherwise similar
to the terms of the Perpetual Preference
Shares

Terms of Trust Deed

The Trust Deed 15 beiween ASB Group

{(Holdings) ASB Capital and the Trustee

which acts as trustee for holders from time

to time of the Perpetual Preference Shares

Important terms of the Trust Deed are

a Dwvidends on Perpetual Preference
Shares ASB Group (Holdings)
covenants that provided a dividend
on the Perpetual Preference Shares is
not cancelled (see Cancellation of
Drvidends on page 17) and that
dividend 15 not pawd within five
Business Days after the relevant
dividend payment date ASB Group
{Holdings) will pay an amount egual
to the dividend to the Trustee for the
benefit of holders of Perpetual Preference
Shares However ASB Group (Holdings)
is not required to do that if ASB Bank
or Commonwealth Bank has given
ASB Capital a notice to the effect that
dividends should be cancelled

i
i

w Capital of Perpetual Preference
Shares ASB Group {Holdings)
cavenants that 1f a hlquidation of ASB
Capital 1s commenced and within one
year after that liquidation commences
holders of the Perpetual Preference
Shares have not received back the Issue
Price plus dividends acerued but unpaid
{and not cancelled) at the date that
liquidation commenced ASB Group
(Holdings} will pay that amount to
the Trustee for the benefit of holders of
the Perpetual Preference Shares
However ASB Group (Holdings) will
not be required to do this unless and
untit a hguidation of ASB Bank has also
commenced

s Limited recourse The obligations of
ASB Group (Holdings) 1o the Trustee
are limuted in recourse to the ASB Bank
Perpetual Preference Shares held by
ASB Group (Holdings) and to any
monies recerved by ASB Group
(Holdings) in respect of those shares
That means that if the Trustee takes
action agamst ASB Group {Holdings)
the Trustee can have recourse only to
the ASB Bank Perpetual Preference
Shares and to any monies recerved
by ASB Group (Holdings) in respect of
those shares and cannot have recourse
to any other assets of ASB Group
(Holdings)

s Securnity ASB Group (Holdings) grants
to the Trustee a first ranking secunty
over the ASB Bank Perpetual Preference
Shares to secure the covenants given by
ASB Group (Holdings) to the Trustee

A more detailed review of the trust deed
15 set out under the heading Surmmary
of the Trust Deed on page 42
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' Answers 10 Important Questions

What sort of investment s this?

The securities offered are perpetual preference shares to be 1ssued by ASB Capital
The principal terms of the Perpetual Preference Shares are

Dividend The Perpetual Preference Shares carry the right to a dividend payable quarterly
in arrears The aggregate of cash dividends paid and imputation credits wall equal the
Dividend Rate

Cancellation of dividends The Board has the right to cancel the payment of any dividend
or dividends an the Perpetual Preference Shares The Board may do that if for any reason

1t determines that dividends should not be paid or if ASB Bank or Commenwealth Bank
gives notice to ASB Capatal that dividends should net be paid

If a dividend or dividends are cancelled the obligation of ASB Capital to pay and the nght
of haolders of Perpetual Preference Shares to receive that dividend or dividends 15 cancelled
absolutely and for all time In this event ASB Capital will net be able to pay dividends or
make any Distributions to ardinary shareholders until two consecutive dividend payments
have been made 1n respect of the Perpetual Preference Shares However ASB Bank remains
free to pay dividends to its ordinary shareholders unless ASB Bank cancels dividends on the
ASB Bank Perpetual Preference Shares

Perpetual The Perpetual Preference Shares have no fixed term and are not repayable or
redeemable by ASB Capital in any circumstances Perpetual Preference Share holders may call
for repayment of the Issue Price only 1n the event of a hquidation of ASB Capital The Perpetual
Preference Shares may however be purchased by Commonwealth Bank Subsidiary at the
discretion of Commonwealth Bank Subsidiary 1n the circumstances set out under the
heading Buy Qut Right below

Voting The holders of Perpetual Preference Shares have no right to receive notice of
attend or vote at meetings of shareholders of ASB Capital or of any other Commonwealth
Bank Group company except in the limited circumstances set out i the full terms of the
Perpetual Preference Shares as set out in the Constitution

Rights mn hquidation  In a hquidation of ASB Caputal a holder of Perpetual Preference
Shares will be entitled to receive 1n priority to the nghts of holders of ordinary shares of
ASB Capital the Issue Price in respect of the Perpetual Preference Shares held by that holder
and any dividends then payable and not canceiled but will not be entitled to participate
further 1n the assets of ASB Capital Holders may however have certain rights agamnst
ASB Group {Holdings} under the Trust Deed See the provisions under the heading

Terms of Trust Deed on page 19

Buy out Right Commonwealth Bank Subsidiary may require holders of Perpetual
Preference Shares to transfer their Perpetual Preference Shares to Commonwealth Bank
Subsidhary for a price per share equal to the Issue Price plus dividends accrued but unpaid
(unless dividends have been cancelled) Commonwealth Bank Subsidiary may only do this
s five years or more after the Perpetual Preference Shares are 1ssued or
w at any earlier ume if there occurs any change in law or interpretation or application
of law (including as to taxation) or in any directive or the like by a Regulatory
Authonty or other Government agency which materially adversely affects the benefits
of the Perpetual Preference Shares to ASB Capital ASB Bank or Commonwealth Bank
and must give holders of Perpetual Preference Shares at least 90 days prior notice of such
transfer Commonwealth Bank Subsidiary may give notice 1n respect of all Perpetual
Preference Shares or a specified proportion of the Perpetual Preference Shares held by
each holder
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Transfer

The Perpetual Preference Shares are transferable to other persons without restriction except
as provided 1n Article 4 18 of the Constitution (see page 35}

The above 15 a simplified and general description of some of the rights and obligations of
holders of Perpetual Preference Shares The full terms of the Perpetual Preference Shares are
set out on page 30

Who 1s involved in providing it for me?

The 1ssuer of the Perpetual Preference Shares 15 ASB Capital The address of ASB Caputal 15
Level 28 ASB Bank Centre 135 Albert Street Auckland The promoters are ASB Bank and
the directors of ASB Bank The names of the directors of ASB Bank are set out on page 52
The address of ASB Bank 15 Level 28 ASB Bank Centre 135 Albert Street Auckland

ASB Caputal 1s a single purpose company which has been formed for the sole purpose of
issuing the Perpetual Preference Shares It carries on no other business or activities

No member of the Commonwealth Bank or ASB Group of companies including
Commonwealth Bank CBA Funding (NZ} Lirmited ASB Group (Holdings) or ASB Bank
guarantees amounts payable 1n respect of the Perpetual Preference Shares

The trustee under the Trust Deed 15 The New Zealand Guardian Trust Company Limited
Royal & SunAllance Centre 48 Shortland Street PO Box 1934 Auckland

How much do | pay?

The Issue Price for the Perpetual Preference Shares 1s NZ$1 00 per Perpetual Preference
Share which must be paid in full by applhcants at the tume of application Payments are
to be sent to ASB Capital C/- ASB Securities Limuted PO Box 35 Auckland or in the
case of a firm allocation to the office of the member firm of the NZSE which provided
that allacation 1n time for that member firm to forward 1t to the Registrar prior to the
Closing Time The mimmum application amount 15 $5000 of Perpetual Preference Shares

What are the charges?

Tnvestors are not required to pay any charges to ASB Capual in relation to the Offer

Members of the NZSE and approved financial intermediaries will recerve a brokerage
fee of 19 of the Issue Price in respect of Perpetual Preference Shares allotted pursuant to
applications submitted by nvestors {other than Institutional [nvestors) bearing thewr stamp

A firm allocation fee of 0 50% of the Issue Price will be payable to members of the NZSE
and approved financial intermediaries in respect of Perpetual Preference Shares allotted
pursuant to applications submited by nvestars (other than Institutional Investors) under
firm aliocations

Members of the NZSE and approved financial intermediaries will receive a brokerage fee
of 0 50% of the [ssue Price 1n respect of Perpetual Preference Shares allotted pursuant to
applications bearing their stamp submitted by Institutional Investors (other than those
Institutional Investors detailed 1n a distribution exclusion list to be determined by the Lead
Managers and distributed to members of the NZ3E)

Details of the expenses of the Offer are set out on page 52
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What returns will 1 get?

Halders of Perpetual Preference Shares may recewve dvidends paid by ASB Capital as outlined
on page 17 under the heading Dividend Holders of Perpetual Preference Shares may also
benefit from an increase (if any) in the market price of their Perpetual Preference Shares if
they sell them The market price of Perpetual Preference Shares may also decline and holders
may receive less than the Issue Price they paid for thewr Perpetual Preference Shares

The return to hoiders of Perpetual Preference Shares will be a combination of

a dividends paid on the Perpetual Preference Shares and

e the price the holder receives if the holder chooses to sell the holder s Perpetual Preference
Shares or

a the buy out price of the Perpetual Preference Shares if the Perpetual Preference Shares are
bought 1t accordance with the provisions cuthined under the heading Buy out Right
on page 17 or

a1 the event of the liquidation of ASB Capital and ASB Bank amounts which may be
paid 1n respect of the Perpetual Preference Shares or the ASB Bank Perpetual Preference
Shares (see the provisions set out under the heading Terms of Trust Deed on page 19)

In the ordinary course ASB Capital will be able to pay dividends in respect of the Perpetual
Preference Shares only to the extent that ASB Bank makes payments to ASB Group (Holdings)
wn respect of the ASB Bank Perpetual Preference Shares and ASB Group {Holdings) makes
payments ta ASB Capital under the Loan Agreement Accordingly the key factor which
determines returns by way of dividend on the Perpetual Preference Shares 15 the continuing
abtlity of ASB Bank to pay dividends on the ASB Bank Perpetual Preference Shares

The Perpetual Preference Shares carry a dividend at the rate recorded under the heading

Dhrvidend on page 17 However dividends may be cancelled at the discretion of the Board
or at the request of ASB Bank or Commonwealith Bank Accordingly no specific return 1s
promised to or enforceable by subscribers If dividends on the Perpetual Preference Shares

are pawd they wull be pa:d quarterly on 15 February 15 May 15 August and 15 November
or 1f that day 15 not a Business Day on the next Business Day ASB Capital 1s the person
legally liable to pay any dividends on the Perpetual Preference Shares

Taxes may affect the return to investars Dividends will be subject to New Zealand
withholding and mecome tax but the investor s lability in respect of such taxes may be
reduced or sausfied to the extent the dividends have imputation credits attached
Wherever possible dividends paid by ASB Capital will have the maximum allowable
unputation credits attached In addition 1n some cases gains on the sale of Perpetual
Preference Shares may be taxable to investors Further information relating to tax 1s set out

22

on page 28 Investors should obtain their own advice regarding this Offer and in respect of
subscribing for and hoiding Perpetual Preference Shares

What are my risks?
Specific risks relating to the Offer

The Perpetual Preference Shares are perpetual and have no fixed term Accordingly the only
way 1n which a holder of Perpetual Preference Shares can crystallise that holder s investment
{unless Commonwealth Bank Subsidiary exercises 1ts buy out night - see the provisions under
the heading Buy-out Right on page 17) 15 ta sell the Perpetual Preference Shares The price
a holder obtamns will depend on the market for Perpetual Preference Shares at the ime of sale

If ASB Capital 1s hquidated the Issue Price of the Perpetual Preference Shares 15 required to
be repaid to holders by ASB Capital However the abihty of ASB Capital to make any such
payment will depend on ASB Bank making payment to ASB Group (Holdings) n respect of
the ASB Bank Perpetual Preference Shares and ASB Group {FHoldings) making payment 1o
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ASB Capital under the Loan Agreement ASB Bank 1s not lrable to make any payment on
account of caputal in respect of the ASB Bank Perpetual Preference Shares unless and until
ASB Bank 1s 1n hquidation Should ASB Bank be liquidated the ASB Bank Perpetual
Preference Shares rank ahead of ordinary shares of ASB Bank but after the rights of all
creditors and af at any time there are other classes of shares of ASB Bank after the holders
of those shares Risks which may affect the financial position of ASB Bank are recorded below
under the heading ASB Bank s Key Risks

Dividends payable in respect of the Perpetual Preference Shares may be cancelled at the
discretion of the Board In addion each of ASB Bank and Commonwealth Bank can give
notice to ASB Capital that dividends on the Perpetual Preference Shares should nat be
paid and 1t 15 very likely that 1if it receives such a notice the Board would cancel the
payment of dividends

A holder of Perpetual Preference Shares may on sale or other termination of that holder s
mnvestments recewve less than the Issue Price That could occur 1f a holder sells that holders
Perpetual Preference Shares for less than the Issue Price or if in a hquidation of ASB Bank
there were insufficient funds to repay the ASB Bank Perpetual Preference Shares which
constitute security under the Trust Deed

ASB Caprtal 1s a hrmted liability company and accordingly holders of Perpetual Preference
Shares are not required to pay money to any person as a result of the insolvency of ASB Capntal

In the event of a hqudation of ASB Capstal the claims of any creditors of ASB Capital
would rank ahead of the claims of holders of Perpetual Preference Shares The claims of
holders of Perpetual Preference Shares would rank equally amongst themselves

ASB Bank's Key Risks

Participants operating in the banking industry are exposed to many nsks The primary risks
are credit market (currency interest rate equity) hquidity and operational risk Some of
the key risk elements that may affect ASE Banks performance are set out below

Credit Risk Guven that ASB Bank s core business 1s providing lending facilities to
customers there 1s a credit risk associated with customers not meeting their obhigations
under such lending factliies Credit nisk also anises from ASB Bank assuming contingent
Labilities taking equity participations participating in financial market transactions and
assuming underwriting cormmtments All of these activities have an element of nsk
associated with counterparties either not meeting their obligations or transactions
deteriorating 1n credit quality to the extent that the hkelihood of default increases In the
event of default the financial performance of ASB Bank could be adversely impacted
Industry and product concentrations are managed within established credit policies and
underwriting standards The Bank also has formal provisionung policies that are monitored
and reviewed by both management and the board of ASB Bank

Currency Risk ASB Bank 1s exposed to fluctuations 1n both the New Zealand and
foreign currencies arsing from

» the day to day buying and selling of foreign currency for chients

w principal trading positions assumed by ASB Bank itself

» deposit and lending activity n foreign currencies and

w offshore funding by ASB Bank

Such fluctuations could materally impact on ASB Bank s financial performance ASB Bank
monitors and manages this risk through its Treasury Department As at 30 June 2002
aggregate foreign currency exposure amounted to 0 30% of ASB Bank s equity
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Interest Rate Risk Interest rate risks arise from holding assets and habilities

including off balance sheet instruments which imay mature or reprice 1n different periods
The Bank 1s exposed to some degree of iming difference risk as the interest rates on the money
it lends may be reset for a different period to that for which the interest rates on the money 1t
borrows reset This exposes the Bank to fluctuations in interest rates between these periods

The Bank reduces interest rate risk by seeling to match the repriung of assets and liabilities
Sensitivity to interest rate changes 1s monitored agamst limuts set by the beard of ASB Bank

Liguidity Risk Liquidity nisk anses if the Bank 1s unable to generate or abtamn sufficient
funds at a reasonable price to meet its daily financial commitments The Bank s financial
performance and credit rating may then be adversely impacted The Bank momtors this risk
primarily by forecasting future daily cash requirements The Bank alsc holds assets that can
be converted into cash at short notice

Operational Risk Operanonal risk 1s the risk of direct or indirect loss resulting from
either external events or nadequate or failed internal processes people and systems
Essentially operational risk 1s any possible exposure to loss the Bank may face which 1s
caused by any operational factor other than eredit liquidity or market risk

A formal reporting structure and policy approved by the board of ASB Bank for the

management of aperational risk 1s 1n place

Reliance on Auckland geographic region $12 1 billion of credit exposures
{51% of total credit expasures) are concentrated 1n the Auckland geographic region

Credat losses and bad debt write offs exceeding provisions may result if there was an
economic downturn or property market downturn in the Auckland region {refer to Note 39
of the ASB Bank Financial Statements on page 82)

Reliance on certain industries

Housing

The housing industry accounts for a major proportion of ASB Bank s credit exposures

~ $13 0 illon of credut exposures (54% of total credit exposures) If there was a sigmficant
downturn i the housing industry this could cause an associated reduction the total value
of the Bank s security aver residential properties (refer to Note 39 of the ASB Bank
Financial Statements on page 82)

This ereates ncreased credit risk if ASB Bank s customers fail to meet their lending obhgations

Agriculture

ASB Bank has over $2 billion of credit exposures in the agnicultural sector If there was a
significant downturn within the agricultural sector there is the potenual for an increase in
credit losses and bad debt write offs which would affect ASB Bank s profitability (refer to
Note 39 of the ASB Bank Financial Statements on page 82)

ASB Bank has clearly defined credit pohcy guidelines which are aimed at reducing the

potential exposure to risk in these areas

For further information refer to Nate 39 of the ASB Bank Financial Statements on page 82

Other operational and event risks Demand for ASB Bank s products and

services 1s partially dependent upon the performance of the New Zealand and world economies
Reduced or negative growth n these economies generally or reduced demand for banking
products and services could have a material adverse effect on the financial results of ASB Bank
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The Bank s strategic plans are reviewed on an ongong basis to take into account the changing
environment worldwide and in New Zealand

Competition in the banking industry ASB Bank faces competition from bath
existing financial service providers and new entrants Customers are now able to chaose
from a greater number of providers 1n all of the areas of financial services provided by ASB Bank
includmg the residential lending market Risks that may affect ASB Bank s ability to obtain
new and retain existing customers thereby affecting the profitabihty of ASB Bank include
but are not imited to the relative position of ASB Bank against its competitors i the

a pricing and performance of products and services
» convenience and ease of access to products and services
u level and efficiency of service provided and

w ability to develop new products and service to meet the changing needs of customers

ASB Bank 1s commuitted to providing customer service to both new and existing customers

and 1s a recogmsed leader 1n this area

Legal and Regulatory Environment ASB Bank considers that the legal and
regulatory framework governing the banking industry in New Zealand although well
established 1s stll subject to change from time to time and has the potential to adversely
impact ASB Bank s financial performance

Business Continuity Management ASB Bank s core processing operations are
based 1n Auckland Should a natural disaster or a specific event such as a prolonged power
shortage occur in the Auckland region ASB Bank would find 1t difficult to continue 1ts
business operations However these nisks have been considered and disaster speaific contingency
strategies and plans have been developed to ensure ASB Bank s critical operations could cantinue

Can the investment be altered?

The full terms of the Offer are set out 1n this Offer Document Those terms and the terms
and conditions on which applicants may apply for the Perpetual Preference Shares may be
altered by an amendment to thus Offer Document by ASB Caputal Details of any such
amendment must be filed with the Compames Office

These terms are described under the headings What sort of investment 1s this? and How
much do [ pay? 1n this section of the Offer Document

The rights attaching to the Perpetual Preference Shares are governed by the Constitution
The Constitution (and any rights or privileges attaching to Perpetual Preference Shares) may
only be altered with the approval of

u the Board and

» an ordinary resolution of the holder of the ordinary shares in ASB Capital and
m a special resolution of the holders of the Perpetual Preference Shares

and provided that any amendment

= s approved by ASB Bank and

w will not affect the classification of the Perpetual Preference Shares under the rules of any
Regulatory Authority

Section 117 of the Companies Act restricts ASB Capital from taking any action that affects
the rights attached to Perpetual Preference Shares unless that action has been approved by a
special resofution of shareholders whose rights are affected by the action However the 1ssue
of further shares ranking equally with or 1n prionty to the Perpetual Preference Shares 15
deemed not to be an action affecting the rights attaching to the Perpetual Preference Shares
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How do | cash In my investment?

Perpetual Preference Shares are tradeable without restriction subject only to comphance
with relevant laws the Constitution and the continuation of an active trading market In
ASB Capital s opinion there 1s likely to be an estabhished market for the Perpetual
Preference Shares on completion of the Qffer No charges are payable to ASB Capital for
any sale of Perpetual Preference Shares However normal brokerage may be payable to the
broker acting n the sale

Listing

Application has been made to the NZSE for permission to st the Perpetual Preference Shares
v All requirements of the NZSE relating to the listing that can be complied with on or before
the date of this Offer Document have been duly comphed with However the NZSE accepts
no responsibility for any statement in this Offer Document

Who do | contact with enquiries about my investment?

Enquinies 1n relation to the Perpetual Preference Shares can be directed 1o
Sharyn Rea/Lianne Davis  ASB Securities Limited

Level 13
ASE Bank Centre
135 Albert Street
Auckland
Phone 0800 ASB BOND (0800 272 266)
Email sharyn rea@asbbank co nz/hanne davis@asbhank co nz

Is there anyone to whom | can complain if | have
problems with the investment?

Complaints about the Perpetual Preference Shares can be made to
Peter Hall  ASB Capital Limited
Level 28
ASB Bank Centre
135 Albert Street
Auckland
Phone +64 9 374 8605
Facsimule +64 9 306 0085
Email  peter hall@®asbbank co nz

Complaints may also be made to the Trustee
The New Zealand Guardian Trust Company Limited
Royal & SunAlhance Centre
48 Shortland Street
PO Box 1934
Auckland
Phone +64 9 377 7300
Facsimle +64 9 377 7477

There 15 no Ombudsman to whor complaints about the Perpetual Preference Shares can be made
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What other information can | obtain about this investment?
Offer Document

Other information about the Perpetual Preference Shares and ASB Capital 1s contained or
referred to 1n the other sections of this Offer Document

This Offer Document and other documents relating to ASB Capital (including the
Constitution and the matertal contracts referred to on page 52) may be inspected without
fee during normal business hours at ASB Capital s registered office at Level 28 ASB Bank
Centre 135 Albert Strect Auckland These documents are also filed 1n a pubhc register
which may be mspected for a fee at the Compames Office Business and Registries Branch
Munstry of Economic Development on its website www companies govt nz

Where documents are not available on the website a request for the documents can be
made by contacting the Companites Office Contact Centre on 0508 266 726

Annual Informatron
ASB Capital wili provide to holders of Perpetual Preference Shares the annuat and half
yearly reports required by the Companies Act and the Listing Rules

Financial Statements and Other Information

Holders of Perpetual Preference Shares can obtain copies of this Offer Document and the

financial statements referred to i this Offer Document from ASB Capital free of charge by

request either 1 writing or by telephone Folders of Perpetual Preference Shares can also

abtain copies of the following documents from ASB Capital by request either i writing or

by telephone for a prescribed fee

w the most recent annual report (once produced) of ASB Capital

u the most recent financial statements {once produced} of ASB Caprtal

» a comparison of actual results against the forecast statement of cash flows set out on page
50 and

m  the Trust Deed

27
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| Other Information

Tax Information

General The following statements relate
only to New Zealand withholding tax and
are of a general nature The statements are

‘ based on tax legislation and interpretatlons

of tax legislation current at the date of this
Offer Document The statements are not
intended to deal with all relevant
considerations or possible cases No other
taxation considerations are discussed
Prospective mvestors should seek thexr
own taxation advice in relation to their

own taxation position

New Zealand Resident Shareholders
ASB Capital will assume that holders of
Perpetual Preference Shares are New Zealand
tax residents unless 1t 1s satisfied to the
contrary and will act accordingly

Any liability for taxation 1s the
responsibility of the holder of Perpetual
Preference Shares

Dividends distributed to residents
Under New Zealand s dividend 1imputation
system corporate tax paid by a New Zealand
tax resident company gives rise to tax
credits (known as imputation credits)
which can be attached to dividends paid
by that company to 1ts shareholders Those
unputation credits can then be used by
shareholders to offset their own personal
income tax Liability on those dividends
Dividends paid to New Zealand tax

resident shareholders are ordinanly subject
to resident withholding tax However if
the dividend 1s fully imputed no resident
withholding tax will be deducted

Investment Statement and Prospectus

A deduction for resident withholding

tax on dividends will not be made where
the recipient of the payment holds and
produces a current certificate of exemption
or where one of the ather exemptions
specified n the Income Tax Act 1994
apphes When required to do so ASB Capital
will make resident withholding tax deduction
unless the holder of the shares can satisfy
ASB Caputal that the deduction 1s not
required by law

ASB Capntal s intention 1s that dividends
paud to holders of Perpetual Preference
Shares will be fully imputed Resident
withholding tax may be deducted from
dividends paid on the Perpetual Preference
Shares to the extent that the dividend 13
not fully imputed (and where the
shareholder has not provided ASB Capital
with a copy of a vahd certificate of
exemption for resident witbholding tax
purposes) Non-resident withholding tax
may also be deducted from dividends paud
to non residents (although 1t 1s the intention
only to 1ssue Perpetual Preference Shares
to New Zealand residents}

ASB Capital may at its sole discretion pay
supplementary dividends to shareholders
resident for tax purposes outside

New Zealand



Example of tax calculation

The tax treatment of dividends paid on the
Perpetual Preference Shares for personal
income tax purposes 1s illustrated by the
following example

This example assumes that the investor

{a New Zealand resident for tax purposes}
owns $5 000 werth ot Perpetual
Preference Shares (5 000 shares at $1 00)
The Dividend Rate 1s assumed to be

7 00% for the purposes of this example
made up of cash payments of 4 69% and
imputations creduts of 2 31% It 13 also
assumed the current tax Jaw prevails the
dividends are fully imputed and the investor
15 able to fully utihse the imputation credits
attached

On this basis the investor s dividend
statements for one year for the four
combined quarterly dividend payments

would read

Gross Dividend $350 00
Imputation Credits Attached $115 50
Cash Dividend Paid $234 50

For an investor on a 39% marginal tax
rate, the impact on that investor s annual
tax calculation would be

Taxable Dividend Income $350 00
Tax @ 39% $136 30
Less imputation credits $115350
Net tax to pay in respect

of dividend $2100

An investor on a marginal 39% tax rate in
an income year pays an additional $21 G0
1n tax wiath respect to the dividend whach
reduces the after tax dividend return to

4 27% Thas 1s the same return as the
investor would have received from
investing 1 a bond paying pre tax interest
of 7 00%

For an mvestor on a 33% marginal tax
rate the impact on that investor s annual
tax calculation would be

Taxahle Dividend Income $350 00
Tax @ 33% $115 50
Less wmputation credits $115 50
Net tax to pay 1n respect

of dividend nl

An investor on a marginal 33% tax rate
1N an income year pays no more tax with
respect to the dividend income

For an investor on a 1% 5% marginal tax
rate, {after receipt of the dividend} the
impact on that investor s annual tax

calculation would be

Taxable Dividend Income $350 00
Tax @ 19 5% $68 25
Less imputation credits $11550
Excess imputation

credits/tax credit $47 25

The excess imputation credits of $47 25
can be used to reduce the investor s
income tax lhabality (derived from other
income sources) if the investor has other
taxable income that income year

Where the excess imputation credits can be
used tn full 1n that income year the
effective after tax return from the Perpetual
Preference Shares 1s $281 75 or 5 63%

Imputation credits which are not used in
an income year may be converted into
net losses (at varying rates depending on
investors particular circumstances) and
may he available for offset against taxable

mncome 1n future income years
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| Terms of Perpetual Preference Shares

There are set out below the provisions of the Constitution
relevant to the Perpetual Preference Shares The numbering
of the relevant provisions set out below reflects the
provisions of the Constitution

1 DEFINITIONS AND INTERPRETATION
11 Defimtions
In this Constitution unless the contrary intention appears
ASB means ASB Bank Limited
ASB Group (Holdings} means ASB Group (Holdings) Limited
Act means the Compamnes Act 1993

Article means a provision of this Constitution as amended or added to from tume to
tiume

Company means ASB Caputal Lumited
Constitution means this Constitution as amended or added to from time to time

‘director means a person holding office as a director of the Company and where
approprnate includes an alternate director

directors means all or some of the directors acting as a board and the terrn  board
shali be construed accordingly

Holding Company means CBA Funding (N2) Limuted
register means the register of members to be kept pursuant to the Act

ordimary share means an ordinary share 1ssued or to be 1ssued by the Company as
the case may require

preference share means a perpetual preference share 1ssued or to be issued by the
Company as the case may require

‘share means an ordinary share a preference share or any class of share 1n the
captal of the Company

shareholder means any person who 1s the registered holder of a share
special resolution means a resolution approved by a majority of seventy five per

cent (7595} of the votes of those shareholders entitled to vote and voung on the 15sue

14 Amendment of Constitution

{a) Subject to the Act this Constitution may be altered at any time by way of a
special resolutton

(b)  An application to change the name of the Company 1s not an amendment of this
Constitution for the purposes of Article 1 4(a) above and may be made by a
director with the prior approval of the Holding Company

(c}  Without liimiting Aruicles 4 25 and 4 28 this Constitution shall not be altered or
revoked without the wnitten approval of ASB

15 Rights of Preference Shares
The rights privileges limitations and conditions attaching to the preference shares
shall be as set out 1n Article 4  If there 15 any conflict between a provision 1n Article 4
and any other provision of this Constitution the provision in Article 4 shall prevail
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ISSUJES OF SHARES

Issue of further shares

The 1ssue of further shares ranking equally with or mn prionty to any existing shares
whether as to voting nights distributions or otherwise 1s deemed not to be an action
affecting the nights attaching to the existing shares

PREFERENCE SHARES
Defiritions
In Articles 4 | to 4 30 of this Constitution unless the context otherwise requires

Benchmark Rate on any day means the rate per annum expressed on a4 percentage
yield basis and rounded up to the nearest two decimal places which is
{a) the average of the bid and offered swap rate displayed at or about 11lam on that
day on page FISSWAP (or any successor page) of the Reuters momtor screen for
an interest rate swap with a one year term or

(b) if a rate 1s unable to be determined 1n accordance with paragraph {a} or if the

Company forms the view that the rate so determined 13 not an accurate reflection

of market rates the average of the mean and bid offered swap rates quoted by
three repistered banks in New Zealand other than ASB at or about 11am on that

day for an 1nterest rate swap with a one year term

Business Day means any day other than a Saturday Sunday or a statutory public
hohday in New Zealand

Buyout Notice has the meaning in Article 4 21
Buyout Price 1n respect of each preference share at any date means the aggregate of
(a) the Issue Price

{b} subject ta Article 4 7 Dividends payable on that preference share as at that date
calculated on a daily basis from the end of the most recent Dividend Period to
that date

“Commonwealth Bank means Commonwealth Bank of Austraha

Commonwealth Bank Subsidiary means the Holding Company or any wholly
owned subsidiary of Commonwealth Bank (which 1s not ASB or a subsidiary of ASB)
to which the Holding Company assigns 1ts rights under Articles 4 21 to 4 24

Distribution  has the meaning set out in section 2(1) of the Act

Dividend means any dividend on the preference shares payable pursuant to Article
42

Dividend Amount 1n respect of a Dividend Period means a sum 1n respect of each
preference share calculated 1n accordance with the following formula

Dividend Rate
Issue Price x ———— x (1-9

4
Where
Dividend Rate 1s

{a) 1n respect of each Dividend Period commencing after 15 November 2003 the
Benchmark Rate on the Relevant Reset Date plus the Margin (adjusted to an
equivalent quarterly rate)

(b) in respect of each Dividend Period ending on or before 15 November 2003 the
greater of

—r— ———
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{)  the Benchmark Rate on the Rate Set Date plus the Margin (adjusted to an
equivalent quarterly rate) or
{n}) 7 4 percent per annum
t1s the basic rate of income tax apphcable to the Company under Schedule 1 of the
Tax Act
provided that the Dividend Amount in respect of the first Dividend Period shall be an
amount calculated in accordance with the following formula

Y
X x

91 25
where

X 1s an ameunt calculated in accordance with the first formula set out 1n this
definition

Y 15 the pertod from and including the Issue Date to but excluding 15 February 2003
Dividend Cancellation Notice means a notice given by the board pursuarnt to Article 4 7

Davidend Payment Date means 15 November 15 February 15 May and 15 August
in each year

Dividend Period means each period commencing on and including a Dividend
Payment Date and ending on but excluding the next Dividend Payment Date or in
respect of the first Dividend Period the period from and including the Issue Date
to but excluding 15 February 2003

Dividend Resumption Notie means a notice given pursuant to Article 4 9

Fully Credited means in relation to a Dividend that Imputation Creduts are validly
attached to the Dividend so that the imputation ratio of the Divadend 1s the maximum
imputation ratio permitted by law

Holder 1n respect of a preference share means a person whose name 15 entered 1n the
Share Register as the holder for the time being of that preference share

Imputation Credit means an imputation credit as defined in section OB 1 of the Tax Act

Issue Date 1n respect of a preference share means the date on which that preference
share 15 15sued

Issue Price means $1 wn respect of each preference share
Margin means 1 3 percent per annum

Rate Set Date means a date specified by the Company betng the Business Day
following the closing date of an offer of preference shares to the public

Reset Date means 15 November 2003 and each 15 November thereafter

Relevant Reset Date means in respect of a Dividend Period if that Dividend Period
begins on a Reset Date that Reset Date and if that Dividend Period does not begin on
a Reset Date the Reset Date immediately preceding that Dividend Period

Regulatory Autherity means the Reserve Bank of New Zealand the Australian
Prudential Regulatian Autherity or any other authority having junisdiction 1n respect
of banking in Australia or New Zealand

Share Registrar means an agent appointed by the Company to keep the register of
the preference shares
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43

44

45

46

47

48

Tax Act means the Income Tax Act 1994

Trust Deed means a trust deed dated 30 October 2002 between the Company
ASB Group (Holdings) and The New Zealand Guardian Trust Company Lumuted
whereby the Company and ASB Group {Holdings) give certan covenants for the
benefit of Holders

Whenever 1n Articles 4 1 to 4 30 there is a reference to a date and that date 1s not a
Business Day the reference shall be deemed to be to the next day which 15 a Business Day

Dividend

The preference shares carry the right to a dividend payable 1n priority to other
Distributions in accordance with Article 4 6 1n respect of each Dividend Period equal
to the Dividend Amount for that Divadend Period

Dividend to be Fully Credited

All Dividend Amounts shall be Fully Credited The only consequence of or remedy
for a Dividend Amount not being Fully Credited shall be the payment by the
Company of the amount referred to in Article 4 4

Imputation Credit shortfall

If all or any part of 2 Dividend Amount 1s not Fully Credited the Company shall pay
to each Holder an amount equal to the shortfall in Imputation Credits of which
Holders would otherwise have had the benefit The amount payable under this Article
44

(a} 15 due on the Dividend Payment Date of the Dividend Amount and to the extent
pard substitutes for or replaces the corresponding obligation of the Company
under Article 4 3 and

(b) shall be regarded as a vanatron in the rate at which Dividends are calculated
Dividend Payment Date

If a Dividend 1s paid mn respect of any Dividend Period 1t shall be paid on the
Dividend Payment Diate on which that Dividend Period ends

Dividends to have pniority

Dividends shall rank for payment in priority to the rights 1n respect of dividends or

other Distributions of all holders of other classes of shares of the Company

Cancellation of Dividends
Without limiting section 52(1) of the Act but subject to Article 4 8 the directors may
by notice sent to Holders not later than five Business Days after the end of a Dividend

Period cancel the payment of Dividends in respect of that Dividend Period and all 33
subsequent Dividend Periods until such tume as the board gives a Dividend
Resumption Notice

Reasons for cancellation

The board may give a Dividend Cancellation Notice if

{(a} the board 1s not satisfied on reasonable grounds that immediately after payment
of a Dividend the Company will satisfy the solvency test or

{b) the board has for any other reason determined in its discretion that a Dividend
or Dividends generally should not be paid or

{c) ASB has given notice to the Company that the board of directors of ASB has
determined that a Drvidend or Davidends generally should not be pald or

(d} Commonwealth Bank has given notice to the Campany that the board of
directors of Commonwealth Bank has determuned that a Dividend or Dividends
generally should not be pard
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Dividend Resumption Notice

If the hoard has given a Dividend Cancellation Notice the board may at any time
thereafter send notice to Holders to the effect that Dividends should again be paid
If such a notice 15 given Dividends shall agamn be payable as from and including the
first Dividend Period commencing after the giving of that notice unless and until a
further Dividend Cancellation Notice 15 given If the board has given a Dividend
Cancellauon Notice following receipt from ASB or Commonwealth Bank of a notice
of the nature referred to in Article 4 8(c) or 4 8(d) and the Company receives fram
the party which gave that notice a notice to the effect that Dividends should again be
paid the board shall give a Dividend Resumption Notice unless the board makes a
determination of the nature referred to 1 Article 4 8(a) or (b)

4 10 Effect of cancellation

If a Dividend Cancellation Notice is given any obligation of the Company to pay and
any right of Holders to recewve the Dividends referred to in Article 4 7 shall be
cancelled absolutely The preference shares are not cumulative

Suspension period

If a Divadend Cancellation Notice 1s given then for the period from the date of that
Dividend Cancellation Notice until the Company has paid in full Dividends for two
consecutive Dividend Periods the Company shall not make any Distribution other
than Dividends

412 Capital

Each Holder shall have the nght in a liquidation of the Company to payment n
priority to the holders of other classes of shares of the Company of the Issue Price of
the preference shares held by that Holder and {subject to Article 4 7) Dividends
payable on those preference shares at the date of commencement of hquidation
calculated on a daily basis from the end of the most recent Dividend Period to the date
of commencement of liquidation

4 13 Voting

Holders shall have no right to recerve notice of attend or vote at meetings of
shareholders of the Company other than meetings called under Articles 4 25 or 4 26

4 14 Transfer

A Holder may subject to Article 4 18 transfer any preference share

(a) wunder a system of transfer approved under section 7 of the Securities Transfer
Act 1991 which 15 applicable to the Company

(b} under any other share transfer system which operates in relation to the trading of
securities on any stock exchange outside New Zealand on which preference
shares are quoted and which 15 apphcable to the Company or

() by an instrument of transfer which comphes with this Constitution
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4 15 Systems of Transfer

A preference share which 1s disposed of i a transaction which complies with the
requirements of a system of transfer authorised under Article 4 14(a) or 4 14(b) may
be transferred 1n accordance with the requirements of that system Where an instrument
of transfer executed by a transferor outside New Zealand would have complied with
the provisions of the Securities Transfer Act 1991 if it had been executed 1n

New Zealand 1t may nevertheless be regstered by the Company 1f 1t 1s executed 1n a
manner acceptable to the Company or the Share Registrar

4 16 Instrument Requirements

Annstrument of transfer of preference shares to which the provisions of Article 4 15
are not applicable shall

{a) be m any common form or any other form approved by the Company or the
Share Registrar and

(b) be signed ar executed by or on behalf of the transferor

417 Dehlivery of instrument

An mnstrument transferring preference shares must be delivered to the Company or to
the Share Registrar together with such evidence (if any) as the Company or the Share
Registrar reasonably requires to prove the title of the transferor to or right of the
transferor to transfer the preference shares

4 18 Refusal to register

Subject to section 84 of the Act (which imposes certain procedural requirements on a
board) the board may refuse to register a transfer of any preference share if

{a) the Company has a hen on the preference share

(b) the transferor fails to produce such evidence as the Company or the Share
Registrar reasonably requires to prove the title of the transferor to or right of the
transferor to transfer the preference share or

{c} registration of the transfer {together with registration of any further transfer or
transfers then held by the Company and awaiting registration) would result 1n
less than 5 000 preference shares standing i the name of the transferee

provided that the board resolves to exercise its power under this Article within 30
Business Days after receipt of the relevant transfer and notice of the resolution 1s sent
to the transferor and to the transferee within five Business Days of the resolution
being passed by the board

419 Transferor to remain Holder untl registration

A transferor of a preference share 1s deemed to remain the Holder of the preference
share until the name of the transferee 1s entered in the register i respect of the share

4 20 Company to retain instruments

421

If the Company registers an mstrument of transfer 1t shall retain the mstrument

Compulsery Buyout

Subject to Article 4 22 Commonwealth Bank Subsidiary may give notice to all Holders
10 the manner specified in Article 12 (a Buyout Notice ) requiring Holders to
transfer theur preference shares to Commonwealth Bank Subsidiary A Buyout Nouce
shall take effect and the Buyout Price shall be paid on the day specified in the notice
being not less than 90 days and not more than 120 days after the date on which the
notice 1s given

35
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4 22 Timing of Buyout Notice
A Buyout Notice may be given only

(a) five years or more after the [ssue Date or

{b) at any earlier ime if there has occurred any change 1n law (including any law
relating to taxation) or i the interpretation or application thereof by any Court
or governmental agency ar in any directive regulation request or requirement
of a Regulatory Authority or other governmental agency which materially
adversely affects the benefits of the preference shares to the Company ASB or
Commonwealth Bank

4 23 Effect of Buyout Notice
If Commenwealth Bank Subsidiary gives a Buyout Notice then

(a) each Holder shall be deemed on the day on which Commonwealth Bank
Subsidiary pays to that Holder the Buyout Price to transfer that Holder s
preference shares to Commonwealth Bank Subsidiary and the Company shall an
that day enter the name of Commonwealth Bank Subsidiary on the register as
the holder of those preference shares

(b) each Holder shall be deemed to have authorised the Company to act on behalf of
that Holder in respect of the transfer of that Holder s preference shares to
Commonwealth Bank Subsidiary and to sign any docurnent necessary to effect or
record that transfer

(¢} Commonwealth Bank Subsidiary may pay the Buyout Price in the manner
specified in Article 10 5 (with the necessary modifications)

4 24 Partial Buyout
Commonwealth Bank Subsidiary may give a Buyout Notice 1n respect of a specified
proportion of the preference shares held by each Holder If Commonwealth Bank
Subsidiary does so Articles 4 21 to 4 23 shall apply modified so as to refer to that
proportion of each Holder s preference shares Commonwsalth Bank Subsidiary may
give notice of the nature referred to in this clause on more than one occasion

4 25 Amendment
Subject to Article 4 28 the nights privileges limutatzons and conditions attaching to

the preference shares may be amended with the approval of
{a) the board and
(b) an ordinary resolution of the holders of ordinary shares and
(¢} aspecial resolution of Holders
36 A meeting of Holders for the purposes referred to in paragraph {c) may be convened
by the board
4 26 Meeting for purposes of Trust Deed

The board may at any time convene a meeting of Holders to consider a resolution
proposed to be passed for a purpose referred to in the Trust Deed The board shall
convene such a meeting 1f the trustee under the Trust Deed so requests

4 27 Conduct of Meetings

A meetng of Holders to consider a resolution of the nature referred to i Article 4 25

or 4 26 shall be convened and held in accordance with the first schedule to the Act

At any such meeting

{a) where voting 15 by show of hands or by voice every Holder present in person or
by representative has one vote

(b) on a poll every Holder present In person or by representative has one vote In
respect of each preference share held by that Holder and

{c) 1f the meeting 1s to consider a resolution of the nature referred to in Article 4 26
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and the trustee under the Trust Deed nominates any person as chairperson for the
meeting that person shall chair the meeting

4 28 Restrictions on amendments
No amendment of the nature referred to in Article 4 25 shall be made unless

(a) ASB has approved that amendment and

(b} that amendment will nat affect the classification of the preference shares under
the rules of any Regulatory Authority

4 29 Deductions
The Company may make from Dividends any deduction or withholding on account of
tax or on any other account which the Company 1s required by law to make

4 30 Supplementary dividend
If the Company at any time

(a} pays a dividend (as defined m section LE 2(1) of the Tax Act and 1n section OB 1
of that Act for the purposes of Part LE of that Act) to a Holder who 1s not
resident in New Zealand for tax purposes at that time and

(b) the Company attaches an Imputation Credit to such dividend pursuant to section
ME 6 of the Tax Act

then the Company may pay a single supplementary dividend {as defimed 1n section OB 1
of the Tax Act) to that person

10 DIVIDENDS AND RESERVES

10 5 Method of Payment
A dividend payable 1n cash may be paid 1n such manner as the board thinks fit to the
entitled shareholders or 1n the case of jomnt shareholders to the shareholder named
first in the register or to such other person and in such manner as the shareholder
or joint shareholders may 1 writing direct Any one of two or more joint shareholders
may give a receipt for any payment in respect of the shares held by them as joint
shareholders

12 NOTICES
(a} A notice may be given to any member or to any other person entitled to notice
under this Constitution either by serving it on that person personally or by
sending 1t by post or facsimile transmission to the member s registered address or
the address supplied by that other person to the Company for the purpose of
notices

{b) Where a notice 1s sent by post service of the notice shall be deermed to be effected
by properly addressing prepaying and posting a letter contaiming the notice and
to have been effected in the case of a notice of a meeting on the day after the
date of 1ts posting and 1n any other case at the time at which the letter would be
delivered 1n the ordmary course of post

(c) Where a notice 1s sent by facsimile transmission service of the notrce 1s deemed to
be effected by properly addressing the facsimile transmssion and the notice 15 deemed
to have been served in the case of a facsymile transmission on the day following
1ts despatch
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Terms of ASB Bank Perpetual
Preference Shares

The following are the rights, privileges, limitations
and conditions attaching to the ASB Bank Perpetual
Preference Shares

1  Interpretation
1'1 In these terms

Benchmark Rate on any day means the rate per annum expressed on a percentage
yield basis and rounded up to the nearest two decimal places which 1s

(a) the average of the bid and offered swap rate disptayed at or about 1lam on that
day on page FISSWAP (or any successor page) of the Reuters monutor screen for
an interest rate swap with a one year term or

{b) if a rate 15 unable to be determined 1n accordance with paragraph {a}) or if the
Company forms the view that the rate so determined 15 not an accurate reflection
of market rates the average of the mean and bid offered swap rates quoted by
three registered banks in New Zealand other than the Company at or about
1lam on that day for an interest rate swap with a one year term

Board has the meaning 1n section 127 of the Companies Act 1993

Business Day means any day other than a Saturday Sunday or a statutory public
hohday it New Zealand

Company means ASB Bank Limited
Default has the meaning in the Trust Deed
Distributton  has the meaming 1n section 2{1) of the Compames Act 1993

Drviidend  means any dividend on the Preference Shares payable pursuant to clause 2

Dividend Amount 1n respect of a Dividend Period means a sum n respect of each
Preference Share calculated in accordance with the following formula

Dividend Rate
Issue Price x ————— x {1-9

Y 4
where
Dividend Rate 1s
38 (@) 1n respect of each Dividend Period commencing after 15 November 2003 the
Benchmark Rate on the Relevant Reset Date plus the Margin {adjusted to an
equivalent quarterly rate)

(b} 1n respect of each Dividend Peniod ending on or before 15 November 2003 the
greater of

() the Benchmark Rate on the Rate Set Date plus the Margin (adjusted to an
equivalent quarterly rate) or

(n} 7 4 percent per annum

t 15 the basic rate of income tax applicable to the Company under Schedule 1 of the
Tax Act
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provided that the Dividend Amount 1n respect of the first Dividend Period shall be an
amount calculated in accordance with the following formula

Y
X x—
91 25

where

X 1s an amount calculated in accordance with the first formula set out i this
definition

Y 15 the period from and including the Issuc Date to but excluding 15 February 2003
Dwvidend Cancellatton Notice means a notice given by the Board pursuant to clause 3 1

Drvidend Payment Date means 15 November 15 February 15 May and 15 August
in each year

Dividend Period means each period cammencing on and including a Dividend
Payment Date and ending on but excluding the next Dividend Payment Date or n
respect of the first Dividend Period the period from and including the Issue Date
to but excluding 15 February 2003

“Fully Credited means 1n relation to a Dividend that Imputation Credits are valdly
attached to the Dividend so that the imputation ratio of the Dividend 1s the maximum
imputation ratio permitted by law

Holder in respect of a Preference Share means a person whose name 15 entered 1n
the share register of the Company as the holder of that Preference Share

Imputation Credit means an imputation credit as defined in section OB1 of the Tax Act
Issue Date means the date on which the Preference Shares are 1ssued

Issue Price means $1 1n respect of each Preference Share

Margin means 1 3 percent per annum

Ordinary Shares means the ordinary shares from tume to time of the Company
Preference Share means a perpetual preference share 1ssued by the Company

Rate Set Date means a date specified by ASB Capital Lumited being the Business
Day following the closing date of an offer of preference shares by ASB Capital Limited
to the public

Reset Date means 15 November 2003 and each 15 November thereafter

Relevant Reset Date means 1n respect of a Dividend Period 1f that Dividend Period
begins on a Reset Date that Reset Date and 1f that Dhvidend Period does not begen
on a Reset Date the Reset Date immediately preceding that Dividend Period

Regulatory Authority means the Reserve Bank of New Zealand the Austrahan
Prudential Regulation Authonty or any other authority having jurisdiction in respect
of banking in Australia and New Zealand

Tax Act means the Income Tax Act 1994

Trust Deed means a security trust deed dated 30 October 2002 between ASB Group
(Holdings) Limited The New Zealand Guardian Trust Company Limited and ASB
Capital Limited
Whenever 1n these terms there 1s a reference to a date and that date 1s not a Business
Day the reference shall be deemed to be ta the next day which 1s a Business Day
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2 DIVIDEND

2 1 The Preference Shares carry the right to a dividend payable in priority to
Distributions in respect of Ordinary Shares in accordance with clause 2 8 of the
amounts referred to 1n clause 2 2

2 2 Unless and until a Default occurs Dividends in respect of each Dividend Pertod shail
be paid at such rate as the Board determunes 1n respect of that Dividend Period [f a
Default occurs then in respect of each Dividend Period from and including the
Dividend Period 1in which that Default occurs the Dividend shall be equal to the
Dividend Amount for that Dividend Period

23 If a Diiidend 15 paid 1n respect of any Dividend Period 1t shall be paid on the
Dividend Payment Date on which that Dividend Period ends

24 All Dvidend Amounts shall be Fully Credited The only consequence of or remedy
for a Dividend Amount not being Fully Credited shall be the payment by the
Company of the amount referred to 1n clause 2 5

25 If all of any part of a Dividend Amount 1s not Fully Credited the Company shall pay
to each Holder an amount equal to the shortfall in Imputation Credits of which
Halders would otherwise have had the benefit The amount payable under this clause
25
{a) 1s due on the Dividend Payment Date of the Dividend Amount and to the extent

paid substitutes for or replaces the corresponding obligation of the Company
under clause 2 4 and
(b} shall be regarded as a variation 1n the rate at which Dividends are calculated

26 Dividends shall rank for payment

{a} n prionty to the nights of helders of Ordinary Shares in respect of dividends or
other Distributions

(b) after the rights of holders of all classes of shares of the Company from time ta
ume other than Ordinary Shares and Preference Shares in respect of dividends or

other Distributions

{c) after all rights of creditors of the Company

CANCELLATION OF DNVIDENDS

31 Wruthout hrmiting section 52(1) of the Comparues Act 1993 but subject to clause 3 2
ﬁ the Board may by notice sent to Holders not later than five Business Days after the
end of a Dividend Period cancel the payment of Dividends i respect of that Dividend
40 Period and all subsequent Dividend Periods until such tune as the Board determines
that Dhvidends should agam be paid

32 The Board may give a Dividend Cancellation Notice 1f

{a) the Board 1s not satisfied on reasonable grounds that after payment of a Dividend
the Company will satisfy the solvency test or

(b} the Board has for any other reason determined 1n 1ts discretion that a Drvidend
or Dividends generally should not be paid

33 If a Dividend Cancellation Notice 1s given any obligation of the Company to pay and
any right of Holders to receive the Dividends referred to in clause 3 1 shall be
cancelled absolutely The Preference Shares are not cumulative

3 4 If a Dividend Cancellation Natice 15 given then for the period from the date of that
Dividend Cancellation Notice until the Company has pard 1n full Dividends for two
consecutive Dividend Periods the Company shall not make any Distribution other
than Dividends
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CAPITAL

Each Holder shall have the right in a hquidation of the Company to payment of the
Issue Price of the Preference Shares held by that Holder and (subject to clause 3)
Dividends payable on those Preference Shares at the date of commencement of
hquidation calculated on a daily basis from the end of the most recent Dividend Period
to the date of commencement of hiquidation That right to payment shall rank

(a) n priornity to all nights of holders of Ordinary Shares

{b) after all rights of holders of shares of the Company from time to time other than
Ordinary Shares and Preference Shares

{c} after all rights of creditars of the Company

VOTING

Holders shall have no right to receive notice of attend or vote at meetings of
shareholders of the Company other than meetings called under clause 7

TRANSFER

The Board may refuse to register a transfer of a Preference Share 1f the Board 1s of the
optnion that the proposed transferee 18 not an appropriate person to hold Preference
Shares

AMENDMENT

Subject to clause 7 2 the rights privileges himitations and conditions attaching to the
Preference Shares may be amended with the approval of

(a) the Board and
{b} all holders of Ordinary Shares and
(c) all Holders

No amendment of the nature referred to in clause 7 | shall be made 1if that amendment
would affect the classification of the Preference Shares under the rules of any
Regulatory Authority

Investment Statement and Prospectus



| Summary of the Trust Deed

Introduction

The following 15 a summary of the principal provisions of the Trust Deed under which
ASB Group (Holdings) and ASB Capital give certain covenants i favour of The New

Zealand Guardian Trust Company Limited and for the benefit of holders of Perpetual
Preference Shares { Holders )

Investors requiring further information should refer to the Trust Deed which 15 available

for inspection at the Companies Office Business and Registries Branch Minmistry of Economic
Development on 1ts website www companies govt nz Where documents aie not available on
the website a request for the documents can be made by contacting the Companies Office
Contact Centre on 0508 266 726 The Trust Deed may also be inspected at the registered
office of ASB Capital or the Trustee as set out m the Directory free of charge during
business hours

Holders are entitled to the benefit of are bound by and are deemed to have notice of the
provisions of the Trust Deed

Capitalised terms that are used in this section but are not defined in this Offer Document
have the meanngs given to those terms in the Trust Deed

General

The Trust Deed 15 dated 30 October 2002 and was entered mnto between ASE Group
{(Holdings) ASB Capital and the Trustee

The Trust Deed creates a security interest over certain assets of ASB Group {Holdings)
(see under the heading Security below} This security interest ranks in priority to a
sccurtty interest granted by ASB Group (Holdings) 1n favour of ASB Capital over the
same assets securing payment of the ASB Capital Loan

Principal Covenants of ASB Group (Holdings)

Dividends
If a Dividend 1s payable and 1s not cancelled by the Board and 1s not paid to each Holder
within five Business Days ASB Group {Holdings) must pay to the Trustee an amount equal

to that Dividend 1n respect of all Perpetual Preference Shares or so much thereof as 15
unpaid However ASB Group {Holdings) has no obligation to make that payment 1f
ASB Bank or Commonwealth Bank has given to ASB Capital a notice to the effect that a
Dividend or Divadends generally should nat be paid

Camtal

If a Liguidation of ASB Capital 1s commenced and all Holders do not within one year after
commencement of that Liquidation receive in respect of their Perpetual Preference Shares
the Issue Price and all Dividends accrued but unpaid thereon ASB Group {Holdings) must
pay to the Trustee that amount or so much thereof as 1s unpaid However ASB Group
{Holdings) 1s not required to make any payment unless and until a Liquidation of ASB Bank
has also commenced
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Security

As security for the payment or dehvery of all amounts that ASB Group (Holdings) 1s or
may become hable to pay ta the Trustee under the Trust Deed { Secured Money ) and the
performance by ASB Group {Holdings) of all of ASB Group (Holdings) other obligations to
the Trustee ASB Group (Holdings) has granted to the Trustee a secunity interest ( Security )
in the ASB Bank Perpetual Preference Shares and all Distributions and other present and
future rights relating to those shares { Collateral ) ASB Group (Foldings) may not dispose
of or permat the disposal of or permit any other security interest (other than the ASB
Capital Security Interest) to attach to any Collateral

ASB Group (Holdings) must comply with all laws deliver all documents of title and
Transfers and do all other things that the Trustee may reasonably require at any tume so that
nerther the Collateral nor the security mnterest under the Trust Deed are adversely affected

Limited Recourse

The rights of the Trustee and Holders to enforce the obligations of ASB Group (Holdings)

are limited in the Trust Deed i the following manner

(a) nether the Trustee nor any Holder may enforce payment repayment or recovery of
any money against ASB Group (Heldings) personally or against any assets or property
of ASB Group (Holdings) other than the Collateral

{b) neuther the Trustee nor any Holder may obtain any judgment or seek or attempt to
obtain any judgment for payment by ASB Group (Holdings) of any money in relation
to any breach of the Trust Deed

{c) the Trustees and each Halder s nghts of recovery agamnst ASB Group (Holdmngs) are
Iimited to the Collateral

Nothing 1n these provisions prevents the Trustee from exercising its security rights in
relation to the Collateral or 1n seeking declaratory or injunctive relief

Distributions

Unul a Default occurs {see under the heading Default below} ASB Group (Holdings) must
apply all Dividends and other Distributions received in respect of the ASB Bank Perpetual
Preference Shares in payment of interest on or repayment of the ASB Capital Loan

After a Default has occurred all Distributions 1in respect of the ASB Bank Preference Shares
will be applied by the Trustee in or towards payment of the Secured Money

Indemnities

ASB Group (Holdings) indemnifies the Trustee and any Receiver for all costs losses and
other labilities (including third party claims) incurred by the Trustee or the Receiver in
relation to the Trust Deed and in exercising any right or recovering any Secured Money

The Trustee and every Receiver or other person appointed by the Trustee are indemnified
out of the Collateral 1n respect of all habtlities and expenses incurred in the execution or
purported execution of the trusts duties powers authorities and discretions of the Trust
Deed other than a ¢laun ansing out of wilful default wilful breach of trust or gross
negligence
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The Trustee 1s not bound to comply with a request or direction of Holders unless the
Trustee has first been indemnified to its satisfaction agamnst all actions proceedings claims
and demands to which it may be rendered hable and all costs charges damages and
expenses which 1t may mncur as a result

Attorney

ASB Group (Holdings) has appointed the Trustee to be its attorney ( Attorney ) with full
power to do anything which ASB Group (Holdings) agrees to do under the Trust Deed and
anythung which 1n the Attorney s opimion 1s desirable to protect the Trustee s mterests
under the Trust Deed

Reports for Trustee

Within three Business Days after each Dividend Payment Date ASB Capital must deliver
to the Trustee a Directors certificate stating whether a Dividend was paid on the Dividend
Payment Date or cancelled prior to the Dividend Payment Date whether a Liquidation of
ASB Capital commenced during the relevant Dividend Period and whether ASB Capital has
complied with the Terms of the Perpetual Preference Shares during the relevant Dividend
Period ASB Capital must also provide the Trustee with capies of any notices or other
commuriications sent by ASB Caputal to Holders

Within 10 Business Days after 30 June and 31 December 1n each year ASBE Group
{Holdings) must deliver to the Trustee a duectors certificate stating whether during the s1x
months prior to that certificate a Default has occurred and whether ASB Group (Holdings)
has complied with 1ts obhigations under the Trust Deed

Rights and Powers of the Trustee

The Trustee may at any time

{a) do all things the Trustee thinks desirable to remedy any default by ASB Group
(Holdings} or to protect the Collateral or the Security

() determine whether or not to enforce the Trust Deed or any other security or right

(c) make any arrangement or compromuse with ASB Group {Holdings) or any other
person which the Trustee thinks fit

The Trustee may invest any money subject to the Trust Deed i any investment whatsoever
The mcome arising from all such investments will until the date of enforcement by the
Trustee of the Security ( Date of Enforcement ) belong to ASB Graup (Holdings)

On or after the Date of Enfarcement the Trustee may apply to the court for an order that
the powers and trusts contained mn the Trust Deed be exercised under the direction of the
court and/or for the appointment of a Recerver of the Collateral and/or for any other order
or direction 1n relation to the execution and admimstration of the powers and trusts
contaned in the Trust Deed The Trustee may approve or oppose any application to the
court made by any Holder

Subject to any direction given by the Holders the Trustee may waive any breach or
anticipated breach by ASB Group (Holdings) of any provision expressed or implied 1n the
Trust Deed on such terms and conditions as 1t deems expedient provided the Trustee 15
satisfied that the interests of the Holders will not be materially prejudiced as a result
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The Trustee has all of the nghis and powers of a trustee provided by law In addition the

Trust Deed gives the Trustee supplementary rights including

(a} the abihity to rely without hability on the advice of a solicitor stockbroker
accountant or other expert

(b)  the ability to rely without hability on any directors certificate of ASB Group
(Holdings)

{c) the abtlity to act without liability 1n accordance with a resolution of Holders

(d) that the Trustee 1s not responsible for subscription money or the application thereof

{e) that the Trustee 1s not respensible for and 1s not required to examune the adequacy
ot title of the Collateral

(f)  the right to assume performance by ASB Group (Holdings) of 1ts obligations and
to exclude implied or constructive knowledge of default (however the Trustee must
exercise reasonable diligence to ascertain whether or not ASB Group (Holdings) has
commutted any breach of the Trust Deed)

{g) the right to exereise its powers 1n 1ts sole discretion {subject to receiving a direction
from Holders)

(h) the right to determine as between the Trustee and Holders any matter under the
Trust Deed

{)  the right to delegate 1ts powers as a trustee and

()} the right to recognuse the interests of Holders as a whole rather than considering
individual Holder s interests

Remuneration

ASB Group (Holdings) will pay the Trustee such remuneration as 1s from time to time
agreed between ASB Group (Holdings} and the Trustee ASB Group (Holdings) wil] also
pay all expenses of the Trustee in connection with the Trust Deed and in connection
with performance by the Trustee of its obligations and non-performance by ASB Group
(Holdings) of its obligations under the Trust Deed

New Trustee

The power of appointing a new Trustee or Trustees 1s vested 1n ASB Group (Holdings)
but no new Trustee may be appointed unless the appointment 1s first approved by a Special
Resolution passed at a meeting of Holders called far that purpose

Default

The Security becomes enforceable if any of the following events aceur

{a) aLiquidation of ASB Capital is commenced

(b) a Liquidatton of ASB Bank 15 commenced

ic) aLigudation of ASB Group (Heldings) 1s commenced

{d) ASB Group (Holdings) fails to comply with any of its obligatians under the Trust
Deed and that failure continues for a period of 20 Business Days after receipt by
ASB Group {Holdings) of notice from the Trustee specifying the failure and requring
that 1t be remedied
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Trustee's Powers on Enforcement

After a Default the Trustee may and must upon being directed to do so by a Special

Resolution (subject to the Trustee s right to call for an mdemmity) require payment from

ASB Group (Holdings) of the sum of the Secured Money due on that date and the aggregate

Issue Price and Dividends accrued but unpaid at that date and may

{a) (whether or not a Receiver has been appormted) exercise any of the powers of a
Recetver or which a person would have if appointed as a Recerver under the Trust
Deed and/or

(b} pay any expenses incurred 1n the exercise of any of such powers out of the revenue
from or proceeds of realisation of the Collateral

Recelver

If a Default occurs or if ASB Group (Holdings) requests the Trustee may appomnt a
Recerver of all or any of the Collateral and must (subject to the Trustee s right to call for
ar andemnity) appoint a Receiver upon bemng directed to do so by a Spectal Resolution

Except as otherwise directed by the Trustee all money from time to time held by the
Recerver which 1s not required to be retained by the Recewver for the perfoermance of
his or her duties will be paid to the Trustee to be held by 1t on the trusts declared
the Trust Deed

Production of Trustee, Receiver and Other Persons

If the Trustee or a Recerver sells any Collateral the Trustee or Recerver are accountable
only for any purchase money which that person actually receives

Persons dealing with the Trustes or any Receiver are not required (in the absence of fraud)
ta enquire whether any power which the Trustee Recetver or person acting on their behalf
has become exercisable or to see to the application of any amount paid to the Trustee
RECEIVEI' or person ﬂCtlﬂg

The Trustee or a Recewver will not be hable to account for any loss as mortgagee 1n
possession and may at any time give up possession of any Collateral Neither the Trustee
nor a Recewver are hable for any losses which may occur in or as a result of the exercise
purported exercise or non exercise of any of their nights powers or remedies

The Trustee may upon such terms as 1t thinks proper jomn in €Xercising its powers with any
other secured creditor of ASB Group (Holdings) and in particular may on such terms as it
thinks proper join in appoinung a comman Recewver of the Collateral or any part thereof
subject to the Trustee retaimng such priority as 1s enjoyed by 1t in respect of the Collateral
but with hiberty for the Trustee to make any arrangements 1t thinks proper for the purpose
of ensuring the respective priorities
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Distribution of Proceeds

All amounts received by the Trustee or any Recerver whether 1n the exercise of that person s
powers or otherwise will be applhed in accordance with the provisions of the PPSA

All money received by the Trustee will be applied

(a) first n or towards payment to the Holders pari passu in proportion to the amounts
owing to them of Dividends payable 1 accordance with Article 4 of the Constitution

(b) secondly in or towards payment to Holders pari passu in praportion to the amounts
owing to them of amounts payable pursuant to Article 4 12 of the Constitution

(c} lastly subject to any other security interests in payment to ASB Group (Holdings)
or such ather person or persons as ASB Group (Holdmngs) or any court on the
application of the Trustee directs

If & Liquidation of ASB Capital has not commenced the Trustee may at its enture discretion
pay to ASB Caprtal any amount held by the Trustee 1f the Trustee 1s satisfied at its
discretion that that amount will be applied by ASB Capital 1n payments to Holders

If the monies at any tume available are less than 1096 of the amounts then owing to Holders
the Trustee may 1n 1ts discretion invest those monies and those investments and the income
from them may be accumulated until the accumulations and any other available funds amount
to a surn sufficient to pay at least 10% of the amounts then owing to Holders

For the purposes of determining the appropriate payment to be made to Holders the Trustee
may rely absolutely on the Register

Alterations to Trust Deed and Meetings

The provisions of the Trust Deed may be added to or varied by ASB Group (Holdings)
and the Trustee ,
(a) without the consent of the Holders 1f the addition or variation
() 13 necessary or destrable to correct a marufest error or to comply with the requirements
of any statute or statutory regulattons or the histing rules of any stock exchange

(1) 1s of a formal or technical nature
(1) in the opimian of the Trustee 15 not or 15 not likely to become prejudicral to the

general nterests of the Holders

(1v) 1n the opinion of the Trustee is 1n the mterests of the Holders to take cognisance
of a modification to the law in New Zealand or

(v) 15 necessary or convenent for complying with any generally accepted financial

|

|

market banking or business practice and 1n the opinion of the Trustee 15 appropriate
and reasonable in all the circumstances and s not and 1s not likely to become
prejudicial to the general interests of the Holders or

{b) with the consent of the Holders given by Special Resolution

Meetings

Meetings of Holders will be convened and held 1n accordance with the Canstitution

ASB Capital must convene a meeting of Holders without delay after recetving from the Trustee
a request 1n writing to convene a meetng of holders specifying the resolution or resolutions
to be considered at that meeting The Trustee has no hability to any Holder or any other
person if the Directors having been requested by the Trustee to canvene a meeting of
Holders fail to do so
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 Statutory Information

Provided 1n accordance with Regulation 3(1) of the
Securities Regulations 1983

As required by Regulation 3(1) of the Securities Regulations the foliowing information sets out (but s not
hmted to) the matters required to be stated by the First Schedule of the Securities Regulations

Main Terms of the Offer
Issuer of Perpetual Preference Shares The name of the wsuer of the Perpetual Preference Shares 1s ASB
Capital Limited ASE Capital s registered office 1s at Level 28 ASB Bank Centre 135 Albert Street Auckland

Brief description of Perpetual Preference Shares The Perpetual Preference Shares are not redeemable
any arcumstances They confer no right to attend or vote at meetings of shareholders except at a meeting of
holders of Perpeiual Preference Shares to consider an amendment to the terms of the Perpetual Preference
Shares or meetings called at the request of the Trustee for the purposes of the Trust Deed They carry the night to
a preferential dividend but the payment of dividends may be cancelled by the Beard Further details of the
terms of the Perpetual Preference Shares are set out under the heading  Terms of Perpetual Preference Shares
on page 17

Maximum number of Perpetual Preference Shares The maximum number of Perpetual Preference Shares
being offered under this Offer Document is 200 million

Issue Price  The 1ssue price is $1 for each Perpetual Preference Share

Details of incorporation of issuer and place file kept ASB Capital was mcerporated 1n New Zealand on
8 October 2002 under the Companies Act ASB Capital s registered number 1s AK1242031 A public file
relating to the incorporation or registration of ASB Capital 1s kept at the Companies Office Business and
Registries Branch Mimstry of Economic Development on 1ts website www compantes govt nz Where documents
are not available on the website a request for the documents can be made by contacting the Companies
Office Contact Centre on 0508 266 726

Principal Subsidiaries of Issuer As at the date of registration of this Offer Document there are no
subsidiaries of ASB Capatal

Drrectorate and Adwvisors
« Names, addresses and qualifications The names of the Directors of ASB Capital and their technical or
professional qualifications (1f any) are set out below

John William Duncan C A
Peter Sidney Hall BSc M Sc
John Antonie te Wechel M A

The Dhrectors of ASB Capital can be contacted at ASB Capital s registered office the details of which are
set out in the Directory

» No bankruptey No Director of ASB Capital has been adjudged bankrupt during the five years preceding
the date of registration of this Offer Document

s Adwisors The names of the auditor and share registrar of ASB Capital and the names of the sharebrokers
and solicitors who have been nvolved in preparing this Offer Document are set out 1n the Darectory
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Restrictions on Directors’ Powers

= The Consutution The Constitution provides that the holder of the ardinary shares in ASB Capatal can at
any time exercise any of the powers of the Board {except that the holder of the ordinary shares cannot
nvahdate any previous act of the Board)

= The Companies Act The Companes Act contains a number of other provisions which could have the
effect or consequence 1 certain circumstances of restricting the powers of the Directors For example the
Pirectors must not allow ASB Capital to enter into any major transactions (as that term 1s defined 1n the
Compames Act) without the prior approval by a majority of 75% of the votes of shareholders of ASB
Capital entitled to vote and voting These provisions are common for any company registered under the
Companies Act

Substantial Equuty Security Holders of Issuer

Names and shares held As at the date of registration of this Offer Document CRA Funding {(NZ) Limited
1s the registered holder of all of the ordinary shares 1n ASB Capital There are no other holders of equity
secunties of ASB Capital at the date of registration of this Offer Docurnent

No shareholder habiity CBA Funding (NZ) Limited undertakes no liabihity in relation to the Perpetual
Freference Shares

Description of Activities of Issuer
Activities  ASB Capital was incorporated on 8 October 2002 ASB Capital has not undertaken any activities from
the date of 1ts incorporation to the date of registration of this Offer Document

Fixed Assets ASB Capital does nat own or lease any fixed assets

Summary of Financial Statements
ASB Capital has not undertaken any business or activity No financial statements for ASB Caputal have been
prepared

Prospects and Forecasts

ASB Capital has been wncorporated for the sole purpose of Issuing the Perpetual Preference Shares ASB Capatal
will invest the proceeds of issue of the Perpetual Preference Shares in a loan to ASB Group (Holdings) The
Drrectors anticipate that ASB Capital will carry on no business or activity other than 1ssuing the Perpetual
Preference Shares holding the loan receving interest on or repayment of the loan and paying dividends on
the Perpetual Preference Shares For the principal risks see the section headed What are my risks? on

page 22

Provisions relating to Instial Flotations
First Offer The Offer 1s ASB Capatal s first offer to the public of equity securities in
ASB Capntal

Directors’ Plans  The Directors anhcipate that ASB Capital will carry on no busmess or activity other than
1ssuing the Perpetual Preference Shares holding the loan to ASB Group (Holdings) receiving interest on or
repayment of the loan and paying dividends to holders of the Perpetual Preference Shares

Use of Proceeds The Directors mtend to lend the proceeds of the Offer to ASB Group (Holdings) The
proceeds of the Cffer will not be applied towards any other undertaking
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| Prospective Financial Information

Introduction and Basis of Preparation

There 15 set out below certain prospective financial information for the period ended 30 October 2003 There 15
no present intention to update this prospective financial mformation or to publish prospective financial
information in the future

This prospective financial information constitutes a forecast as defined by the New Zealand Financial Reporting
Standard 29 Prospective Financial Information  As a forecast the prospective financial mformation has been
prepared on the basis of assumptions as to future events that the Directors reasonably expect to occur associated
with the actions reasonably expected to take place as at the date that the information 1s prepared The prospective
financial information will vary from actual results

The prospective financal information 1s forward looking and should be read 1n conjunction with the assumptions
and sensitivities set out below and other information set out 1n this Offer Document Because such statements
involve nisk and uncertainues actual events may daffer matenally from those expressed or mmplied by such
forward looking statements Factors that could cause such differences include but are not limited to those
chscussed under the heading  What are my risks? on page 22

The forecast financial information has been prepared on the basis of numerous assutnptions ncluding those
particular assumptions set out below This presentation 1s intended to assist potential investors 1n assessing the
validity of the assumptions on which the forecast financial information 15 based and the likelthood of the
assumptions actually occurring It 1s not intended to be a forecast that the assumptions will 1n fact occur and
potenttal investors should be aware that events or outcomes which differ in size or tiuming from those assumed
may occur and may have a postive or negative effect on the prospective financial information In assessing the
reliability of the forecast financial information potential investors should have regard to all of the information in
this Offer Document including information set out under the heading What are my risks? on page 22

Inclusion of the prospective financial information set out below 1s a statement of the present belief of the Directors
and management of ASB Bank as to the forecast financial information for the period ended 30 October 2003 and 15
not a representation by ASB Capital the Directors management of ASB Bank or any other person that the results
set out below will be achieved

ASB Capatal expects to adopt accounting policies consistent with those of the ASB Group of compames

Forecast Statement of Cash Flows

ASB CAPITAL LIMITED
For the year ended 30 October 2003
$ thousands

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash will be provided from

Interest Received 56745
Cash will be applied to

Taxstion Paid 461 6
Net Cash fiows from Operating Activities 52129

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Cash will be applieg to

Due from Related Parties 1500000
Net Cash flows from Invesung Activities {150 000 0)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Cash will be provided from

Contributions from Shareholders 150001 0
Due from Related Parties 461 6
Cash will be applied to

Dividends Paid 56745
Net Cash flows from Financing Activiues 144 788 1
SUMMARY OF MOVEMENTS IN CASH FLOWS

Net Increase in Cash and Cash equivalents 10
Cash & Cash Equivalents at End of Year 10

Investment Statement
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General Assumptions

The prospective financial information 1s based on evenis and conditions as at the date of this Offer Document

and assumes that

= there will be no material change i the general economic or fiscal environment 1n New Zealand

w the ultimate parent company of each of ASB Capital ASB Bank and ASB Group (Holdings) will continue
to be Commonwealth Bank of Australia

Principal Assumptions
The principal assumptions underlying the above statement of cash flows are
® a prospectus registration date of 30 October 2002 [
= anssue of NZ$150 000 000 of Perpetual Preference Shares allotted on 11 November 2002
= a gross quarterly equivalent Dividend Rate of 7 40% (4 958% net of imputation credits) paid quarterly in arrears
w a loan to ASB Group (Holdings) of NZ$150 000 000 with a 7 40%6 gross interest rate 4 9589 after
withholding tax deductions received quarterly in arrears
» all 1ssue costs are paud by ASB Group (Holdings)

Minimum Amount The minimum amount that 1n the apinion of the Directors of ASB Capital must be
raised by the issue of the Perpetual Preference Shares in order to provide for the matters specified in clause
10{4) of the First Schedule to the Securities Repulations 15 $50 million

Acquisition of Business or Subsidiary

ASB Capital has not acquired any business between the date of its incorporation and the date of registration
of the Offer Document As at the date of registration of this Offer Document ASB Capital does not have any
subsidiaries

Securities paid up otherwise than in ¢ash
Since the date of incorporation of ASB Capital ASB Capital has not allotted any equity or participatory
secunties as fully or partly paid up otherwise 1n cash

Option to subscribe for Securities of Issuer
There are no options to subscribe for securities of ASB Capuital that have been granted to or are proposed to
be granted to anyorne by or on behalf of ASB Capital

Appomtment and retirement of Directors

Existing Appointments Directors may be appointed by the holder of the ordmary shares of ASB Capual by
written notice to ASB Capital Two or more persons may be appointed as directors by a single notrce

The e;nstmg Directors of ASB Capital were appointed on incorporation of ASB Capital

Retirement Age ASB Capital has no rules or policies relating to the retirement age of Directors

Directors interests
Remuneration Duirectors are not entitled to remuneration from ASB Capital other than by way of directors fees

Retirement There are no contracts or other provisions relating to retirement benefits or compensation for
loss of office for Directors of ASB Capital

Material Transactions involving Directors ASB Capltal has not entered into any materlal transactions
(as defined 1n the Secunities Regulations) within the five years preceding the date of the registration of thus
Offer Document {and is not to enter into any such material transactions after the date of this Offer
Document) with any of the persons named 1n clause 15(4) of the First Schedule to the Secunties Regulations
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Promoters Interests

Name of Promoters ASB Bank Limted 1s the promoter of the securities being offered Because ASB Bank 1s
the promoter each of the directors of ASB Bank are also promoters The full names of the directors of

ASB Bank are set out bel'ow

Gary James Judd Patrick Anthony Edwards
Graham Hugh Burrett John Antony Hood

Richard Boven Garry Lynton Mackiell
Leslie Gordon Cupper James Michael Robert Syme

The directors of ASB Bank can be contacted at ASB Bank s registered office the detauls of which are set out n
the Directory

Material Transactions involving Promoters No matenal transaction (as defined 1n the Securities Regulations)
has been or 1s to be entered into between ASB Capital and any of the persons named 1n clause 16(2) of the
First Schedule to the Securities Regulations However ASB Capital 15 to lend all of the proceeds of 1ssue of the
Perpetual Preference Shares to ASB Group (Holdings}) which 1s a related company of ASB Bank

Material contracts

ASB Capital has entered into

= asecurity trust deed dated 30 October 2002 between ASB Capital ASB Group (Holdings) and the Trustee
which 1s described under the heading  Surnmary of the Trust Deed on page 42

» aLoan Agreement dated 30 October 2002 with ASB Group (Holdings) under which ASB Capntal has
agreed to lend the proceeds of 1ssue of the Perpetual Preference Shares to ASB Group (Holdings)

® asecurity agreement dated 30 October 2002 with ASB Group (Holdings) which grants security over the
ASB Bank Perpetual Preference Shares to secure amounts payable under the Loan Agreement

Pending proceedings
There are no legal proceedings or arbitratians pending at the date of registration of this Offer Document that
may have a material adverse effect on ASB Captal

Preliminary and 1ssue expenses

Issue Expenses Issue expenses associated with the Offer comprising accounting and auditing fees legal fees
listing fees registry expenses ratings agency fees advertising printing and distribution of this Offer Document
and brokerage fees are estimated to be $3 1 millon and will be paud by ASB Bank and ASB Group (Holdings)

Brokerage Fee Members of the NZSE and approved finaneial intermediaries will recerve a brokerage fee of
1% of the Issue Price in respect of Perpetual Preference Shares allotted pursuant to applications submitted by
investors (other than Institutional Investors) bearing their stamp

A firm allocation fee of 0 50% of the Issue Price wall be payable to members of the NZSE and approved
financial intermedharies 1n respect of Perpetual Preference Shares allotted pursuant to apphcations submitted by
investors {other than Institutional Investors) under firm allocations

Members of the NZSE and approved financial intermediaries will receive a brokerage fee of 0 505 of the Issue
Price in respect of Perpetual Preference Shares allotted pursuant to applications bearing their stamp submitted

by Institutionat Investors (other than those [nstitutional Investors detailed in a distribution exclusion list to be
determined by the Lead Managers and distributed to members of the NZSE)
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Preliminary Expenses There are no preluminary expenses of ASB Capital because all such expenses will be
paid by ASB Bank and ASB Group (Holdings)

Restrictions on i1ssuer

The terms of the Perpetual Preference Shares provide that if dividends on the Perpetual Preference Shares are
cancelled ASB Capital shall not make any Distnibution to shareholders (ather than dividends on the Perpetual
Preference Shares) untit ASB Caputal has paid in full two stalments of dividends on the Perpetual Preference
Shares

The Constitution provides that the only business or activity which ASB Capital may carry on 1s to
{a)  1ssue and maintain 1n existence the Perpetual Preferences Shares

(b)  advance the proceeds of the Perpetual Preference Shares by loan to ASB Group (Holdings)

(c)  do all ather things reasonably ncidental to the activities referred to m paragraphs (a) and (b)

ASB Capital has no power to

{d) carry on any other business or activity or

(e}  apply amounts received by way of interest on or repayment of the loan referred to 1in paragraph (b) for
any purpose other than i payments to the holders of the Perpetual Preference Shares

Clauses 23-38 of First Schedule of Securities Regulations

As at the date of registration of thus Offer Document ASB Capital has not commenced business acquired an
asset or incurred a debt

Places of inspection of dogcuments
The Constitution and the material contracts referred to on page 52 may be inspected at the Companies
Office Business and Registries Branch Mimstry of Economic Development for a fee on its website

www companies govt nz Where documents are not available on the website a request for the documents can
be made by contacting the Companies Office Contact Centre on 0508 266 726 The documents may also be

mnspected at the offices of ASB Capital Level 28 ASB Bank Centre 135 Albert Street Auckland for free -
during normal business hours

- i
Other material matters '
Other than the matters set out elsewhere 1n this Offer Document and 1n contracts entered 1nto 1n the ordmnary -t
course of business of ASB Capital there are no material matters relating to this Offer of Perpetual Preference -
Shares i

Directors Statement

The Directors are of the opimon after due enquiry that during the period between the date of incorporation
of ASB Capital and the date of registration of the Offer Document no crrcurnstances have arisen that wall
matenially adversely affect the

w trading or profitability of ASB Capital

m the value of uts assets or

= 1ts ability to pay its habilities due within the next 12 months

Auditor s report A copy of the auditor s report and statement of findings required by clause 42 of the First
Schedule of the Securities Regulations 1s set out on pages 93 and 94 of this Offer Document Ernst & Young
has given and has not withdrawn its consent to be named 1n this Offer Document as aucitor of ASB Capital
and to the 1ssue of the Offer Document with its audit report included 1n the form and context m which 1t appears
Ernst & Young takes no responsibility for nor has 1t authonsed the 1ssue of any part of this Offer Document
except for the auditor s report While Ernst & Young 1s a professional advisor to ASB Capital neither

Ernst & Young nor any officer ar employee of Ernst & Young 1s intended to be a director officer or employee of
ASB Caputal
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Dwrectors’ Responsibility Statement

# ASB BANK
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

INCORPORATING GENERAL DISCLOSURE STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2002

The Directors are required by the Financial Reporting Act 1993 to prepare
financial statements for the accounting period which comply with Generally
Accepted Accounting Practice (GAAP) and provide such additional information
as reguired to present a true and fair view of the financial affairs of tho
Company and Group

The Directars are required by the Comparies Act 1993 to ensure that proper
accounting records have been kept whuch enable with reasonable accuracy the
determination of the financiat position of the Company and Group

The Directors have a gencral respansibility for taking such steps as are
reasonably open to them to safeguard the assets of the Company and Group
and to prevent and detect fraud and other irregutarities

The Directors have pleasure rn presenting the financial statements and general
disclosures of ASB Bartk Limited for the year ended 30 June 2002

For, and on beihalf of the Board of Dircctors which authorised the 1ssue of the
financial report on 30 July 2002

GJ Juddqc G H Burrett
Charrman Managing Director
30 July 2002

ASB Bank Financial Statements

The financial statements of ASB Bank are set cut below ASB Bank is not the issuer of
the Perpetual Preference Shares, and does not guarantee amounts payable in respect of the
Perpetual Preference Shares For the relationship between ASB Capital and ASB Bank see
under the heading " Relationship with ASB Bank” on page 8
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HISTORICAL SUMMARY OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

$ millions

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

For the year endud 30 June 2002

Interest Income

Interest Expense

Net interest Earnings

Other Income

Total Operating Income

Debt Provisions Expense

Total Operating Income after Debt Provisions
Total Operaung Expenses

Net Surplus befare Taxation
Taxation

Net Surplus after Taxation
Ordinary Dividends

Spectat Dividends

Non Cumulative Preference Dividends

Surplus Retained

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

Total Assets
Imparred Assets
Total Liabilities

Total Shareholder s Equity

2002 2001 2000 1999 1968
1,500 7 14739 10781 9540 11215
992 3 10165 6936 626 4 8018
508 4 457 4 3845 3276 3197
2153 1872 177 4 1370 1211
7237 644 6 5619 464 6 4408
180 1335 114 i28 1089
7057 6311 5505 4518 4299
Mo 3570 3220 2753 267 2
3347 2801 2285 1765 1627
1100 967 784 566 548
2247 183 4 1501 116 9 1079
100 1800 438 227 210

- - - 50 -

- 31 31 31 a

214 7 303 1032 861 838
24,249 6 200217 171795 147089 128968
352 32 162 312 24 4
232168 192020 163326 13966 5 122395
10328 8197 84569 743 4 6573

Investment Statement and Prospectus




STATEMIENT OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE For the year cnded 30 June 2002

Consohdated Parent
$ miflichs Note 2002 2001 2002 2001
Interest Income 2 15007 14739 137147 14181
Interest Expense 3 9923 10165 9889 10108
Net interest Earnings 508 4 457 4 858 407 3
Other Income 5 2153 1872 2553 1892
Total Operating Income 7237 644 6 6411 596 5
Debt Provistons Expense 14 180 135 127 127
Total Operating Income after Debt Provisions 7057 63711 628 4 5838
Total Operating Expenses 6 ano 3510 3739 3410
Salaries and Other Staff Expenses 1825 164 2 1783 161 2
Building Occupancy Expenses 514 502 443 430
Equipment Expenses 233 227 232 225
Information Technology Expenses 400 400 386 379
Other Expenses 738 739 890 164
Net Surplus before Taxation 3347 2801 254 5 2428
Taxation 8 1100 96 7 570 677
Net Surplus after Taxatron 2247 183 4 1975 1751

56

These statements are to be read in conjunction with the notes on pages 60 to 88 and the Auditors Report on page 92
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STATEMENT OF MOVEMENTS IN EQUITY

$ miliions

Total Sharehotder s Equity at Beginming of Year
Net Surplus after Taxation

{Devaluations)

Repayment of Preference Share Capital

Less
Ordinary Divdends
Non Cumnutative Preference Dividends

Total Dvidends

Total Shareholder s Equity at End of Year

For the year cnecd 30 June 2002
Consolidated Parent

Note 2002 2001 2002 2001
8197 8469 7886 8166

2247 1834 197 5 1751

25 (s (7 5) 04 -
- (500 - {500

100 150 0 100 1500

- 31 - 31

9& 26 100 1531 100 1531
10328 8197 9757 886

These statements are to be read 1n conjunction with the notes on pages 60 to 88 and the Auditars Report on page G2
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION For the year cnded 30 June 2002

Consohidated Parent
$ millions Note 2002 2001 2002 2001
ASSETS
Cash and Liquid Assets 10 1057 469 1057 479
Due from Other Banks 11 24958 8310 15110 2179
Investment Securities 12 4840 154 8 - -
QOther Securities 12 18979 26126 1,897 9 26126
Advances 13 19,0319 161735 174380 15026 8
240153 198188 20,9526 17904 3
Less General Provision for Bad and Doubtful Debts 14 73 593 653 579
239440 197595 20887 3 17 846 4
Due from Associates and Subsidianes 15 - 17 16660 12465
Investments in Associates and Subsidiaries 16 01 45 1,429 1 7200
Property Plant and Equipment 17 2005 1950 1188 0g8
Other Assets 18 978 499 450 KF
Deferred Taxation Benefit 19 71 111 84 131
Total Assets 24,249 6 200217 24154 6 199719
Total Interest Farming and Discount Bearing Assets 239104 197723 22434 6 180886
Financed by
LIABILITIES
Deposits and Other Borrowings
' Deposits 20 18 263 2 176189 18,2111 173711 9
_/’] Due to Gther Banks 21 44172 11439 44050 11439
Other Liabilities
Due to Asscciates and Subsidiaries - - 700 2523
QOther Current Liabilities 22 2812 188 3 2376 164 3
229616 189511 229237 189324
Subordinated Debt 23 2552 2509 255 2 2509
Total Liabilities 232168 192020 23,178 9 19183 3
SHAREHOLDER $ EQUITY
58 Contributed Capital - Ordinary Shareholder 24 3231 3231 3231 3231
Asset Revaluation Reserves 25 47 63 109 113
Accumulated Surplus 26 7050 490 3 6417 454 2
Total Shareholder s Equity 1,032 8 8197 9157 7886
Total Liabilities and Shareholder s Equity 242496 200217 24,154 6 1897119
Totaf interest and Discount Bearing Liabiities 22008 9 182219 219549 181722

These statements are to be read in conjunction with the nates on pages 60 to 88 and the Auditors Report on page 92
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS For the year ended 30 June 2002

Consolidated Parent
$ millions Naote 2002 2001 2002 2001
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash was provided from
Interest Received 14514 1442 4 13747 14200
Gther Income Received 2085 1996 2572 1863
16599 16420 16319 16063
Cash was appled to
Interest Paict 9408 9938 9368 986 6
Operating Expenditure 3308 3048 3420 3029
Net Taxation Paid 294 429 157 422
Payments to Related Parties for Loss Offsets 456 275 397 283
13466 13650 1,334 2 13600
Net Cash Flows from Operating Activities 27 3133 2730 2977 2463
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Cash was provided from
Sale of Property Plant and Equipment 02 B0 02 80
Net Decrease / (Increase) in Securities 3612 (586 9} 690 4 619 3)
Due from / {to) Associates and Subsidianes 17 {51 {11329) {963 6)
Sale of Shares in Associates and Subsidiaries 74 - 74 -
3705 (584 0) (434 9) (15749
Cash was applied ta
Net Increase / (Decrease) in
Due from Other Banks (Term} 1,716 9 493 0 1,3437 (107 0}
Advances 28692 17757 24211 13585
Due 1o Associates and Subsicharies - - 182 4 5457
Purchase of Property Plant and Equipment 377 309 368 293
46238 22996 3es40 18275
Net Cash Flows from Investing Activities (4 253 3) {2 883 6) 44189 {3 402 4)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Cash was provided from
Net Increase / (Decrease) n
Deposits 6833 36905 8782 42425
Due to Cther Banks {Term} 37031 {12192) 36909 (12192
Subardinated Debt - 1500 - 150 0
43864 26213 4 5691 31733
Cash was applied to
Dividends Paid 100 1531 100 153 1
Repayment of Preference Share Capital - 500 - 500
100 2031 100 2031
Net Cash Flows from Financing Activities 43764 24182 45591 29702
SUMMARY OF MOVEMENTS IN CASH FLOWS
Net Increase / (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents 436 4 (192 4) 4379 (185 9)
Add Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Year (3597 (167 3) (372 8) (186 9)
Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Year 28 76 7 {328 7) 651 (372 8)
These statements are to be read in conyunction with the notes on pages 60 to 88 and the Auditors Report on page 92
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS For the year ende ¢ 30 June 2002

STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a)

(b)

(c}

(d)

{e)

GH

h)

U]

GENERAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

These financizl statements have been drawn up in accordance with the requirernents of the Companies Act 1993 the Financial Reporting Act
1993 and the Registered Bank Disclosure Staternent (Full and Half Year - New Zealand Incorporated Registered Banks) Order 1998
the reporting entity 15 ASB Bank Limited and its subsiciaries { the Banking Group ) ASE Bank Limited { the Bank ) 15 registered under the
Comparies Act 1993

The measurement base adopted I1s that of histonical cost as modified by the revaluation of certain Property Plant and Equipment and financial
nstruments as identified below

PARTICULAR ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of Consolidation

Assets liabilities and operating results of subsichanes are included m the consolidated financial statements on the basis of financial statements
made up to balance date using the purchase method All material intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated

The results of associate companies are not equity accounted for as ther net surpluses are rebated to shareholders

Income Recognitioh

Interest Income 1s recogrused en an accrual basis either daily or on a yield to maturity basis Early repayment interest adjustments are matched
against the cost of relevant hedging posittons All matenal fee income 15 recogrised in the Statement of Financial Performance when the
service 15 provided 1o the customer

Amortisation of premiums and discounts on financial assets and labilities are included I net Interest earnings Market value adjustments are
in¢luded in Other Income

Expense Recognitton

Al material expenses are recognised In the Statement of Financizl Performanice on an accrual basis Inclugding interest expense either daily or
on a yield to maturity basis

Advances

Advances cover all forms of lending 1o customers iIncluding mortgages coverdrafts personal loans and credit card balances Advanees which
are processed 1n the Bank s Treasury Department are recogrised m the Staterment of Financial Position at therr fair value less accrued interest
which 5 inciuded In Interest Recevable Accrued All other advances are recogmsed in the Statement of Financiat Position at their outstanding
principal balances

Investment Securities

Investment Securities are public and ather debt secunties which were purchased with the intention of holding them for the lang term or untl matunty
Bond securities are recogrised at cost adjusted for the amorbsation of premiums and discounts
imerest income and discounts on other Investment Securities are recognised on an accrual basts
Gams or losses due to changes in market value are only recognised in the Statement of Financial Performance if an Investment Secunity 15 sold

Other Securities

Other Securities are public and other debt securities which were purchased without the mtention of holding them until maturity Such
secunities are recogrised at ther far value with unrealised gains or losses in respect of market value adjustments being recognised
Immediately in the Statement of Financial Performance

Repurchase and Reverse Repurchase Agreements

Securities sold under agreements to repurchase are retaned within the relevant secunty portfolia and accounted for accordingly
The obligation to repurchase 15 recorded as a deposit The difference between the sale and repurchase price represents interest expense and
15 recognised in the Statement of Financial Perfarmance over the term of the repurchase agreement Securities held under reverse repurchase
agreements are recorded as Interest Earming Assets  The difference between the purchase and sale price represents Interest Income and 15
recognised in the Statement of Financial Performance over the term of the reverse repurchase agreement

Due to/from Other Banks

Due to/from Other Banks are categories defined by the nature of the counterparty Assets and labilities withuin this category are generally
recogrised at therr farr value reflectng the nature of the asset or hiability

Asset Quality

Impared Assets consists of nan accrual assets and restructured assets

A non scerual asset 15 any asset for which the Bank will not be able to collect all amounts awing In accordance with the terms of the contract
with the counterparty

A restructured asset 15 any asset which 1s not a non accrual asset and for which

(@)  the cniginal terms have been changed to grant the counterparty a concession that would not otherwise have been avallable due to the
counterparty s difficulties in complying with the original terms and

{b)  the revised terms of the facility are not comparable with the terms of new facilities with comparable risks and

{)  the yield on the asset following restructuning 1s equal to or greater than the Bank s average cost of funds or that a loss 15 not otherwise
expected 10 be incurred
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS For the year endod 30 Junc 2002

Specific Provisians are made and recognised against impaired assets where full recovery of prncipal and interest 15 not considered probable
Interest on these assets is accounted for on a cash basis All receipts are attributed to outstanding interest before being recogrised as
repayment of pancipal

Incorporated in the Specific Provisions are bulk provisions made against statistically managed portfolias

A General Provision for Bad and Doubtful Debts 15 mantaned to cover urudentified possible losses and latent risks inherent in the overall
portfolio of advances and other lending transacticns This 1s assessed having regard to the level of sk weighted credit exposure of on and
off balance sheet assets and a range of cther criteria

Bad debts specifically provided for and recoveries of the same are written off against Specific Pravisions whilst bad debts not specfically
provided for and recoveres of the seme are written off through the General Provision  Amounts required to bring the Provisions to their
assessed levels are recogrised in the Statement of Financial Performance

i Investments in Subsidiaries and Associates
Investments in Subsidiaries and Associates are recognised in the Statement of Financial Position at cost

(ky Property Plant and Equipment

Property Plant and Equipment other than Land and Bulldings are recogrised in the Statement of Financial Position at cost less Accumulated
Depreciation

Land and Buildings are valued to reflect current use The valuations are carmed out by independent registered valuers in May of each year for
all major bulldings and cyclically aver three years for all others The valuers are all Associate Members of the New Zealand Institute of Valuers
and the major valuers are Jones Lang LaSalle Advisory Lmited {Auckland) Perry Heavey & Company Limited (Auckland) and Robisons
(Whangarel) In ight of prevailing economic condiions the Directors have adopted a valuation at or below the ndependent valuation and
the properties are recognised mn the Statement of Financial Posiion at those values with subsequent additions at cost

Changes In valuations are transferred directly to Asset Revaluation Reserves Where such a transfer results in a debit balance in the Asset
Revaluation Reserves the deficit 15 transferred direct to the Statement of Financial Performance and any subsequent revaluation gans are
written back through the Staterment of Financial Performance to the extent of past deficits written off

The cost ar revalued amount of Property Plant and Equipment (exctuding land) less the estmated residual value 1s depreciated over ther
ecencimic lives on a straight e basis The range of economic lives of the major assets are

Buildings 25-100 years
Furriture and Fittings 5-25 years
Other Property Plant and Equipment 2-25 years
Computer Equipment Software and Office Equipment 3-10 years

() Deposits
Deposits cover all forms of funding from customers Including transactional and savings accounts term deposits certificates of deposit and
credit balances on cards Certificates of deposit are recogmised at ther far value Deposits that are processed i the Banks Treasury
Department are recognised in the Statement of Financial Position at their farr value less accrued interest which 1s included In Interest Payable
Accrued All other deposits are recogrised at ther outstanding principal balances

(m) Subordinated Debt

Subordinated Debt 1s recogrised in the Staterment of Financial Pasition at principal plus accrued interest as both components are subordinate
to other habities

(n) Foreign Currencies
All foreign currency monetary assets and Jlabiities are converted at the rates of exchange rulng as at batance dete Foreign currency forward
futures swaps and option positions are valued at the appropriate market rates applying at balance date Unrealised gains and losses ansing
from these revaluations are recognised immediately in the Statement of Financial Performance

o) Taxation
Prowvision s made for taxation after taking advantage of all allowable deductions under current taxation legislation

The hability method (comprehensive basis) of accounting for the taxation effect of timing differences between the accounting treatment and
taxation treatment of certain items has been adopted

Deferred Future Taxation Benefits are only recogrised in the Statement of Financial Position where there Is virtual certainty that the benefit
will be utilised

ip)  Interest Rate Contracts

Interest Rate Futures options and Forward Rate Agreements are used as part of the Banking Group s trading actvities and are also used to
hedge certain assets and habilibes commitments and anucipated transactions Gains and losses on interest rate contracts related to trading
actwities are recognised immediately In the Statement of Financial Performance  Gains and losses related to contracts that are designated and
are effective as hedges are generally deferred and recogrised in the Statement of Financial Performance over the expected remaining Iife of
the hedged item

(@) Interest Rate Swaps
{nterest Rate Swaps entered into for purposes other than trading have the principal objective of managing balance sheet risk To be effective
as hedges the derivatives are identified and allocated aganst the underlying instrument and generally modify the total exposure on that
positon  Such derivative financial instruments are purchased with the intent of being held to maturity Dervatives that are designated and
effective as hedges are accounted for on the same basis as the instruments they are hedging
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMIENTS For the yoar ends d 30 Jine 2002

ry  Financial instruments

BASIS OF RECOGNITION

Assets and liabilities ansing from the revaluation or accrual of interest on off balance sheet items are recognised in the Statement of
Frnancial Positicn

Information on the face value and credit equivalents of off balance sheet items 1s given 0 notes 32 37 38 and 45
The basis for recognising all other financial iInstruments 1s coverad In Individual notes 1o these financial statements

Fair Vatue

Where avalable quoted market prices are used as a measure of far value However for some of the Banks financial instruments quoted
market prices do not exist Where this 15 the case fair values are estimated using present value or other market accepted valuation techniques

The methodolcgies and assumptions adopted are based on the terms and nisk charactenstics of the various financial instruments and include
the following

Cash and Liquid Assets

These assets are short term in nature and the related carrying value 1s equivalent ta therr far value

Investment Securities
Far Investment Secuniiies the estimated fair value 1s based on quoted market prices

Other Securities

For Other Securities the estimated fair value recognised in the Statement of Financial Position 15 based on quoted markel prices which 1s also
equivalent to therr carrying value

Advances

For floating rate Advances the carrying amount in the Statement of Financial Position 1s considered a reasonable estimate of therr fair value
after making altowances for the farr value of non accrual and potential problem loans For fixed rate Advances fair vaiue has been estimated
using discounted cash flow models based on the interest rate repricing of the Advances The discount rates applied in this calculation were
based on current market interest rates for Advances with similar crecit and maturity profiles

Due to/from Associates and Subsidiaries

For Advances and Amounts Due toffrom Assoctates and Subsidiaries the carrying amaunts in the Statement of Financiat Postion are a
reasonable estmate of fair value

Deposits and Other Liabilities

For non interest bearing debt call and variable rate Deposits the carrying amounts in the Statement of Financial Position are a reasanable
estimate of their fair value For other term Deposits farr value was estmated using discounted cash flow models based on the maturity of the
Deposits The discount rates applied in these calculations were based on current market interest rates for similar Deposits with similar maturity
profiles For all other habiities the carrying ameunt in the Statement of Financial Position 1s a reasonable estimate of their far value

Subordmated Debt
For Subcrdinated Debt the estimated far value 1s based on guoted market rates of publicly traded secunities of similar maturity

Off Balance Sheet Iterns

For those off balance sheet items such as Direct Credit Substitutes (including acceptance and endorsement of Bills of Exchange} Trade and
Performance Related ftems and Commitments no secondary market exists and 1t is therefore not practical to obtain fair values for those
Instruments These items have therefore been excluded from fair value calculauons The farr values of Forexgn Exchange and Interest Rate
Contracts were obtained from quoted market prices discounted cash flow models or option pricing madels as appropriate

{s) Statement of Cash Flows

This has been prepared using the direct approach medified by the netting of the cash flows associated with Securities Due ta and from Other

62 Banks Advances Deposits and amounts Due to f from Associates and Substdianies This methed provides more meaningful disclosure as many
of the cash flows are on behalf of the Banks customers and do not reflect the activives of the Bank Cash and cash equivalents consist of
cash and iquid assets used in the day to day cash management of the Bank

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

There have been no matenal changes In accounting palicies Al policies have been applied on a basis consistent with that used In the
prior year

COMPARATIVE DATA

The Interest cost inherent In Foreign Exchange Contracts has been reported on a net basis in Interest Expense The Credit Exposure Guarantee
Fee previously included in Interest Expense 1s now included in Interest Income Accrued Interest Receivable and Payable on Interest Rate Swaps
15 now reported on a net basis in Other Current Liabilities where a legal nght of set off exists

Certain comparative figures for the year ended 30 June 2001 have been reclassified to conform with the current years presentation
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS For the year ended 30 hane 2002

Consohdated Parent
$ millons 2002 2001 2002 2001
INTEREST INCGOME
Advances 1,3477 12002 11910 11946
Investment Securities 367 202 - -
QOther Secunities 1131 162 8 180 162 8
Asscclates and Subsiciaries - o1 625 600
Other 32 06 iz 07
Total interest Income 15007 14739 1,374 7 14181
New Zealand Government and
Local Authonity Securities Income (included above) g4 129 g4 129
Interest Income on Advances includes interest earned on Imparred Assets of $2 Om for cansolidated (30 June 2001 $1 7m) and $1 7m for -

parent {30 June 2001 $1 5m}

Consolidated

Within Investment Secunties (refer note 12) deposits have been set off against interest bearing debentures Accordingly for the year ended
30 June 2002 the Interest Expense of $35 9m (30 June 2001 $32 5m) on those deposits (7 20% p a) {30 June 2001 7 20% p a) has been
set off aganst the debenture interest Inclusive of imputation credis of $53 6m (30 June 2001 $53 6m) (8 74% p a inclusive of imputauon
credits) (30 June 2001 8 74% p a inclusive of imputation creditsy This results 1n net interest earnings of $17 7m (30 June 2001 $20 2m) and
5 included in Investment Securities above of $36 7m {30 June 2001 $20 2m)

Parent

In Due from Assoeiates and Subsidianies (refer note 15) deposits have been set off against redeemable preference shares Accordingly for the
year ended 30 June 2002 the Interest Expense of $35 9m (30 June 2007 $33 5m) on these deposits (7 29% pa ) {30 June 20017 29% p a)
has been set off against the receemable preference share dividend ncome of $35 7m (30 June 2001 $35 9m) {8 74% pa inclusive of
imputation crecits) (30 June 2001 8 74% p a inclusive of imputation credits) This results 1n ret interest earnings of {($0 2m) (30 June 2001
$2 4m) being included In nterest from Associates and Subsidianes

INTEREST EXPENSE

Certificates of Deposit and Issued Paper 106 7 1619 1004 124 2
Retail Term Deposits 3158 32513 3158 3253
Other Ceposits Bearning Interest 5§52 4 5150 5512 512 4
Assaciates and Subsidraries - - 41 346
Subordinated Debt 174 143 174 143
Total Interest Expense 992 3 1016 5 988 9 10108
DISCONTINUED ACTIVITIES

There were no discontinued activities dunng the years ended 30 June 2002 and 30 June 2001

OTHER INCOME

Lending and Credit Facility Related Fees 555 554 §55 554
Other Fees 108 3 92 3 a0 4 780
Net Foreign Exchange Earmings and Commissions 2117 249 270 242
Trading Gains 132 64 130 a1
Rent 59 73 04 14
Cther Income from Associates and Subsidianes - - 190 87
Net Capital Gain/{Loss) 30 01) 25 on
Dividends Receved 07 - 546 125
Other 10 10 09 10
Total Other Income 2153 187 2 25513 189 2
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS For the yodr onded 30 June 2002

Consolidated Parent

$ milons 2002 200 2002 2001
6  OPERATING EXPENSE DISCLOSURES

Depreciation - Buildings 92 96 62 65

Deprecration - Other Assets 209 203 198 189

Operating Lease Rentals 356 342 334 320

Orrectors Fees and Allowances - 04 - 04

Net Losses on Sale of Property Plant and Equipment 02 06 02 04
7 AUDITORS' REMUNERATION

Auditing Services - 01 - 01

Ernst & Young were appainted as auditors of the Banking Group on 24 October 2000 The Group 2udit fee 1s pard by the 8ank s ulumate
parent bank Commonwealth Bank of Australia

No fees for other services were paid to the Bank s auditors during the year (30 June 2001 Nil)

8 TAXATION
Net Surplus before Taxation 3347 2801 254 5 2428
Permanent Differences
Net Capital Gans (30 - (2 5) -
Change in General Provision for Doubtful Debts 120 83 74 81
Exempt Dividend Income - - (89 6} (48 4}
QOther (103) 46 3¢ 28
3334 2930 172 8 2053

The current tax rate @ 33% gives the
Statement of Financial Performance Income Tax Expense 1100 967 570 671

Income Tax Expense 1s comprised of

Current Taxation 106 0 96 4 523 665
Deferred Taxaton 40 03 47 12
1100 967 570 677

9 DIVIDENDS

Qrdinary Dividends

Interim 100 - 100 -
Final - 1500 - 1500
Total Ordinary Dividends 100 1500 100 1500
Non Cumulative Preference Dividends

Interim - 135 - 15
Final - 16 - 16
Total Non Cumulative Preference Dividends - 31 - 31
Total Dividends 100 1531 100 1531
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

$ milhons

CASH AND LIQUID ASSETS

n

Cash and Cash at Bank
Cash in Transit
Demand Balances with Central Banks

Total Cash and Liquid Assets

DUE FROM OTHER BANKS

12

Call
Term

Total Due from Other Banks

SECURITIES

13

Investment Securities

Other Securities

Local Authority Securrties

New Zealand Government Securities
Treasury Bills

Cther Securities

Total Other Securities

For the yoar onded 30 luar 2002

Consolidated Parent
2002 2001 2002 2001
47 2 457 47 2 457
576 12 576 13
09 - 09 -
1057 469 105 7 470
225 747 109 615
24733 7563 1,5001 156 4
24958 8310 15110 2179
484 0 154 8 - -
28 31 28 31
66 4377 66 4377
11738 4933 1178 493 3
17707 16785 1,770 7 16785
1,897 9 26126 1,897 8 26126

As at 30 June 2002 the Banking Group had an investment of $622 7m {$614 2m principal plus accrued interast) {30 June 2001 $622 6m) m
interest bearng debentures The Banking Group had also received a deposit which as at 30 June 2002 amounted to $502 8m (30 June 2001
$467 9m) Both the debentures and the deposit mature in 2005 On maturity the value of the deposit with capitaiised interest will armount tg

$6174 2m (plus accrued interest)

The Banking Group has entered into agreements such that on matunty the debentures wil be used to extinguish the habiity under the
deposit The twe balances have been set off and recognised 1n Investment Securities as the net amount of $119 Om {30 June 2001 $154 8m)

ADVANCES

Loans and Other Recevables
Less Specific Provisions for Bad and Doubtful Debts

Total Advances

19,038 7 161803 17 4441 150329
68 68 61 61
190319 161735 17,438 0 150268
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS For the year cnded 36 June 2002

Cansolidated Parent
$ milions 2002 200 2002 2001
14 DEBT PROVISIONS
General Prowvision for Bad and Doubtful Debts
Balance at Beginning of Year 593 510 579 498
Charged to the Statement of Financial Performance 169 121 116 117
Bad Debts Recovered 37 38 37 38
799 669 732 653
less Bad Debts Written Off 86 76 79 74
Balance at End of Year 713 583 653 579
Specific Provisions for Bad and Doubtful Debts
] Balance at Begnning of Year 68 75 61 68
| Charged to the Statement of Financial Performance
I
New Provisions 30 31 30 28
Less Amounts Recavered 19 17 19 17
’ ! Less Advances Wntten OFf 27 21 27 18
Plus  Increase in Bulk Provisions 16 - 16 -
Balance at End of Year 68 68 61 61
Total Debt Provisions 781 661 714 640
Debt Provisions Expense Charged
to the Statement of Financial Performance
General Proviston 169 121 16 17
Specific Provisians 11 14 11 10
Total Debt Provisions Expense Charged
1o the Statement of Financial Performance 180 135 127 127

As at 30 June 2002 the Specific Provisions were comprised of
(@)  Bulk prowisions of $5 Om (30 June 2001 $4 Om) for both consolidated and parent and
{b}  Provisions relating to non accrual loans of $1 8m (30 June 2001 $2 8m) for consalidated and $1 1m {30 June 2001 $2 1m) for parent

15 DUE FROM ASSOCIATES AND SUBSIDIARIES

Parent

As at 30 June 2002 the Bank had nvested 1n $614 2m (30 June 2001 $614 2m) of redeemable preference shares (accrued interest 1s included
In Other Assets) As at 30 June 2002 the Bank had also receved deposits from various subsiiaries which amounted to $502 8m (30 June
2001 $467 9rm) Both the redeemable preference shares and deposits mature n 2005 Gn maturity the value of the deposits with capitalised
interest will amount to $614 2m {plus accrued interest) (30 June 2001 $614 2m)

As at 30 June 2002 the two balances are recognised in Due from Assoclates and Subsidiaries $71 666 Om {30 June 2001 $1 246 5m) as the net
amount of $111 3m (30 June 2001 5746 3m) as per an offser agreement between the parties

d
6

6
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS For the year endid 30 junr 2002

16 INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES AND SUBSIDIARIES

% Nature of Busthess Balance Date
Associates
Electronic Transaction Services Limited 25 EFTPOS 31 March
interchange and Sett'ement Limited 1 Interchange and Settlement 31 March
Mondex New Zealand Limited 17 Smartcard Operations 37 March
Subsidiaries
ASB Finance Limited 100 Finance 30 June
ASB Investments Limited 100 Funds Management 30 June
ASB Management Services Limted 100 Management and Payment Services 30 June
ASB Nominees Limited 100 Trustee Company 30 Jure
ASE Properties Limited 100 Property and Investment 30 June
ASB Secunities Limted 100 Sharebraking 30 June
ASB Smartcards Limited 100 Investment Holding Company 30 lune
Hiidon Holdings Limited 100 Finance 30 June
Hildon investments Limited 100 Finance 30 June
IDDI {No 1) Limited 100 Finance 30 June
1BDI {No 2} Limited 100 Finance 30 June
1Dl {No 1) Limited 100 Finance 30 June
IDI (No 2) Limited 100 Finance 30 June
Kings Ferry Holdings Limited 100 Finance 30 June
®ings Ferry Investments Limited 100 Finance 30 Jure
Kiwi Home Loans (NZ} Limited 100 Lending 30 June
LB Alpha Finance (Cayrnan) Limited 25 Investment 30 November
MeCaig Investments Limited 100 Finance 30 June
Nettlls Limited 100 Bill Processing 30 June
SH Leck (NZ) Limited 100 Trade Finance 30 June
SilverFern Investrments Limited 25 Finance 31 December

During the year the 10% share of RD1 COM Limited was sold
McCaig Investments Limited was incorporated on 10 Qctober 20071
Hildon Holdings Limited was mncarporated on 22 March 2002
Hildon Investments Limited was incorperated on 25 March 2002

The consolidated financial statements also include the controlled entity Lighthouse Trust as an 1 substance subsidiary Lighthouse Trust was
established on 15 November 2001 and has a balance date of 31 December

LB Alpha finance (Cayman) Limited is included as an 1n substance subsidiary as the 25% shareholding acquired 5 Apnl 2002 represents 75%
of the voting nights

Siverfern Investments Limited 15 included as an in substance subsidiary as the 25% shareholding represents 70% of the voung rights
The day to day management of SilverFern Investments Limited and LB Alpha Finance {Cayman) Limited 1s provided by external parties

The Companes Office has given exemptions for L B Alpha Finance (Cayman) Limited and SilverFern Investments Limited to maintain balance
dates different to that of The Bank
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS For the yoae cnded 20 June 2002

Consohdated Parent

$ millions 2002 2003 2002 2007
17 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Land Freehold 136 148 68 74
Buildings Freehold 95 ¢ 1001 238 275
Leasehald 659 532 60 4 481
less Accurmulated Depreciation 422 335 365 306
1196 119 8 477 450
Other Assets 24686 2154 2313 2037
Less Accumulated Depreciation 1793 1550 1670 1473
673 60 4 643 564
Tatal Property Plant and Equipment 2005 1950 1188 88

Cther Agsets include Computer Equipment Software Office Equipment Furniture and Fittings and Motor Vehicles
No property was mtended for sale as at 30 June 2002 (30 June 2001 Ni) for both consolidated and parent

The total of the latest Government valuations of the consolidated Freehold Land and Buldings amounts to $132 4m (30 June 2007 $132 1m)
Cost of additions subsequent to those valuations amounts to $0 5m (30 June 2001 $0 2m)

18 OTHER ASSETS

Interest Recewvable Accrued 638 242 263 137
Other Current Assets 341 257 187 234
Total Other Assets 979 49 G 450 371

19 DEFERRED TAXATION BENEFIT

Balance at Beginning of Year 11 114 131 143
Net Movements in Timing Differences During Year (4 0) 03) “un n2)
Balance at End of Year 71 111 84 131

The Deferred Taxation Benefit relates to

Specific Provisions for Bad and Doubtful Debts 17 20 14 18
Depreciation 21 21 45 44
Other 33 70 25 69
Total Deferred Taxation Benefit 71 111 B4 131

20 DEPOSITS

Certificates of Deposit and Issued Paper 39018 47021 3,8511 445355
Retall Term Deposits 65393 53774 65393 53774
Other Deposits Beaning Interest 68958 67476 6,894 0 67472
Depasits Not Bearing Interest 926 3 7918 926 7 791 8
Total Deposits 18263 2 176189 18,2111 173Nng
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS For the year ended 30 June 2002

Consohdated Parent
$ mumons 2002 2001 2002 2001
21 DUE TO OTHER BANKS
Call 515 4813 515 4813
Term 43657 662 & 4,3535 662 6
Total Due to Gther Banks 44172 11439 44050 11439
22 OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES
Interest Payable Accrued 156 7 1009 1556 985
Emplayee Entitlements 223 202 223 202
Provision for income Tax 242 110 (50 (1 8)
Trade Accourits Payable and Other Liabilities 780 562 647 474
Tatal Other Current Liabilities 2812 1883 2376 164 3
23 SUBORDINATED DEBT
The subordinated debt 1s subordinate to ali other general liabilities of the Bank All subardinated debt is denominated i New Zealand dollars
$100 Om face value matures 15 December 2008 with a coupon rate of 8 30% until 15 December 2004 after which the rate wili be reset
against the three month Bank Bill benchmark rate The first suborchinated debt 15 callable on 15 Dacember 2004 Another $100 Om face value
matures 30 August 2010 with & coupon rate which 1s reset against the three month Bank Bill benchmark rate This subordinated debt 1s callable
on 30 August 2005 A further 350 Om face value matures 28 June 2011 with a coupon rate which 1s reset against the three month Bank Bill
benchmark rate This subordinated debt s callable on 28 June 2006
All subordinated debt qualifies as Lower Tier Two Capital for Capital Adequacy calculation purposes
24 CONTRIBUTED CAPITAL
323121 300 Crdinary Shares 3231 3231 3231 3231
Total Contnibuted Capital 3231 3231 3231 3231
All Ordinary Shares have egual voting nghts and share equally n dmvidends and surplus on winding up
Cwidends are declared subject n all cases to the applicable Directors resolutions being passed
25 ASSET REVALUATION RESERVES
Total Asset Revaluation Reserves at Beginning of Year 63 - 113 -
{Devaluations) (16) (75 (0 4) -
Transfers to Accumulated Surplus - 138 - 113
Total Asset Revaluation Reserves at End of Year 47 63 109 113
69
26 ACCUMULATED SURPLUS
Total Accumulated Surplus at Beginning of Year 4903 4738 454 2 443 5
Net Surplus after Taxation 2247 183 4 197 & 1751
Less
Ordinary Drvidends 100 1500 100 1500
Neon Cumulative Preference Dividends - 3 - 31
Transfers to Asset Revaluation Reserves - 138 - 113
Total Accumulated Surplus at End of Year 7050 480 3 6417 454 2
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS For the year «nded 30 Jt ne 2002

Consolidated Parent

$ milhons 2002 2001 2002 200
27 RECONCILIATION OF NET SURPLUS AFTER TAXATION

TO NET CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Net Surplus after Taxation 2247 1834 1975 1751

Add Movements in Balance Sheet Items

Interest Recevable Accrued - {Increase) / Decrease (31 6) {13 8) - 19

Interest Payable Accrued - Increase 515 227 521 242

Qther Income Accrued — (Increase) / Decrease (37 124 49 (31

Operating Expenses Accrued - Increase 61 117 20 85

Taxation Balances - Increase / {Decrease) 173 86 16 (2 8)

3986 416 606 287

Add Non Cash Items

Bad and Doubtful Debts 217 173 164 165

Depreciation 301 299 260 254

Capital Gain cn Sale of Shares in Asscciates and Subsidiaries {(30) - 30 -

Net Losses on Sale of Property Plant and Equipment 02 [oF:} 02 06

430 480 396 425

Net Cash Flows from Operating Activities 3133 2730 2977 2463
28 RECONCILIATION OF CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

TO THE STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

Cash and Liguid Assets 1057 46 9 1057 470

Demand Balances Due from Other Banks 225 747 1089 615

Demand Balances Due to Other Banks - (51 5) (481 3) (51 5) (481 3)

Total Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Year 76 7 (359 7) 651 (372 8)
29 IMPUTATION CREDIT ACCOUNT

Balance at Beginning of Year 102 S35 - -

Income Tax Paid 157 320 - -

Imputation Credits Attached to Chvidends Receved 180 176 - -

Less

Transfer to ASB Holdings Tax Group - 48 - -

Imputation Credits Attached to Dividends Paid 317 754 - -

Imputation Credits Transferred (from) / ta Policyholder Credit Account (43) 46 5 - -

Imputation Credits Adjustmenit Due to Change in Sharehalding - 62 - -

Balance at End of Year 165 102 - -

Diwidends paid by resident companies may include imputation credits representing the taxation already paid by the company or tax group on
the surpluses distributed by way of dvidends New Zealand resident shareholders may claim a tax credit ta the value of the Imputation credit
attached to the dividends

The Bank together with its subsidiary companies and a number of associated comparies form a consalidated group for income tax purposes
Accerdingly income tax payments and imputation credit movements are generally reported on a consclidated basis and are available to
shareholders through thewr shareholding in the Bank

POLICYHOLDER CREDIT ACCOUNT

Balance at Beginning of Year 1070 605 = - -
Transfer {to)/from Imputation Credit Account Dunng Year (43) 465 - -
Balance at End of Year 1027 1070 - -

in the consolidated tax group one of the fellow subsidiary compariies (Sovereign Group Limited) 15 a life Insurance company which gives rise
to a tax group Palicybolder Credit Account The balance cf the Policyholder Credit Account 15 available to be transferred back to the Imputation
Credit Account at the discretion of the Directors
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS For the yar <nded 30 June 2002

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES

31

Effective 7 July 2007 the ownership of the bank moved from ASB Group Limited to ASB Group (Holdings) Limited which 15 effectively a 100%
owned subsidiary of Commonwealth Bank of Australa

During the year ended 30 June 2002 the Bank has entered Into or had in piace vancus financial transactions with members of the
Commaenwealth Bank Group and other related parties In all cases these arrangements were conducted on market terms and conditions and
within the Barks appraved palicies Due to the transactional nature of banking 1t 15 the opinion of the Directors that disclosure of total
transacuions processed for the year ended 30 June 2002 did net add any useful iInformation with the exception of

Payments of $0 7m (30 june 2001 $0 2m) were made to Commonwealth Bank of Australia to guarantee repayments to the bank anc ns
subsidiaries for obligations aganst default by a counterparty referred to In note 43

Payments of $35 8m $1 6m $6 5m and $1 7m (30 June 2001 $11 4m $7 1m $8 9m and Nil) were made to the ASE Group (Lfe) Limited
Group of Companies ASB Group Limited CBA NI Subsidiaries and ASB Holdings Limited respectively for the utilisation of tax losses

A payment of $5 6m {30 June 2001 $4 4m) was made to ASB Group {Life) Limited Group of Companies for the ornignation of mortgages
A payment of $4 4m (30 June 2001 $4 Om) was made to IT Fleet NZ {No 2) Limited for leasing of equipment

Dealings with Directors and Parties Related to Directors Payments of $0 5m (30 June 2007 $0 6m} were made to Research Solutions Limited
for services rendered

The Bank provides adminustrative functions for some subsidianes and related companies for which no payments have been made

Related Party Balances 2002 2001

$ milans Assets Liabilities Assets Liatihties
Commonwealth Bank Group {100% Ultimate Sharehalder) 301 4,509 6 4386 788 8
ASB Holdings Limited (100% Ulbmate New Zealand Shareholder) - 340 - -
ASB Group Limited (Subsidiary of Commonwealth Bank Group) o9 160 03 193
ASB Group (Life} Limited Group of Comparies

{Subsidiary of Commonwealth Bank Group) 40 2725 03 2319
ASB Bank Provident Savings Fund (Staff Superannuation Scheme) - - - 01

ASB Unit Trusts {Funds Manager) 23 606 5 17 4175
ASB Retirement Savings Scheme (Easyplan) 17 516 29 591

ASB Superannuation Scheme {Master Trust) - 20 - 14
Body Corporate 135 Albert Street (Management of ASB Bank Centre) 02 03 02 05
IT Fleet NZ (No 2) Limited (Subsichary of Commanwealth Bank Group) - 08 - 08

RD1 COM Limited (Previously an Associate) - - 12 -

Colorual Group Sovereign Group Limited and Soveretgn Group of Compares have been amalgamated into ASB Group (Life) Limited Group
of Companies Comparatives have been restated

Off Balance Sheet Items

The Bank has in place interest rate swaps with Commonwealth Bank Group with a face value of $4562 7m (30 June 2001 $545 8m} currency
swaps with a face value of $849 3m {30 June 20071 $39 9m) and forward exchange contracts with a face value of $672 5m {30 Jure 2001
$1 698 8m) The Bank has forward exchange contracts with ASB Unit Trusts with a face value of $72 8m (30 June 2001 $77 7m) ASB
Retrement Savings Scheme with a face value of $743 8m {30 June 2001 $138 3m) and with ASB Master Trust Scheme $5 7m {30 June 2001
$3 6m) The Bank has foreign exchange contracts with the ASE Group {Life) Limited Group of Companies with a face value of $75 9m {30
June 2001 £92 4m} The Bank has interest rate swaps with AS8 Group Limited of $83 Om {30 June 2001 $63 Om)

LOANS TO/DEPOSITS FROM DIRECTORS

Loans to Directors

As at 30 June 2002 the aggregate amount of loans to Directors of the Banking Group therr spouses dependants Lrusts or entities in which
any of these persens have an interest of not less than 10% was $2 9m {30 June 2001 $3 5m)

All loans were made in the ordinary course of business of the Bank and on an arms length basis and on ngrmal commercial terms and
conditions  The Interest rates applicable are between 6 7% and 18 75% Terms of repayment range between vaniable fixed rates up to two
years and interest only foans all of which have been in accordance with the Bank s lending policies

Dwectors R Boven G H Burrett PS Hall GJ Judd JSN Mitchell TJ Preston JMR Syme CG Wakefield LA Wocd § T Wright

Deposits from Directors

The aggregate amount payable by the Bank to Directors as at 30 June 2002 was $1 2m (30 June 2001 $2 4m) The amount payable consists
of savings cheque term deposit and cash management balances all lodgements beng made and conducted on an arms length basis mn the
normal course of business and on commercial terms and conditions

Interest rates are from 0% to 5% terms of repayment ranging between on call and 80 day terms
Dwectors R Baven GH Burrett JW Duncan PA Edwards PS Hall JA Hood GJ Judd JMR Syme LA Wood ST Wnght
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Tor the year ended 30 june 2002

Consohdated Parent
2002 2001 2002 2001
Notional Credit Notional Credit Notional Credit Notional Credit
$ milhions Amount Equivalent Amount  Equivalent Amount Equivalent Amount  Equivalent

32 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND CREDIT COMMITMENTS

() Commitments
Lending Commitments Approved

but Not Yet Advanced 34289 3888 289890 2466 36517 450 2 28486 2219
Capital Expenditure Commitments 136 136 116 116 136 136 113 113
Other Commitments - - 26 26 - - 26 26
Total Commitments 34425 402 4 29122 2608 35653 463 8 28825 2358

{6} Contingent Lrabilities

Guarantees 511 257 803 518 512 258 269 8 146 6
Standby Letters of Credit 540 540 314 314 540 540 314 KA
Other Arrangements Entered Into 272 73 387 136 272 73 387 136
Total Contingent Liabihities 1323 870 150 4 96 8 1324 871 3399 1916

{c)  The Bank guarantees ASB Finance Limited s issue of Promissory Notes ASB Finance Limited had $50 8m outstanding Promissory Notes as at
30 June 2002 (30 June 2001 $246 5m} The Promissory Note guarantee has been included in (b} above

{d) The Bank nas a loyaity programme in connection with the use of its credit cards The Bank only expects a portion of cutstanding points to be
redeemed The dollar value of outstanding points that have not been provided for as at 30 June 2002 1s $2 4m {30 June 2001 $2 3m) andis
ncluded in () abave

Consohdated Parent
$ millions 2002 2001 2002 2001
33 LEASING COMMITMENTS

The follewing non cancellable operating lease

commitments existed at the end of the year

Within One Year of Balarce Date 336 334 310 301
Between One and Two Years 26 6 246 234 221
Between Two and Five Years 527 520 446 431
Cver Five Years 598 724 460 561
Total Leasing Commitments 1727 182 4 1450 1514

¥
72
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS For the yoar Lnded 30 June 2002

Consclidated
Exchange Assets Liabilities Net Open
Rate NZ $m NZ $m Positions
MATERIAL FOREIGN CURRENCY BALANCES
Matertal Assets and Liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
recognised In these financial staterments and Net Open Positions were
As at 30 June 2002
Us Dollar 0 4883 3970 5032 65
Australian Dollar 0 8653 4276 12730 347
Sterling 0320 6235 477 ot
Japanese Yen 58 3871 169 21439 (136)
EUROC 04944 06 195 04
Canadian Dollar 07384 02 12 ©1
As at 30 June 2001
US Dollar 04036 377 164 6 {25 8)
Australian Dollar 0 7966 778 9911 18
Steriing 0 2866 47 300 06
Japanese Yen 50 0540 154 29639 05
Deutschmarks 09339 - 14 (16)
EURC 04775 - 101 41
Hong Kong Dollar 37480 20 02 @1
Canadian Dollar 06150 - 14 on
Parent
Exchange Assets Liabilities Net Open
Rate NZ $m NZ $m Position
As at 30 June 2002
Us Dollar 048383 348 4910 65
Austrahan Dollar 0 8653 131 12222 347
Sterling 0320 3s 268 01
Japanese Yen 58 3871 169 21439 {13 6)
EURO D 4944 06 195 04
Canadian Dollar 07384 02 12 en
As at 30 June 2001
US Daliar 04036 377 164 6 (25 8)
Australian Dollar 0 7966 208 9330 18
Sterling 02866 47 300 06
Japanese Yen 50 0540 154 29639 03
Deutschmarks 09339 - 14 (186)
EURD 04775 - 101 41
Hong Kong Dollar 31480 20 02 01
Canadian Dollar 06150 - 14 on

Differences between total monetary assets and total monetary habilities in indmdual currencies are covered by contracts with other parties
and/or are controlled within internal palicy imits
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS For the year endod 30 June 2002

2002 2001
Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
3 milhons Amount Value Amount Value
35 FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
Consolidated
Balance Sheet Items
Cash and Liguid Assets 1057 106 7 469 469
Due from Other Banks 24958 24958 8310 8310
Investment Securities 484 0 5030 154 8 164 7
Other Securies 18979 18979 26126 26126
Advances 19,0319 18,988 3 16 173 5 16 209 3
Due from Associates and Subsiciaries - - 17 17
Other Assets 979 979 499 499
Deposits 18 263 2 18256 5 176189 176289
Due to Other Banks 4,417 2 4,417 2 11439 11439
Suhordinated Debt 2552 2556 2509 2509
Parent
Balance Sheet ltems
Cash and Ligquid Assets 1057 105 7 470 479
Due from Other Banks 1,511 0 1,511 0 2179 2179
Other Securities 18979 1897 9 26126 26128
Advances 17,4380 17,398 2 15026 8 15062 3
Due from Assaciates and Subsidianes 16660 1,685 0 12465 12565
Other Assets 450 450 371 371
Deposits 182111 18,204 4 17371 ¢ 173819
Due to Other Banks 44050 44050 11439 1143¢
T, Dug ta Associates and Subsidraries 700 700 2523 2523
-t Subordinated Debt 2552 2556 2509 2509
o Off Balance Sheet Items
. # *b,
R There are no fair values for Direct Crecht Substitutes Trade and Performance Related ltems and Commitments as no secondary market exists
T Refer to note 45 for details of Fair Values of Derivative Financia! Instruments
N\
g 36 FINANCIAL REPORTING BY SEGMENTS
The Bank operates predominantly in the banking industry within New Zealand Notes 39 and 40 show the geographical distribution of credit
exposures and funding within New Zealand
74
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

£ milhons

INTEREST RATE REPRICING SCHEDULE

For the year ended 30 Junc 2002

As at 30 June 2002

Monetary Assets
Cash and Liquid Assets
Due from Other Banks
Investment Securities*
Other Securites
Advances

Other Menetary Assets

Total Monetary Assets

Monetary Liabilities
Deposits

Due to Other Banks
Other Current Liatyliuies
Subordinated Debt

Tetal Manetary Liabihties
Weighted Average interest Rate on Liabiltties)

Off Balance Sheet Items

As at 30 June 2001

Monetary Assets

Cash and Liguid Assets

Oue from QOther Banks

Investmant Securites*

Other Securities

Advances

Due from Associates and Subsidiaries
Other Monetary Assets

Total Monetary Assets

Monetary Liabilities
Deposits

Due to Other Banks
Other Current Liabilities
Subordinated Debt

Total Monetary Liabihities
(Weighted Average Interest Rate on Liabiities)

Off Balance Sheet Items

*Offset arrangernent and imputaticn Credits result in a norminal Interest rate that does not reflect the actual value of the investment (refer note 2)

Consolidated
Weighted
Average 0-6 6-12 1-2 2-5 Over 5
Interest Rate Months Months Years Years Years Total
%
- 1057 - - - - 1057
78 15458 - - 6000 3500 24858
44 3640 - - 1200 - 4340
60 18627 201 35 39 77 1,867 9
74 106614 3.3468 36558 1,367 9 - 190319
- 979 - - - - 979
146375 33669 3,6593 20018 3577 231132
39 16,7332 1,082 6 2812 166 2 - 18,2632
54 4,417 2 - - - - 44172
- 2812 - - - -~ 2812
66 1551 - - 1001 - 2552
21,586 7 10826 2812 266 3 - 232168
382% 474% 627% 6 70% -
68757 (16197) (3,1408) (17352) {380 0) -
- 469 - - - - 469
74 2310 - - €000 - 8310
156 - - - 1548 - 154 8
57 21250 3590 130 1109 3g 28126 r-
79 91552 25727 27229 16951 276 161735 ' ;
19 17 - - - - 17 !
- 499 - - - - 499 -
116067 29317 27368 25608 314 198704 h
75
41 150709 13056 1627 797 - 176189
52 11439 ~ - - - 11439
- 188 3 - - - - 188 3
73 150 5 - - 100 4 - 2509
17 553 6 13056 1627 1801 - 192020
4 18% 282% 6 56% 774% -
59147  (21030) (22428) (15270) 41 9) -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS For the year ondtd 30 June 2002

Parent
Weighted

Average 0-6 6-12 1-2 2-5 Over 5

$ millions Interest Rate Months Months Years Years Years Total
%
37 INTEREST RATE REPRICING SCHEDULE (Contmnued)

As at 30 June 2002
Maonetary Assets
Cash and Liguid Assets - 1057 - - - - 1057
Due from Other Banks 55 15110 - - - - 15110
Investment Securities* - - - - - - -
Other Securities 60 18627 201 35 39 77 18979
Advances 77 9,667 5 33468 36558 7679 - 17,4380
Due frem Associates and Subsidianies 55 15547 - - 1113 - 16660
Other Maonetary Assets - 450 - - - - 450
Total Monetary Assets 147466  3,3669 36593 8831 77 22,6636
Monetary Liabilities
Deposits 39 166811 1,082 6 2812 166 2 - 18,2111
Due to Other Banks 54 44050 - - - - 44050
Due to Associates and Subsidianes L 700 - - - - 700
Gther Current Liabiities - 2376 - - - - 2376
Subeordinated Debt 66 1551 - - 1001 - 2552
Total Monetary Liabitities 215488 10826 2812 266 3 - 23,1789
(Weighted Average Interest Rate on Liabiities) 381% 4 14% 627% 6 70% -
Off Balance Sheet Items 52739 (1,4341} (27838) (676 0) (380 0) -
As at 30 June 2001
Monetary Assets
Cash and Liquid Assets - 470 - - - - 470
Due from Other Banks 51 2179 - - - - 2179
Other Securities 57 21250 3590 139 1109 38 261286
Advances 79 83628 23811 25695 16858 276 150268
Due from Associates and Subsidianes* 65 10917 - - 1548 - 12465
Other Monetary Assets - 371 - - - - 3
Total Monetary Assets 118815 27401 25834 19515 314 191879
Monetary Liabilities
Deposits 41 158239 130586 1627 797 - 173719
Due to Cther Banks 52 11439 - - - - 11439
Due to Assaciates and Subsidiaries 39 25213 ~ - - - 2523
Other Current Liabilities - 164 3 - - - - 164 3
Subordinated Debt 73 1505 - - 100 4 - 2509
Total Monetary Liabilities 175349 13056 1627 1801 - 191833
{(Weighted Average Interest Rate on Liabiiities) 447% 282% 6 56% 774% -
Off Balance Sheet Items 55833 (19333 {21243} 1{14838) (419 -

*Offset arrangement and Imputation Credits result in a norinal interest rate that does not reflect the actual value of the investment {refer note 2)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS For the year endtd 30 une 2002

Consclidated Parent

$ millions 2002 2001 2002 2001

CAPITAL ADEQUACY

Capital

Tier One Capstal

Issued and Fully Paid up Ordinary Share Capital 3231 3231 3231 3231

Revenue and Similar Reserves at Beginning of Year 4903 473 8 4542 4435

Current Year s Accumulated Surplus 2147 165 1875 106

Total Tier One Capital 1,028 1 8134 964 8 7172

Tier Two Capital (Upper}

General Provision for Bad and Deubtfil Debts 713 593 653 579 _El

Asset Revaluation Reserve 47 613 109 113 . ”
e

Total Tier Two Capital (Upper) 760 656 76 2 692 ¥
$i

Tier Two Capital (Lower) i

Term Subordinated Debt 2552 2509 2552 2509

Total Tier Twa Capital (Lower) 2552 2509 255 2 2509

Total Capital 13593 11299 12962 1097 3

Risk Weighted Exposures

Total Balance Sheet Exposures 12,625 7 10842 4 13618 2 112797

Total Off Balance Sheet Exposures 3917 3740 455 7 3487

Total Risk Weighted Exposures 13,017 4 112164 140739 11628 4

Tier One Capital expressed as a percentage

of Total Risk Weighted Exposures 7 90% 7 25% 6 86% 6 68%

Total Capital expressed as a percentage

of Total Risk Weighted Exposures 10 44% 1007% 9 21% 9 44%
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS For the year endod 30 June 2002

Conselidated
Risk
Princtpal Risk Weighted
Amount Weught Exposure
$ milhons % $ mulhions
38 CAPITAL ADEQUACY (Continued)
Risk Weighted Exposures
As at 30 June 2002
Balance Sheet Exposures
Cash and Short Term Claims on Government 1,244 8 - -
Long Term Claims on Government 596 2 10 596
Claims on Banks 25633 20 5127
Claims on Public Sector Entities 1038 20 208
Clams Secured by Residential Mortgages 15 560 4 50 77802
Other 4,252 4 100 4,252 4
Total Balance Sheet Exposures 243209 126257
fexcludes General Provision for Bad and Doubtful Debts)
Credit Credit Average Risk
Principal Conversion Equivalent Counterparty Weighted
Amount Factor Amount  Risk Weight Exposure
§ millions % $ millions % $ rmillions
Off Balance Sheet Exposures
Direct Credit Substitutes 544 100 54 4 100 54 4
Commitments with Certain Drawdown 136 100 136 100 136
Underwriting and Sub underwriting Facilinies - 50 - 100 -
Transaction Related Contingent ltems 568 50 284 100 284
Short Term Self iquidating Trade Related Contingencies 210 20 42 100 42
Other Commitments to Prowde Financial Services Which
Have an Oniginal Matunity of One Year or More 7717 50 3888 57 2209
Other Commitments with an Qriginal Matunty of
Less Than One Year or Which can be Unconditionally
Cancelled at any Time 26513 - - - -
Market Related Contracts (current exposure)
Foreign Exchange Contracts 66794 34 2256 24 537
Interest Rate Contracts 200616 03 660 25 165
Total Off Sheet Exposures 3317
78 Total Risk Weighted Exposures 13017 4
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS For the yoar ended 30 June 2002

Consohdated
Risk
Principal Risk Weighted
Amount Waeight Exposure
$ millions % $ millons
38 CAPITAL ADEQUACY {Continued)
Risk Weighted Exposures
As at 30 June 2001
Balance Sheet Exposures
Cash and Short Term Claims on Government 876 4 - -
Long Term Claims on Government 1040 10 104
Claims on Banks 20990 20 4158
Claims on Pubiic Sector Entitres 730 20 1486
Claims Secured by Residenual Mortgages 130815 50 65308
Other 318668 180 38668
Naon Risk Weighted Assets 03 - -
Total Balance Sheet Exposures 200810 10842 4
(excludes Generai Prowsion for Bad and Doubtfui Debts)
Credit Credn Average Risk
Principal Conversion Equivalent  Counterparty Weighted
Amount Factar Armount Risk Weight Exposure
$ millions % $ millions % $ rnillons
Off Balance Sheet Exposures
Direct Credit Substitutes 547 100 547 100 547
Commitments with Certain Drawdown 142 100 142 100 142
Underwnting and Sub underwnting Facilities g0 50 45 100 45
Transaction Related Contingent ltems 67 4 50 337 100 337
Shart Term Self iquidating Trade Related Contingencies 193 20 39 100 39
Other Commitments to Provide Financial Services Which
Have an Qriginal Maturity of One Year or More 4932 50 246 6 71 1890
Other Commitments with an Onginal Maturity of
Less Than One Year or Which can be Unconditionally
Cancelled at any Time 24048 - - - -
Market Related Contracts (current expostire)
Foreign Exchange Contracts 85243 29 246 5 23 559
Interest Rate Contracts 132509 06 751 24 181
Total Off Balance Sheet Exposures 3740
Total Risk Weighted Exposures 11216 4
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS For the yoar caded 40 June 2002

Parent
Risk
Principal Risk Weighted
Armount Weight Exposure
$ millions % $ millions
38 CAPITAL ADEQUACY (Continued)
Risk Weighted Exposures
As at 30 June 2002
Balance Sheet Exposures
Cash and Short Term Claims an Government 12448 - -
Long Term Claims on Government 246 2 10 246
Claims on Banks 15650 20 3130
Claims on Public Sector Entities 103 8 20 208
Clams Secured by Residenual Mortgages 15,600 6 50 78003
Other 54595 100 54595
Total Balance Sheet Exposures 242199 136182
{excludes General Provision for Bad and Doubtfui Debts)
Credit Credit Average Risk
Princtpal Conversion Equivalent Counterparty Weighted
Amount Factor Amount  Risk Weight Exposure
$ millions Y% $ millions % $ millions
Off Balance Sheet Exposures
Direct Credit Substitutes 544 100 544 100 544
Commutments with Certain Drawdown 136 100 136 100 136
Underwriting and Sub underwriting Faciites - 50 - 100 -
Transaction Related Contingent ltems 569 50 285 100 285
Short Term Self hquidating Trade Retated Contingencres 210 20 42 100 42
Other Commitments to Provide Financial Services Which
Have an Onginal Maturity of One Year or More aco 4 50 450 2 68 3038
Other Commrtments with an Onginal Maturity of
Less Than One Year or Which can be Unconditicnally
Cancelled at any Time 26513 - - - -
Market Related Contracts (current exposure)
Foreign Exchange Coniracts 53554 30 159 4 22 351
Interest Rate Cantracts 199491 03 653 25 161
Total Off Balance Sheet Exposures 4557
80 Total Risk Weighted Exposures 140739
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CAPITAL ADEQUACY (Continued)

Risk Weighted Exposures
As at 30 June 2001

Balance Sheet Exposures

Cash and Short Term Clains on Government
Long Term Claims on Governmenit

Claims on Banks

Claims on Public Sector Entities

Claims Secured by Residenual Mortgages
Other

Non Risk Weighted Assets

Total Balance Sheet Exposures
{excludes General Provision for Bad and Doubtful Debts)

Off Balance Sheet Exposures

Direct Credit Substitutes

Commitments with Certain Drawdown

Underwriting and Sub underwnting Facilities
Transaction Related Contingent ltams

Short Term Self hquidating Trade Related Contingencies

Other Commitments to Prowde Financial Services Which
Have an Onginal Matunty of One Year or More

Other Commitments with an Onginal Maturity of
Less Than One Year or Which can be Unconditionally
Cancelled at any Time

Market Related Contracts (current exposure)
Foreign Exchange Contracts
Interest Rate Contracts

Total Off Balance Sheet Exposures

Total Risk Weighted Exposures

For the year ended 30 june 20042

Parent
Risk
Principal Risk Weighted
Amount Weight Exposure
% milhons % % millans
876 4 - -
1040 10 104
14859 20 297 2
730 20 146
130655 50 65328
44247 100 44247
03 - -
200298 112797
Credn Credit Average Risk
Principal Conversion Equivalent  Counterparty weighted
Amount Factor Amount Risk Weight Exposure
£ milhons % $ milions % $ milions
547 100 547 100 547
139 100 138 100 139
90 50 45 100 45
2569 50 1285 26 337
193 20 38 100 39
4438 50 2218 74 164 3
24048 - - - -
79243 31 2435 23 569
130937 06 739 24 178
3487
11 628 4
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS For the yoar ended 30 lune 2002

Consolidated Parent
$ mihons 2002 2001 2002 2001

33 CONCENTRATIONS OF CREDIT EXPOSURES

Concentration by Industry

Agricultural Forestry and Fishing 2,028 2 15818 2,026 4 15818
Government and Public Authorities 2533 B16 2533 B16
Financial Investments and Insurance 63578 517425 66551 45133
Utilties 196 1 204 5 196 1 2045
Transport and Storage 1693 748 1651 748
Heusing 12,982 5 108638 114885 108659
R Persanal 3094 2908 3094 2908
] Other Commercial and Industnal 16129 156338 1,3998 14771
L( : Total Credit Exposures by Industry 239095 197736 224937 190898
_— Cash and Liquid Assets Investments n Associates and Subsidianies Property Plant and Equipment Other Assets and Deferred Taxaton Benefit
i = have been excluded from the above analysis on the basis that any credit exposure s insignificant or nil Unrecogrised credit equivalent
w«r"“”] exposures as at 30 June 2002 of $781 Om consolidated and $775 6m parent (30 June 2001 $679 2m consoiidated and $744 8m parent} are
l also excluded
i

' ! Concentration by Geographic Regicn

Auckland 12098 2 102533 12,8200 108492
Northland 12717 540 2 7277 640 2
Walkato 1,167 6 869 3 8915 804 3
Rest of North island 27259 24151 24926 22625
South Island 22805 19388 20212 16446
Overseas 319 628 319 573
Uncategorised 48777 35841 3,408 8 28317
Total Credrt Exposures by Geographic Region 239095 197736 22,4937 190838

Uncategorised exposures includes Due from Qther Banks investment Securities and Other Secunties The Directors consider that the nature of
these assets make them inappropriate to categonse geographically Unrecogrised credit equivalent exposures are excluded as per the industry
segmentation above

82
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS For the yoar «nded 40 June 2002

Consolidated Parent
£ milhons 2002 2001 2002 2001

CONCENTRATIONS OF FUNDING

Concentration by Industry

Agricultural Forestry and Fishing 206 6 207 4 206 6 207 4
Government and Public Authorties 400 7 3369 400 7 3369
Financial Investments and Insurance 10422 6 83711 10,369 9 83153
Utihties 875 96 4 875 S6 4
Transport and Storage 128 471 128 ar7
Personal 10673 4 88547 10673 4 88547
Other Commercial and Industrial 11,1320 10995 1,1320 11049
Total Funding by tndustry 22935 6 190137 228829 18967 3

Funding comprises Deposits Subordinated Debt and Due to Cther Banks

Concentration by Geographic Region

Auckland 9732 4 82485 97427 84488
Northland 640 4 5771 640 4 5771
Walkato 2818 2047 2818 2047
Rest of North Istand 15138 18161 1,513 8 18161
South Island 994 6 8317 994 6 8317
Overseas 11740 12386 11740 12386
Uncategorised 8,598 6 60970 8,5356 58503
Total Funding by Geographic Region 22,935 6 190137 22,882 9 18 967 3

Uncategarised funding includes Certificates of Deposit and Issued Paper Subordinated Debt and Due to Other Banks The Directors consider
that the nature of these habilities make them inappropriate to categorise geographically
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the yoar ended 30 June 2002

Consolidated Parent

$ milions Non Accrual Restructured Total Non Accrual  Restructured Total
41  ASSET QUALITY

Impaired Assets (Pre provisions)

As at 30 June 2002

Balance at Begnning of Year 2 - nz2 285 - 285

Additions 67 - 67 77 - 17

less Amounts Wnitten Off 27 - 27 27 - 27

Balance at End of Year 352 - 352 335 - 335

As at 30 June 2001

Balance at Beginning of Year 162 - 162 126 - 126

Additions 171 - 171 177 - 177

Less  Amounts Wnitten Off 21 - 21 18 - 18

Balance at End of Year 312 - 312 285 - 2856

2001 $0 7m) for parent
The Bank does not have any material assets acquired through enforcement of secunty

& milhons

Interest foregone 15 the amount of income that would have been recorded if interest accruals on specific loans had not been set to nil tis
estimated based on market rates The 30 June 2002 figure 1s estimated at $1 0m {30 June 2001 $0 7m) for consolidated and $0 9m {30 June

Past Due Assets (Pre provisions)

Balance at Beginming of Year
(Deletions) / Additions
Less Amounts Written Off

Balance at End of Year

Consohdated Parent
2002 2001 2002 2001
634 399 596 329
(28 1) 311 (27 4) 341
86 76 79 T4
267 634 243 596

42 MANAGED FUND AND OTHER
FIDUCIARY ACTIVITIES

Total Unitholders Funds as at 30 June 2002 were $757 Om (30 June 2007 $580 6m)

The Bank provides banking and administration serwices for the Scheme
Total Members Funds as at 30 Jung 2002 were $326 7m (30 June 2001 $340 5m}

The Bank provides banking and administration services for the Scheme
Total Members Funds as at 30 June 2002 were $16 5m (30 June 2001 $12 Imy)

Investment Statement and Prospectus

ASB Investments Lirmited 1s the manager for the AS8 Unit Trusts An independert Trustee firm s appointed for each Unit Trust who monitars
comphance with the requirements of the Trust Deeds The Bank provides banking and administration services for the Unit Trusts
ASB Investments Limited 1s also the Trustee for the ASB Easyplan Retremnent Savings Scheme Specialist Fund Managers have been appointed

ASE Investments Limited 1s also the Trustee for the ASB Superannuation Master Trust Scheme Specialist Fund Managers have been appointed

The Bank provides Imited custochal services refating to holding Certificates of Deposit on hehalf of clents



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS For the year ended 10 func 2002

43 CONCENTRATION OF CREDIT EXPOSURES
TO INDIVIDUAL COUNTERPARTIES
Peak Credit Exposures for the Three Months ended 30 June
Number of Non Banks Number of Banks
Percentage of Shareholders Equity 2002 2001 2002 2001
10-18 2 4 - 8
20-29 3 - 4 3
30-39 2 2 3 2
43 - 49 - 1 3 5
50 -59 - - - -
60 - 69 - - - -
76-79 - _ 1 1
Balance Date Credit Exposures
Number of Non Banks Number of Banks
Percentage of Shareholders Equity 2002 2001 2002 2001
10-19 2 4 - 5
20-29 3 - 4 3
30-39 2 2 3 2
40 - 49 - 1 3 5
50-59 - - - -
B0 - 69 - - - -
70-79 - - i 1
The basis of calculation 1s the greater of actual credit exposures or internal imits Exposures are shown net of speaific provisions and gross of
set offs Percentages are calculated using the Banking Groups equity at balance date
A portion of the Balance Date Credit Exposure itermsed as 70 79% of Shareholder s Equity (30 June 2001 70 79% of Shareholder s Equity) has
been guaranteed by the banks ulumate parent Cormmanwealth Bank of Australia Thus Exposure 15 itemised as a 70 79% Peak Credit Exposure
{30 June 2007 70 79%) As at 30 June 2002 the amount of this guarantee was $435 0m (30 June 2001 $435 Om} The above tables have
been compiled using gross exposures and do not include any guarantee arrangements
Consohdated
Peak Exposure Balance Date
for the Three Months Exposure
ended 30 June
Percentage Percentage
of Tier One of Tier One
$ milhons Capnial 5 rilhons Capital
44 CREDIT EXPOSURES TO CONNECTED PERSONS
AND NON BANK CONNECTED PERSONS
2002 All Connected Persons* 4657 45 3% 463 7 45 1%
Non Bank Connected Persons 52 0 5% 32 03%
2001 Ali Connected Persons* 4020 49 4% 4019 49 4%
Non Bank Connected Persons 27 0 3% 26 03%

*Credit Exposures 1o Connected Persens include exposures to the Bank s ulumate parent bank Commonwealth Bank of Australia
As at 30 June 2002 this amount was $425 2m (30 June 2001 $365 Om)

The basis of calculation 1s the greater of actual credit exposures or internal brmits Exposures are shown net of specific provisions and gross of
set offs Percentages are calculated using the Banking Groupss equity at balance date

The Banking Group has a contingent exposure to its ulumate parent Commonwealth Bank of Australia arising from nisk lay off arrangements
in respect of credit exposures to counterparties As at 30 June 2002 this amounted to $435 0m (30 June 2001 $433 Om)

The Banking Group has no Specific Provisions provided against credit exposures to connected persans
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

$ milhons

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

For the year coded 30 June 2002

As at 30 June 2002

Foreign Exchange Rate Related Contracts
Trading
Other than Trading

Total Foreign Exchange Rate Related Contracts

interest Rate Related Contracts
Trading
Other than Trading

Total Interest Rate Related Contracts

As at 30 June 2001

Fareign Exchange Rate Related Contracts
Trading
Other than Trading

Total Foreign Exchange Rate Related Contracts

Interest Rate Related Contracts
Trading
Other than Trading

Total Interest Rate Related Contracts

Consohdated Parent

Notional Credit Fair Notional Credit Fair
Value Egquivalent Value Value Equivalent Value
1,141 8 242 (22 3) 11418 242 (22 3)
55376 201 4 {93) 42136 1352 {88)
66794 2256 (316) 53554 1594 @11
8,1031 14 (12) 8,103 1 74 {12)
119585 586 (54 8) 11 8460 579 (54 5)
20,061 6 660 (56 0) 199491 653 (55 7)
10778 417 (37) 10778 417 (3"
74465 2048 349 5846 5 2018 349
85243 2465 312 79243 2435 N2
42804 42 06} 42804 42 086
89705 709 (630) 88133 697 (63 5)
132509 751 (636) 130937 739 64 1)

Foreign Exchange Rate Related Contracts other than Trading have been transacted by the Barking Group to hedge Foreign Currency funding
Losses on contracts are offset by gains on the underlying Foreign Currency funding

Interest Rate Related Contracts other than Trading hedge interest rate risk associated with the Banking Groups Statement of Financial
Position The unrecognised gains on these contracts at 30 June 2002 was $3 Om for both consalidated and parent (30 June 20071 $8 6m
consolidated and $8 1m parent) calculated as the fair value loss of $54 Bm consolidated and $4 5m parent {30 June 2001 $45 Bm consolidated
and $45 3m parent) less the net payabie recogrised in the Statement of Financial Position of $57 8m consolidated and $57 5m parent (30 June

2001 $54 4am for both consolidated and parent)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS For the ye ar ended 30 June 2002

146 RISK MANAGEMENT POLICIES

Introduction

The Bank 1s committed to the managerment of nisk to achieve sustainability - of service employment and surpluses - and so takes on contrelled
amounts of nsk when considered appropriate

The primary nsks are those of credit market {currency Interest rate equity} hquidity and operational risk

Trie Bank § nisk management strategy 15 set by the Board of Directors via the Risk Committee Implementation of the nsk management strategy
15 the responsibility of the Managing Director Day to day management 1s the furction of the Executive Management Com mittee a committee
of semor managers responsible for the pnncipal dwisions of the Bank and chared by the Managing Director The Executive Management
Committes 13 assisted by a number of specific committees including the Asset and Liability Management Committee ( ALCO ) focusing on
liquidity and interest rate risks the Executve Credit Commuttee focusing on credit nisk and a nurnber of ather tactical committees

In addiion to high level involvement in the management of nsk the Bank has also put i place the management structure and information
systems to manage indvidual nsks has separated monitorng tasks where feasible and subjects alt material systems to regular internal audit
Periodic reviews of all risk management systems are undertaken by internal audit and in respect of market and liquidity sk by the Banks
ulumate parent bank the Commoenwealth Bank of Austraiia

Credit Risk

Credit nisk s the potentiat nsk of loss arising from the fallure of a debtor or trading counterparty to honour fully any financial or centractuat
obligation

Credit risk principally arises within the Bank from its core business in providing lending facilities Credit risk also arises from the Bank assuming
conungent liabilities taking equity participations participating i financial market transacticns and assuming underwriting commitments
The Bank 15 selective in targeting credit nisk exposures and avoids exposures to any high risk area

The Bank has a comprehensive clearly defined credit policy for the appraval and management of all credit nsk wcluding risk to ather bank
and related counterparties Intra day and term credit nsk managerment 15 not differentiated

Lending standards and criteria are clearly defined into different busimess sectors for all Bank products The Bank relies prmanly on the integrity
of the debtor or counterparty and ther abiity to meet ther obhigations to the Bank Except for major corporate/bank counterparties of strong
investment standing {and a non material amount in very short term exposures other customer sectors) the Bank requires security cover
within loan to security valuation margins set down in the Bank s policy

Industry and progduct concentrations are managed within estaplished guidelines and hmits. Maximum aggregated exposure imits also apply for
any debtor or trading counterparty Credit nsk 1s strongly monitcred and reviewed with regular independent internal Inspections being
undertaken to test the qualty of the credit exposures comphance with policy and the effectiveness of management controf Non comphance
with credit palicy 1s reparted to the Board of Directors through the Risk Committee

Currency Risk

Currency nisk results from the mismatch of recognised and unrecogrised foreign currency assets and labilities These mismatches can anse from
the day to day purchase and sale of foreign currency from trading positions taken from deposit and lending actity m foreign currencies and
from offshore funding by the Bank

The Bank moenitors and manages this risk through its Treasury Department Mismatches and the contingent nisk asscciated with any mismatch
are reported dally Limits both intra day and overmight are set on the basis of past exchange rate volaulity to ensure the maximum exposure
to Ipsses from an adverse mavement N exchange rates (s known to agreed statistical confidence fevels

Adherence to hmits 15 monitored by an independent department within the Bank

Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risks anse from holding assets and habiliues Including off balance sheet instruments which may mature or reprice in different
pericds

The Bank reduces interest rate nsk by seeking to match the repricing of assets and labiities This 15 achiaved by changing the mix of assets and
Yiabilities through marketing and pnicing Imtiatives by buying and seliing long term securities and through the use of derivatives such as interest
rate swaps and forward rate agreements In managing this nsk the Bank seeks to actueve a balance between reducing risk to earrungs and
market value from adverse interest rate movements and enhancing net interest income through correct anticipation of the direction and extent
of interest rate changes

Overall strategic direction 15 provided by ALCO which meets monthly On a day te day basis interest rate nisk 1s monitored and managed within
the Treasury Department

For market sensitive nsk daily reports of positions and potenual loss amounts are produced based on past interest rate valatiity to ensure the
maximurn loss from an adverse movernent In interest rates 1s known to agreed statistical confidence levels

Risk associated with non market sensitive assets and liabilities while also monitored daily 15 primarily managed by way of weekly reviews by
Treasury and monthly reviews by ALCO Gap analysis and gap limits provide the day to day management tool while regular simulation of Bank
actwity analysis of market value and stress tests provide the key management information and himits
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS For the ye ar cnded 30 June 2002

RISK MANAGEMENT POLICIES {Continued)

Future net interest earnings are regufarly estimated employing existing interest rates rates 1% above and below current levels and rates based
on historical rate analysis The Bank manages the known and assumed repricing characternistcs of its assets and liabilities as well as future
COMMmItMEnts 1o put the Bank In a position to benefit from anticipated interest rate movements and to mit the rsk of adverse interest rate
movements

Two major imits are imposed The sensitivity to interest rate changes must be such that expected net interest earnings under different interest
rate scenaros remain within a set percentage of the central forecast and similarly market value remains within a set percentage of capital
These imits are set by the Board of Directors and monitored by ALCO

Repricing rusmatches the simulation results and a stress test on the market value of the Banks assets and llabihties including dervatives are
reported monthly to ALCO and the Board of Directors aiong with associated hmits

Equity Risk

Equity risk results from the repricing of equity investments held by the Bark This 1s not a matenal risk to the Bark A formal equity risk policy
approved by the Risk Committee 15 1n place Under this policy trading in equities 1s not permittecd

Liquidity Risk

Management of liquidity risk 15 designed to ensure that the Bank has the ability to generate or obtain sufficient cash or its equivalent in a imely
manner and at a reasonable price to meet ts financtal commitments on a daily basis

The Bank manitors this sk pnmarily by forecasting future dally cash requirements  The Bank manages this risk by holding a pool of readily
tradable investment assets and deposits on call or mawring within seven days with figh credit quality counterparties to provide for any
unexpected patterns in cash movements and by seeking a diverse and stable funding base

Specifically the Bank sets targets for funding from its customers both personal and business through the branch network and its Treasury
Department The Bank imits funding from each source of short term hquid instruments The Bank mantains a portfolio of hguid assets
equivalent 1o 14 20% of total deposits

Operational Risk

A formal reporting structure and policy appraved by the Board of Directors for the management of operational risk 15 in place Under this
policy processes and pracuces for the igentfication montoring measurement and day to day management of operational fisks have
been established

Accordingly heads of alf business units and specialist support functions have clearly defined roles and responsibilities to ensure that the
operational risks inherent in all business activities have been identified measured and recorded

A formal programme 1s n place for reporting back to the Risk Committee and Board of Directors on the measurement and management of
operational risk within the Banking Group

Internal Audit

The Banking Group maintans an independent Internal Audit function which 15 ulimately accountable to the Board of Directors through the
Managing Director and Board Audit Committee

Internal Audit provides an independent assurance and consulting service designed to assist the Banking Group in achieving its objectives by
bringing a systematic and disciphned approach to improving the effectiveness of nisk management systems the framework of cantrols and
governance processes Operational comphance financial and systems audits of all areas of the Banking Groups operations are undertaken
based on an assessment of nsk

The Audit Committee meets on a reguiar basis to consider the Bank s financial reporting nternal control and corporate governance 1ssues It
reviews the intenm and annual financial statements the activities of the internal and externat auditors and monitors the relationship between
management and the external auditors
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ADDITIONAL DISCLOSURES Far the year ondi o 40 June 2004

30 June 2002

DETAILS OF INCORFORATION

The Bank 1s a company incorperated under the Companies Act 1955 on 16 August 1988 and s registered under AK398445 The registered
office of ASB Bank Limited 1s Level 28 ASB BANK Centre 135 Albert Street Auckiand The Bank was re registered under the Companies Act
1993 on 30 June 1995

ULTIMATE PARENT BANK

The ultimate parent bank of ASB Bark Limited 1s Comemonwealth Bank of Austraha { CBA ) itsregustered office being Level 5 48 Martin Place
Sydney NSW Austraha

CBA 15 required by the Austrafizn Prudential Regulation Authority ( APRA ) to meet minimum Total Capital Adequacy requirements of 8 0%
of Risk Weighted Assets in compliance with the Basle framework As at 30 June 2002 CBA exceeded APRA minimum requirements with Tier
Ore Capital being 6 76% of Risk Weighted Assets and Total Capital being 9 16% of Risk Weighted Assets

GUARANTEE ARRANGEMENTS

The Commonwealth Bank of Australia does not guarantee repayment of any obligations of the Bank or its subsidiaries

DEALINGS WITH DIRECTORS

There have been no dealings with Directors or parties related ta the Directors on terms ather than in the ordinary course of business Refer to
Note 31 for outstanding balances with Directors

All Directors are required to table all passible conflicts of interest at the Board of Directors meetings and are required to abstain from any vote
on those proceedings The Bank complies with all requirements of the Companies Act 1893 in terms of registers and natices for Directors
conflict of interest

Communications addressed to the Directors should e sent to

Level 28

ASB BANK Centre

135 Albert Street

Auckland

New Zealand

CONDITIONS OF REGISTRATION - ASB BANK LIMITED

The regustration of ASB Bank Limited as 2 registered bank 1s subject to the following conditions
That the Banking Group complies with the following requirements

«  Capial of the Banking Group 1s not less than 8% of risk weighted exposures

+  Tier One Capital of the Banking Group is not less than 4% of nsk weighted exposures

+  Capital of the Banking Group 15 not less than NZ515m

That the business of the Banking Group consists of or substantially consists of the borrowing and lending of money or the provision of other
financial services or both

That aggregate credit exposures (et of specific provisions and gross of set off} of the Banking Group to all connected persons do not exceed
75% of the Banking Group's Tier One Capital and that withiy this Imit aggregate credit exposures (net of specific provisions and gross of
set off) to non bank corinected persons do not exceed 15% of the Banking Groups Tier One Capital

That the Beard of the registered bank contains at least two independent Directors 1n this context an independent Director 15 a Director who
15 not an employee of the registered bank and who 15 not a director trustes or employee of any holding company of the registered hank other
than ASB Group {Holdmgs) Limited or any other entity capable of controling or significantly nfluencing the registered bank

That the charperson of the Banks Board of Directors Is not an employee of the registered bank

That the Bank s constaution does not permit the Bank s Directors to act in the interests of any halding company of the registered bank where
1o do so would corflict with the interests of the Bank in New Zealand to the detriment of creditors

That a substantial proportion of the Bank s business i1s conducted in and from New Zealand
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ADDITIONAL DISCLOSURES For the ye of ¢ nded 30 June 2002

CREDIT RATING

As at 30 june 2002 the ratng of AA was assigned 1o the Banks long term New Zealand dollar debt The rating was given by Standard &
Poors {Australia) Pty Limited

On 4 October 2000 following Commonweaith Bank of Australia assuming 100% ownership the Bank s ratng was upgraded from A+ 10 AA-

Rating Scale Explanation

AAA Rated entities have an extremely strong capacity to pay interest and repay prnncipal 1IN a
umely manner

AA Reted entities have a very strong capacity to pay Interest and repay principal in a timely manner

A Rated entities have a strong capacity to pay interest and repay principai m a timely manner but
may be more susceptible to adverse effects of changes in circumstances and econormic
conditions than higher rated entities

BBB Rated entities have an adequate capacity to pay interest and repay principal in a timely manner
but are more likely to be weakened by adverse changes in circumstances and econcmic
conditions than hugher rated entities

BB B CCC CCand C Rated entities are regarded as having predominantly speculatve characteristics with respect 1o
the capacity to repay interest and principal BB indicates the least degree of speculation and
C the tughest

o] Rated entities are in default The rating is assigned when nterest or principal payments are nat
made on the date due or when an insolvency petition or a request to appoInt a recemver 1 filed

Plus {+) or Minus {-) The ratings from AA to CCC may be modfied by the addition of a plus or minus sign to
g Y Y P 9
shaw relative standing within the major rating categories

MARKET RISK EXPOSURE

The Market Risk Methedology 1s intended to attnbute a dollar value amount to the market risk a registered bank 1s exposed to based on the
structure of Its Balance Sheet positions using the process prescribed by the Reserve Bank of New Zealand

The Markst Risk Exposures have been prepared on the basis of actual exposLres

Consohdated

2002 2001

Peak Exposure Exposure Peak Exposure Exposure

for the three months as at for the three months as at

$ mithons ended 30 June 30 June ended 30 June 30 June
Aggregate Interest Rate Exposure 215 264 233 194

{as % of Balance Date Equity) 27% 26% 29% 2 4%
Agoregate Foreign Currency Exposure 34 34 24 24

(as % of Balance Date Equity) 03% 03% 03% 0%
Aggregate Equity Exposure - - - -
{as % of Balance Date Equity) - - - -
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{ Directors’ Statement

After due enquiry by the Directors it is each Director’s opinion that for the year ended 30 June 2002

» the Bank complied with the conditions imposed by the Reserve Bank of New Zealand under section 74 of the
Reserve Bank of New Zealand Act 1989 and

m credit exposures to connected persons were Not contrary to the interests of the Banking Group and

s the Bank had systems imn place to adequately monttor and control the Bankmng Groups credit risk
congentration of credit risk 1nterest rate nisk currency risk equity nsk liqudity sk and other matenal
business risks and that those systems are bemng properly apphed

After due enquiry by the Directors 1t 1s each Director s opimon that as at the date of this disclosure statement
» the disciosure statement contamns all the information required by the Registered Bank Disciosure Staterment
(Full and Half Year - New Zealand Incorporated Registered Banks) Order 1998 and

» the disclosure statement 1s not false or misleading

The chisclosure staternent 1s signed by or on behalf of all the Directors
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| Auditor’s Repo rt 2l ERNST & YOUNG

Auditor's Report to the Shareholder of ASB Bank Linted ( the Bank }

We have audited the financial statements and the financiaé information in the suppiementary Information on pages 56 to 88 and 90
The financial statements provide information about the past financial performance and cash flows of the Bank and the Bank and its
subsidiaries ( Banking Geoup ) for the year ended 30 June 2002 and ther financial position as at that date The supplementary
information contamns that information required by clauses 12(3} and 12(4) of the Registered Bank Disclosure Statement (Full and
Half Year - New Zealand Incorporated Registered Banks) Order 1998 (the Order )

This information is stated 1n accordance with the accounting policies set out on pages 60 to 62

Directors Responsibilities

The directors are responsible for the preparation of

B financial statements In accordance with cause 12(1) of the Order which glve a true and fair view of the financial position
of the Bank and Banking Group as at 30 June 2002 and of thelr financlal performance and cash flows for the year ended
an that date

® supplementary information n accordance with clause 12{3} of the Order which gives a true and fair view of the matters
to which it relates and

W supplementary information n accordance with clause 12(4} of the Order which comples with Schedules 7 and 8 of the Order

Auditor's Responsibilities

In accordance with clause 15(1) of the Order 1t 15 our responsibility to express an independent opion on the financial statements and
supplementary information presented by the directors and repoct our opinion 1o you

Basis of Opirnuon
An audit includes examiming on a test basis evidence relevant to the amounts and disclosures i the financial statements and
supplementary information [t also includes assessing
W the significant estimates and judgements made by the directors 1n the preparation of the financial statements and
supplementary information and
®  whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the Bank and Banking Group s circumstances consistently applied and
adequately disclosed

We conducted our audit in accordance with generally accepted audiung standards 1n New Zeatand We planned and performed our
audit so as to obtam all the information and explanations which we considered necessary 1n order to provide us with sufficient
evidence to give reasonable assurance that the financial statements and supplementary financal information are free from material
musstatements whether caused by fraud or error In forming our opuuon we also evaluated the overall adequacy of the presentation of
information m the financsal statements and supplemertary financial information

We provide some information technology assurance services to the Bank

Unquabfied Opimon
We have obtamed all the information and explanations we have required

In our opinicn
B proper accounting records have been kept by the Bank and Banking Group as far as appears from our examination of
those records and

®m  the financial statements on pages 56 to 88
®m  comply with generally accepted accounting practice i New Zealand and
®  give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Bank and Banking Group as at 30 June 2002 and theirr
financial performance and cash flows for the year ended on that date and
B the supplementary financial information included within the financial statements has been prepared in accordance with
® the guidelines 1ssued pursuant to section 78(3) of the Reserve Bank of New Zealand Act 1989 or any Conditions of
Registration and
®  the books and records of the Bank and Banking Group and
® the supplementary financial information disclosed in accordance with clause 12(3) of the Order gives a true and fair view
of the matters to which it relates and
®  the supplementary financial information on page 90 disclosed in accordance with clause 12{4) of the Order complies with
Schedules 7 and 8 of the Order

Our audit was completed on 30 July 2002 and our unqualified opinion 15 expressed as at that date

ém + Ernst and Young Chartered Accountants

Auckland New Zealand
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' Auditor’s Report

i” ERNST& YOUNG 41 Shortland Street Telephone

PO Box 2146 International

Auckland Fax

New Zealand [nternational
DX

30 October 2002

Board of Directors
ASB Captal Limited
PO Box 35
AUCKLAND

Dear Durectors

Thus report 1s 1ssued 1n respect of the public offer by ASB Capital Limuted { the Company ) of
up to 200 mullion perpetual preference shares in the Company 1n terms of the Prospectus to
be dated on 30 October 2002

Directors’ Responsibilities

The directors are responsible for the preparation and presentation of the forecasts of the
Company for the pertod ending 30 Qctober 2003 including the assumptions on which the
forecasts are based as required by clause 10 of the First Schedule to the Securities
Regulations 1983 ( the First Schedule )

Auditor's Responsibilities
We are responsible for reporting 1n accordance with clause 42(2) of the First Schedule on
the forecasts for the period ending 30 October 2003

This report has been prepared for inclusion n the Prospectus for the purpose of meeting the
requirements of clause 42 of the First Schedule We disclaim any assumption of
responsibility for rehance on this report or the amounts mcluded 1n the forecasts for any
other purpose other than that for which they were prepared In addiion we take no
responsibility for nor do we report on any part of the Prospectus not mentioned 1n thus report

Other than 1n our capacity as auditor we have no relationship with or interest in the
Company

Basts of Opinion

We have conducted our audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards in
New Zealand We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all the information and
explanations which we considered necessary i order to provide us with sufficient evidence
to give reasonable assurance that the forecasts are free from material misstatements
whether caused by fraud or error

We have examined the forecast to confirm that so far as the accounting policies and
calculations are concerned they have been properly compiled on the footing of the
assumptions made or adopted by the directors of the Company and are presented on a basis
consistent with the accounting policies normally adopted by the Company The assumptions
relate to future events

09 377 4790
+64 9 377 4790
09 309 8137
+64 9 309 8137
CP24092
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- Auditor’s Report continued

Ell ERNST & YOUNG

Unqgualified Opinion
We have obtained all the mformation and explanations we have required

In our opimion
(a) proper accounting records have been kept by the Company as far as appears from our
examination of those records and

{b) the forecasts on page 50 so far as the accounting policies and calculations are concerned
have been properly compiled on the footing of the assumptions made or adopted by the
directors of the Company set out on page 51 and are presented on a basis consistent with
the accounting policies normally adopted by the Company

Actual resuits are likely to be dufferent from the forecast financial mformation since
anticipated events frequently do not occur as expected and the variation could be material

Accordingly we express no opinion as to whether the financial forecasts will be achieved
We completed our work for the purposes of this report on 30 October 2002 and our

unguahfied opimon 1s expressed as at that date

Yours faithfully
é/v»az‘: ¥

Erpst and Young Chartered Accountants

Auckland New Zealand
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Glossary

In this Offer Document unless the context
otherwise requires

Application Form
means the application form attached to
this Offer Document

ASB Bank or the Bank means
ASB Bank Limited

“ASB Bank Perpetual Preference Shares
means the perpetual preference shares
1ssued by ASB Bank to ASB Group
(Heldings)

ASB Capital
means ASB Capital Limited

ASB Group (Holdings)
means ASB Group (Holdings) Lurited

Benchmark Rate
on any day means the rate per annum
expressed on a percentage yield basis and
rounded up to the nearest two decumal
places which 1s

{(a) the average of the bd and offered
swap rate displayed at or about 1lam
on that day on page FISSWAP (or any
successor page) of the Reuters monitor
screen for an interest rate swap with a
one year term Or

(b) 1f a rate 1s unable to be determined in
accordance with paragraph {a) oraf
ASB Capital forms the view that the
rate so determined 15 not an accurate
reflection of market rates the average
of the mean and td offered swap
rates quoted by three registered banks
in New Zealand ather than ASB Bank
at or about llam on that day for an
interest rate swap with a one year term

“Board
means the board of directors of ASB Capital

Business Day
means any day other than a Saturday
Sunday or a statutory public holiday in
New Zealand

Commonwealth Bank Subsidiary
means CBA Funding (NZ) Limited or
any other wholly owned subsidiary
of Commonwealth Bank {which 15 not
ASB Bank or a subsidiary of ASB Bank) to
which CBA Funding (NZ} Limited
assigns 1ts rght to buy the Perpetual
Preference Shares

Closing Time
means 5 00pm on 9 December 2002 or
such other time and date as
ASB Capital may select

“Commonwealth Bank
means Commonwealth Bank of Australia

“Companies Act
means the Companies Act 1993

Constitution
means the current constitution of
ASB Capital

Directors
means the directors of ASB Capatal

Directory
means the directory on page 104

Distribution
has the meaning set out in the Comparues Act

Dividend Rate
means 1in respect of the period until the
first Dividend Reset Date the rate referred
to under the heading Instial Dividend
Rate on page 5 and in respect of the
period after the first Dividend Reset Date
the rate referred to under the heading

Subsequent Drvidend Rates on page 5

Dividend Rate Set Date
means the Business Day immedaately
following the Closing Time

Dividend Reset Date
means 15 November 2003 and each
subsequent 15 November orif any such
day 1s not a Business Day the next
Business Day
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Institutional Investor
means a professional New Zealand based
fund manager who manages money on
behalf of thurd parties and 1s approved by
ASB Capital in its discretion

Issue Price
1s NZ$1 00 per Perpetual Preference Share

Listing Rules
means the listing rules of the NZSE

Loan Agreement
means the loan agreement under which
ASB Capital lends the proceeds of issue of
the Perpetual Preference Shares to ASB Group
(Holdings)

NZSE
means the New Zealand Stock Exchange

Offer
means the offer of the Perpetual Preference
Shares set out in this Offer Document

Investment Statement and Prospectus

Offer Document
means this cornbined Investment Statement
and Prospectus

Opening Date
means 11 November 2002

Perpetual Preference Shares
means perpetual preference shares of
ASB Capital

Regisirar
means Computershare Investor Services
Limited or any other person appomnted as
registrar by ASB Capital from time to time

Regulatory Authornity
means the Reserve Bank of New Zealand
the Australian Prudential Regulation
Authonty or any other authanty having
jurisdiction n respect of banking n
Australia or New Zealand

Secunities Act
means the Securities Act 1978

Securities Regulations
means the Securities Regulations 1983

Trust Deed
means the trust deed dated 30 October 2002
hetween ASB Group {Holdings)
ASB Capital and the Trustee

Trustee
means The New Zealand Guardian Trust
Company Limited




ASB Capital Limited Application Form

(ATTACH CHEQUE HERE)

This Application Form constitutes an Offer to acquire ASB Capital Limited Perpetual Preference Shares as described

in the combined [nvestment Statement and Prospectus prepared as at and dated 30 October 2002 ASR Securities
Completed Apphcation Forms together with payment of the application money payable in respect of the Perpetual Limted
Preference Shares apphed for must be received by ASB Capital Limited C/~ ASB Securinies Ltd PO Box 35 Auckland ASBA
by the Closing Time or 1f you have received a firm allocanon from a member firm of the NZSE this should be returned

to that member firm mn time for 1t to be forwarded to the Registrar before the Closing Time Auckland

This Application Form must not be 1ssued circulated or distributed to any person unless accompanied by the combined
Iavestment Statement and Prospectus

This Offer 15 made to New Zealand resident investors only Adwvisor Code
Please refer to the instructions on the reverse of this Application Form and on pages 101 to 103 for information
regarding 1its completion and lodgement

INVESTOR DETAILS - Piease print in black letters Please enter namef(s) in full (including first names)

Title First Names Surname
Title First Names Surname
Title First Names Surname

Corperate Name

Postal Address
(inciuding post code)

Telephone Home ( ) Work ( )
Contact Name email (optional)

APPLICATION AMOUNT
Principal Amount of Perpetual NZ$ {(Minimum of NZ$5,000 00 and thereafter
Preference Shares apphed for in multiples of NZ$1 000 00)

(NZ$1 00 = 1 Perpetual Preference Share )
Cheques must be payable to  ASB Capttal Offer and crossed not transferable Payment must be made in New Zealand doliars and drawn on a
registered New Zeajand bank Cheques must not be post dated

IRD NUMBER
fonomper | L [ T T [ ]

If you hold a current Resident Withholding Tax Exemption Ceruficate please tick (v) this box D and attach a copy of the certificate

COMMON SHAREHOLDER AND SHAREHOLDER NUMBERS
If you have been 1ssued with a Common Shareholder Number (CSN} please enter | I l \ l | \ | [ T l ‘I
that number or If you already hold shares in a New Zealand company which has

Cemputershare Investor Services Liruted as its share registrar please enter the shareholder number that appears on your FASTER statement
DIVIDEND PAYMENT DETAILS

IF you currently recerve interest or didend payments from Computershare Invester Services Limited by direct credit and wish the dividend payments from the Perpetual
Preference Shares to be direct credited to the same account please tick here D and DO NOT complete the section below

{Please complete only one option)
Option 1 - Direct Credit to Bank Account

New Zealand Bank Account Name

New Zealand Bank Account Number  Bank E[:I Branch i_l_vj_l_mﬁf:rf:” j | I ‘ 1 | | |Sufr|x‘ l | ]

Option 2 - Pay by cheque ta my postal address as stated above D
AGREEMENT OF TERMS

[/We irrevocably apply for the Issue of Perpetual Preference Shares shown above (or such lesser amount as ASB Capital may allot and allocate
to mefus) on the terms and conditions set out 1n the combined Investment Statement and Prospectus Trust Deed and this Apphcation Form
I/We confirm the information [/we have given on this Apphcation Form 1s true and correct

COMPLETING THE

Signature Date APPLICATION FORM
Read the combined Investment Statement and
Signature Date Prospectus and n particular the sectron  Answers

to Important Questions  carefully before applying
for Parpetual Preference Shares and loading this

Signature Date
g Application Form



Terms and Conditions of Application Form
11 By signung this Application Form the applicant

a) offers to subscribe for ASB Capital Perpetual Preference Shares on the terms set out 1 the combined
Investment Statement and Prospectus dated 30 QOctober 2002 this Application Form and the
application instructions on pages 101 to 103 of this document

b) acknowledges that this form was distnibuted with the combined Investment Statement and
Prospectus and

¢) acknowledges that he/she/it has read and understood the combined Investment Statement and
Prospectus and the Privacy Act 1993 statements contained in the section entitled  Application
Instructions

1 2 Apphcants must pay for the Perpetual Preference Shares applied for in this Application Form by
attaching a cheque to the Application Form

13 An application cannot be withdrawn or revoked

1 4 ASB Caputal reserves the right to decline any appheation 1n whole or in part without giving any
reason

15 FASTER statements for the Perpetual Preference Shares will be dispatched to successful applicants as
soon as practicable after allotment but m any event no later than six Business Days after allotment

16 Applicants must conform with the application instructions in the section of the combined Investment
Statement and Prospectus entitled Application Instructions

17 Jount applications must be signed by all applicants Only the address of the first named of the
jomt applicants will be recorded on the Perpetual Preference Share register and all notices and
communicatiens will be sent to that address

18 If the Application Form 1s signed by an attorney the non revocation ferm below must be completed

19 Terms defined in the combined Investment Statement and Prospectus have the same meanng 1n this
Application Form This Application Form the Offer and any contract anising out of its acceptance 13
governed by New Zealand law

Certificate of Non-Revocation of Power of Attorney

{Only complete 1f the Application Form 15 to be signed by an attorney of the applicant)

I of
(Name of Attarney) (Address and Occupation of Attorney)

hereby certify that
1 By Power of Attorney dated

{Date of Power of Attorney and name of person for wham Attorney 1s signing)

of

{(Address and occupation of person for whom Attorney Is signing)
{ The Doner ) appointed me hisfherts attarney on the terms and conditions set out i that Power of

Attorney

2 | have completed and executed this apphcation for Perpetual Preference Shares as attorney under that
Power of Attorney and pursuant to the powers thereby conferred upon me

3 At the date of this certificate | have not received any notice or information of the revocation of that Power
of Attorney whether by the death or disselution of the Donor or otherwise

Signature of Attorney

Signed at this day of 2002



ASB Capital Limited Application Form

(ATTACH CHEQUE HERE)

This Application Form constitutes an Offer to acquire ASB Capital Limited Perpetual Preference Shares as descnbed

1n the combmed Investment Statement and Prospectus prepared as at and dated 30 October 2002 ASB Securities
Completed Appheation Forms together with payment of the apphcation money payable n respect of the Perpetual Larmited
Preference Shares apphed for must be recewved by ASB Capital Limited C/- ASB Secunities Led PO Box 35 Auckland ASBA
by the Closing Time or if you have recewved a firm aliocation from a member firm of the NZSE this should be returned

10 that member firm 1n time for 1t to be forwarded to the Registrar before the Closing Tume Auckland

This Application Farm must not be 1ssued circulated or distnibuted to any person unless accompamed by the combined
Investment Statement and Prospectus

This Offer 15 made to New Zealand resident investors only Adwisor Code
Please refer to the instructions on the reverse of this Applheation Form and on pages 101 to 103 for information
regarding 1ts completian and lodgement

INVESTOR DETAILS - Please prnt in bock ietters Please enter namne(s) in full including first names)

Title First Names Surname
Title First Names Surname
Title First Names Surpame

Corporate Name

Postal Address
(inclucing post cade)

Telephone  Home { ) Work ( )

Contact Name emall (optionat)

APPLICATION AMOUNT

Principal Amount of Perpetual NZ$ (Minimum of NZ$5 000 00 and thereafter

Preference Shares applied for in multiples of NZ$1 000 00)

{NZ$1 00 = 1 Perpetual Preference Share )
Cheques must be payable to ASB Capital Offer and crossed not transferable Payment must be made in New Zealand dollars and drawn on a
registered New Zealand bank Cheques must not be post dated

IRD NUMBER
IRD Number li l \ l [ l I ‘ I
If you hold a current Resicent Withholding Tax Exemption Certificate please tick (/) this box D and attach a copy of the certificate

COMMON SHAREHOLDER AND SHAREHOLDER NUMBERS

If you have bzen 1ssued with a Common Shareholder Number (CSN}) please enter EJ_ 1 l I { | \ | l 1 :|
that number or If you alseady hold shares in a New Zealand company which has

Computershare Investor Services Limited as its share reqistrar please enter the shareholder number that appears on your FASTER statement

DIVIDEND PAYMENT DETAILS

If you currertly recoive interest or dividend payments from Comgutershare investor Services Limited by direct credit and wish the dividend payments from the Perpetual
Proference Shares to be direct credited to the same account please tick here D and DO NOT complete the section below

(Please complete only one opuien)
Option 1 - Direct Credit to Bank Account

New Zealand Bank Account Name

New Zealand Bank Account Number  Bank I_—__I:] Branch Qﬁfr?;:rt —l ‘ l i | \ \ | Suffix ‘7\ 1 J

Option 2 - Pay by cheque to my postal address as stated above D
AGREEMENT OF TERMS

["We wrrevocably apply for the Issue of Perpetual Preference Shares shown above (or such lesser amount as ASB Capital may allot and allocate
to mefus) on the terms and conditions set out in the combined Investment Statement and Prospectus Trust Deed and this Apphication Form
[/We confirm the information l/we have given on this Application Form 15 true and correct

COMPLETING THE

Signature Date APPLICATION FORM
Read the combined Investment Statement and
Signature Date Prospectus and 10 parucular the section  Answers
to Important Guestions  carefully before applying
Signature Date for Perpetual Preference Shares and loading this

Apphcation Form



Terms and Conditions of Application Form
11 By signing this Apphcation Form the apphcant

a) offers to subscribe for ASB Capital Perpetual Preference Shares on the terms set out in the combined
Investment Statement and Prospectus dated 30 October 2002 thus Application Form and the
application 1nstructions on pages 101 to 103 of this document

b} acknowledges that this form was distributed with the combined Investment Statement and
Prospectus and

¢) acknowledges that he/she/it has read and understood the combined Investment Statement and
Prospectus and the Privacy Act 1993 statements contained in the section entitled Application
Instructions

12 Apphcants must pay for the Perpetual Preference Shares applied for 1n this Apphcation Form by
attaching a cheque to the Application Form

13  An application cannot be withdrawn or revoked

14 ASB Capital reserves the right to decline any apphcation 1n whole or in part without giving any

reason

15 FASTER statements for the Perpetual Preference Shares will be dispatched to successful applicants as
soon as practicable after allotment but in any event no later than six Business Days after allotment

16 Applicants must conform with the application mstructions in the section of the combined Investment
Statement and Prospectus entitled Application Instructions

17 Jomnt applications must be signed by all applicants Only the address of the first named of the
jomt applicants will be recorded on the Perpetual Preference Share register and all notices and
commumnications will be sent to that address

I 8 If the Application Form 1s signed by an attorney the non revocation form below must be completed

19 Terms defined n the combined Investment Statement and Prospectus have the same meaning in this
Applcation Form Thas Applicanen Form the Offer and any contract arising out of its acceptance is
governed by New Zealand law

Certificate of Non-Revocation of Power of Attorney

(Only complete if the Apphcation Form 1s to be signed by an attorney of the apphcant)

1 of
{Name of Attorney) {Address and Occupanon of Attorney)

hereby certify that
1 By Power of Attorney dated

{Date of Power of Attorney and namc of person for whom Attorney is sigrung)

of

{Address and occupation of person for whom Attorney is sigrung)
( The Donor ) appointed me hisfher/its attorney on the terms and conditions set out 1n that Power of

Attarney

2 | have completed and executed this application for Perpetual Preference Shares as attarney under that
Power of Attorney and pursuant to the powers thereby conferred upen me

3 At the date of this certificate I have not received any notice or information of the revocanon of that Power
of Attorney whether by the death or dissolution of the Danor or otherwise

Signature of Attorney

Signed at this day of 2002



| Application Instructions

You should read this Offer Document carefully
before completing the Application Form

11

14

15

16
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General Apphcatons for ASB Capital Perpetual Preference Shares under the Offer
must be made on the Application Farm contained i this Offer Document and must
be made 1n accordance with the terms set out below

Opening Date and Closing Time Applications for Perpetual Preference Shares
may be lodged from the Opening Date The Offer will remain open unul 5 00pm
@ December 2002 or such other Closing Trme as ASB Capital may determine

Irrevocable Offer An application will constitute an irrevocable offer by the
applicant to subscribe for and acquire the number of Perpetual Preference Shares
specifiect on the Application Form (or such lesser number as ASB Capital may
deterinine) on the terms and conditions set out 1n this Offer Document and on
the Application Form

Application Money Application amounts will be banked on receipt into a

trust account Other than where otherwise required by law interest earned on the
account will be paid to ASB Capital If application money 1s paid by a cheque that
does not clear an application may be rejected or an allocation made in respect of

that application may be cancelled Applicants should ensure clearance will occur

Refunds Money recerved tn respect of applications that are declined mn whole

or 1n part will be refunded in whole or in part (as the case may be) Refunds will be
posted within five Business Days after allotment of Perpetual Preference Shares to
unsuccessful applicants Interest will not be paid on any apphcation money refunded
to applicants

Liability of ASB Capital ASB Capital and its officers employees or advisors will
not accept any habihity or responsibihity if any person attempts to sell or otherwise
deal with Perpetual Preference Shares before the statement showing the number of
Perpetual Preference Shares allocated to the applicant is recerved by the applicant
for those Perpetual Preference Shares

Incomplete Apphcations If an Application Form is not completed correctly oraf
the accompanying payment 1s for the wrong amount 1t may still be treated as valid
ASB Capital's decision as to whether to treat an application as valid and how to
construe amend or complete 1t shall be final Applicants will not however be
treated as having applied to purchase more Perpetual Preference Shares than the
number indicated on the Appheation Form or more Perpetual Preference Shares
than those for which payment has been made

Right to Refuse ASE Capital reserves the right to refuse any application in whole
or 1n part without giving any reason

Personal Information Rights  Personal information provided by you will be held
by ASB Capital the Registrar or the Trustee at their respective addresses shown n
the Directory on page 104 or at such other place as 1s notified upon your request
This information will be used for the purpose of managing your investment Under
the Privacy Act 1993 you have the right to access and correct any personal
information held about you

101

Investment Statement Prospectus
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Completing the Application Form
Please complete all relevant sections of the Application Form using
CAPITAL BLOCK LETTERS

Enter your FULL NAME Up to three applicants may apply jomntly
Refer to the following table to ensure your details are entered correctly

Type of Investor Incorrect way to write name Correct way to write name
Individual person } SMITH JOHN JAMES SMITH
More than one person ] & M SMITH JOHN SMITH

MARY SMITH
Company ABC ABC LTD
Trusts SMITH FAMILY TRUST JOHN SMITH

PETER SMITH
<SMITH FAMILY TRUST
ACCOUNT>

Partnership JOHN SMITH & SONS JOHN SMITH

JAMES SMITH

<JOHN SMITH & SONS
PARTNERSHIP ACCOUNT>

Clubs and unincorporated | SMITH INVESTMENT CLUB JAMES SMITH
associations <SMITH INVESTMENT CLUB
ACCOUNT>

Enter your POSTAL ADDRESS for all correspondence All communications
to you mcluding statements of shareholding dividends periodic reports
correspondence etc will be mailed to the person(s) at the address as shown
For joint applicants only one address 1s to be entered

Please let us know your TELEPHONE NUMBER(S} and contact name 1n case we
need to contact you in relation to your application It is optional to provide your

e mail address

Insert the NEW ZEALAND DOLLAR VALUE OF THE PERPETUAL
PREFERENCE SHARES you wish to apply for The application must be for

a minumum of 5000 Perpetual Preference Shares (NZ$5 000 00) and thereafter
1n multples of 1000 Perpetual Preference Shares (NZ$1 000 00)

Please enter your IRD NUMBER ASB Capital 1s required by law to hold 1t

For joint applicants please fill in the IRD number of the first named applicant
Note that your application may be rejected 1f your IRD number 15 not entered
Indicate by ticking the apprapriate box whether or not you hold a Resident
Withholding Tax Exemption Certificate (If you hold a certificate ASB Capital
will not be obliged to deduct Resident Withholding Tax on dividends provided
it has seen the relevant certificate } A copy of the certificate must be attached to
the Application Form

If you have a COMMON SHAREHOLDER NUMBER (CSN) or a
COMPUTERSHARE INVESTOR SERVICES SHAREHOLDER NUMBER 1n
the name(s) filled out under Investor Details please enter 1t 1n the box provided

Investment Statement and Prospectus
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If you recewve interest or dividend payments from Computershare Investor Services
Limited by direct credit and wish the dividend payments from the Perpetual
Preference Shares to be direct credited to the same account your dividends will

he direct credited to this account and you DO NOT need to complete this secuion
If not please complete the details required under either Option 1 to credit your
DIVIDENDS directly to an account with your bank or Option 2 to receive your
DIVIDENDS by cheque to your postal address

Read the declaration carefully and SIGIN AND DATE the Application Form It must
be signed by all apphicants persanally Companues or other bodies corporate must
sipn the same way as they would sign a formal deed or other formal legal document
Applications may n either case be executed by an attorney If your Apphcation
Form 15 signed by an attorney the power of attorney document 1s not required to

be lodged but the attorney must complete the non revocation ceruficate on the
reverse of the Applcation Form Joint applicants must all sign the Application Form

PAYMENT

Payment must accampany each Application Form Payment must be made by cheque
drawn on a New Zeatand bank for New Zealand dollars for immediate value

Post dated cheques will not be accepted Please ensure that the total of the cheque
equals the amount payable Make the cheque payable to ASB Capital Offer and
cross 1t Not Transferable

Sufficient cleared funds should be held 1n your account for the cheque to be paid
as cheques returned unpaid are hkely to result in your application being rejected
or your allotment being cancelled Staple your cheque to the Application Form
Institutional investors must pay i unmediately cleared funds

DIVIDEND PAYMENTS

Dividends wall accrue from the date your application 1s processed by Computershare
Tnvestor Services Lirmted The first dividend payment will be on 15 February 2003
Drvidends are payable quarterly on 15 February 15 May 15 August and

15 November

CLOSING TIME
Applications must be recewved by no later than 5 00pm New Zealand time on 9
December 2002 unless this date is varied by ASB Capital

LODGING OF APPLICATIONS

Applications cannot be revoked or withdrawn Application Forms must be mailed
or delivered with payment to arrwve before 9 December 2002 to

ASB Capital Offer

C/- ASB Securities Limited

PO Box 35

AUCKLAND

Or

1f you received a firm allocation from a member firm of the NZSE please send your
Application Form to that member firm The Application Form must be dehvered to
that member firm 1n tune to enable 1t to be forwarded to the Repistrar before the
relevant Closing Time

Please lodge your Apphcation Form AS SOON AS POSSIBLE There may not be any
public pool and any applications received directly by the Registrar will be forwarded
to the Orgamsing Broker to process at its discretion

Hwestment Statement and Prospectus
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| Issuer -~
ASB Capital Limited

Directors of ASE Capital
J W Duncan

P S Hall

J A te Wechel

Registered office of ASB Capital
Level 28

ASB Bank Centre

135 Albert Street

Auckland

Auditors

Ernst & Young

41 Shortland Street
PO Box 2146
Auckland

Arranger

ASB Bank Limited

ASB Bank Centre

135 Albert Street

PO Box 35

Auckland

Telephone +64 9 374 8366
Facsimile +64 9 302 0992

Lead Managers

ASB Bank Limuted

ASB Bank Centre

135 Albert Street

PO Box 35

Auckland

Telephone +64 9 374 8366
Facsimile +64 9 302 0992

UBS Warburg New Zealand Limited
Levei 23

191 Queen Street

Auckland

Telephone +64 9 913 4800
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ASB Securities Limated
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PO Box 35
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Facsimle +64 9 374 8123

Share Registrar

Computershare Investor Services Limited
Level 2

159 Hurstmere Road
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Private Bag 92119
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Telephone +64 9 4888 777

Facsimile +64 9 4888 787

Legal Advisors

Russell McVeagh

Raoyal & SunAlhance Centre
48 Shortland Street

PO Box 8

Auckland

Promoter -
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G H Burrett

R Boven

L G Cupper

P A Edwards
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LEVEL 9 TELEPHONE

ASB BANK TOWER 64 04 472 7599

2 HUNTER STREET

WELLTNGTON

PO BoOX 2959

DX SP23501 INTERNET

NEW ZEALAND http //www nzse co nz

FACSIMILE
64 04 473 1470

EMATL
nzse@nzse co nz
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New Zealand
23 October 2002 Stock Exchange
Registrar of Compames
Private Bag
AUCKLAND
Dear Sir

ASB Capital Limited - Issue of Perpetual Preference Shares

The New Zealand Stock Exchange hereby confirms that in terms of Regulation 23(2) of the
Securities Regulations 1983, application has been made to the New Zealand Stock Exchange for
permission to list the securities the subject of the above advertisement, and all the requirements of
the Exchange relating thereto that can be complied with on or before the date of the adverhisement
have been duly complied with. However, the Exchange accepts no responsibhlity for any statement
1n this advertisement.

N7

{' achael Cross
LEGAL OFFICER
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i’l ERNST & YOUNG & Chartered Accountants

Auditar's Report to the Shareholder of ASB Bank Limited (“the Bank”)

4

We have audited the financial statements and the financial information n the supplementary information on pages 56 to 88
and 90 The financial statements provide information about the past financial performance and cash flows of the Bank and
the Bank and 1its subsidiaries (“Banking Group™ for the year ended 30 June 2002 and their financial position as at that date
The supplementary information contains that information required by clauses 12(3) and 12(4) of the Registered Bank
Disclosure Statement (Full and Half-Year — New Zealand Incorporated Registered Banks) Order 1998 (the “Order”™)

This information 1s stated 1n accordance wath the accounting policies set out on pages 60 to 62

Directors’ Responsibilities
The directors are responsible for the preparation of
* financial statements 1n accordance with clause 12(1) of the Order which give a true and fair view of the firancial position
of the Bank and Banking Group as at 30 June 2002 and of their financial performance and cash flows for the year ended
on that date,
* supplementary information in accordance with clause 12(3) of the Order which gives a true and fair view of the matters
to which it relates, and
* supplementary information 1n accordance with clause 12(4) of the Order which complies with Schedules 7 and § of the
Order

Auditor's Responsibilities
In accordance with clause 15(1) of the Order, 1t 1s our responsibility to express an independent opinion on the financial
statements and supplementary information presented by the directors and report our optnion to you

Basis of Opinion

An audit mcludes examning, on a test basis, evidence relevant to the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements and

supplementary mformation [t also includes assessing

» the sigmificant estumates and judgements made by the directors m the preparation of the financial statements and
supplementary information, and

* whether the accounting policies are appropnate to the Bank and Banking Group's circumstances, consistently applied and
adequately disclosed

We conducted our audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards 1n New Zealand We planned and
performed our audut so as to obtain all the nformation and explanations which we considered necessary 1n order to provide
us with sufficient evidence to give reasonable assurance that the financial statements and supplementary financial
nformation are free from material misstatements, whether caused by fraud or error In forming our opinion we also evaluated
the overall adequacy of the presentation of information in the financial statements and supplementary financial information

We provide some mnformatien technology assurance services to the Bank

Unquabfied Opimion
We have obtamed all the information and explanations we have required
In our opinion
*  proper accounting records have been kept by the Bank and Banking Group as far as appears from our examination of
those records, and
* the financial statements on pages 56 to 88
¢ comply with generally accepted accounting practice in New Zealand, and
¢ gweatrue and fair view of the financial position of the Bank and Banking Group as at 30 June 2002 and their
financial performance and cash flows for the year ended on that date, and
* the supplementary financtal information cluded within the financial statements has been prepared 1n accordance with
¢ the guidelines 1ssued pursuant to section 78(3) of the Reserve Bank of New Zealand Act 1989 or any Conditions of
Registration, and
¢ the books and records of the Bank and Banking Group, and
* the supplementary financial information disclosed in accordance with clause 12(3) of the Order gives a true and fair view
of the matters to which 1t relates, and
¢ the supplementary financial information on page 90 disclosed 1n accordance with clause 12(4) of the Order complies with
Schedules 7 and 8 of the Order

Our audit was completed on 30 July 2002 and our unqualified opinion 1s expressed as at that date
MSt ~ \\‘! D\-klf\i
S——

Emst and Young, Chartered Accountants
Auckland, New Zealand



i’l ERNST& YOUNG & 41 Shortland Street & Telephone 09377 4790

PO Box 2146 International +64 9 177 4790

Auckland Fax 09 309 8137

New Zealand International +64 9 309 8137
DX CP24092

30 October 2002

Board of Directors
ASB Capital Limated
PO Box 35
AUCKLAND

Dear Directors

This report 15 1ssued mn respect of the public offer by ASB Capital Limited (“the Company”) of up to 200
mutllion perpetual preference shares in the Company, in terms of the Prospectus to be dated on 30 October
2002

Directors’ Responsibilities

The directors are responsible for the preparation and presentation of the forecasts of the Company for the
period ending 30 October 2003, including the assumptions on which the forecasts are based, as required
by clause 10 of the First Schedule to the Securities Regulations 1983 (“the Furst Schedule™)

Auditor’s Responsibilities

We are responsible for reporting, 1n accordance with clause 42(2) of the First Schedule, on the forecasts
for the period ending 30 October 2003

Thus report has been prepared for inclusion m the Prospectus for the purpose of meeting the requirements
of clause 42 of the First Schedule We disclaim any assumption of responsibility for reliance on this
report or the amounts included m the forecasts for any other purpose other than that for which they were
prepared In addition, we take no responsibihity for, nor do we report on, any part of the Prospectus not
mentioned mn this report

Other than 1n our capacity as auditor we have no relationship with, or nterest 1n, the Company
Basis of Opinion

We have conducted our audit 1n accordance with generally accepted audrting standards in New Zealand
We planned and performed our audit so as to obtamn all the information and explanations which we
considered necessary 1n order to provide us with sufficient evidence to give reasonable assurance that the
forecasts are free from material misstatements, whether caused by fraud or error

We have examimed the forecast to confirm that, so far as the accounting policies and calculations are
concerned, they have been properly compiled on the footing of the assumptions made or adopted by the
directors of the Company and are presented on a basis consistent with the accounting policies normally
adopted by the Company The assumptions relate to future events
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S FRNST & YOUNG

Unqualified Opinion
We have obtained all the information and explanations we have required

In our opinion

(@)  proper accountg records have been kept by the Company as far as appears from our exammation
of those records, and

(b) the forecasts on page 50, so far as the accounting policies and calculations are concerned, have
been properly compiled on the footing of the assumptions made or adopted by the directors of the
Company set out on page 51 and are presented on a basis consistent with the accounting policies
normally adopted by the Company

Actual results are likely to be different from the forecast financial information since antictpated evens
frequently do not occur as expected and the vanation could be material

Accordingly we express no opinion as to whether the financial forecasts will be achieved
We completed our work for the purposes of this report on 30 October 2002 and our unqualified opmion 1s

expressed as at that date

Yours farthfully

Cusk Jons

Emst and Young, Chartered Accountants
Auckland, New Zealand



ﬂ ERNST& YOUNG & 41 Shortfand Street & Telephone 09 377 4790

PO Box 2146 International +64 9 377 4790

Auckland Fax 09 309 8137

New Zealand International +64 9 309 8137
DX CP24092

30 October 2002

The Directors

ASB Capital Limited
PO Box 35
AUCKLAND

For the Attention of Ms Kyhe Foy
Dear Sirs
We hereby consent to the inclusion of our report dated 30 October 2002 1n the prospectus

of ASB Capital Limited dated 30 October 2002 1n the form and the context 1n which 1t 1s
mncluded

Yours faithfully
ERNST & YOUNG

bt

Gordon Fulton
Partner



ASB GROUP (HOLDINGS) LIMITED
THE NEW ZEALAND GUARDIAN TRUST COMPANY LIMITED

ASB CAPITAL LIMITED

SECURITY TRUST DEED
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DEED dated B3O Octolbes 2002
PARTIES
ASB GROUP (HOLDINGS) LIMITED (‘the Company”)
THE NEW ZEALAND GUARDIAN TRUST COMPANY LIMITED (“Trustee®)

ASB CAPITAL LIMITED (“ASB Capital’)

INTRODUCTION
A ASB Capital has issued certain perpetual preference shares
B The Company wishes to grant certain covenants, and security, in favour of the holders

from time to time of the perpetual preference shares referred to in paragraph A

C The Trustee has accepted appointment to act as trustee on behalf of the holders from
time to time of those shares

D ASB Capital 1s party to this deed in order to give certain covenants in favour of the
Trustee

COVENANTS

1 INTERPRETATION

11 Definitions In this deed unless the context otherwise requires

"ASB Bank" means ASB Bank Limited

"ASB Bank Preference Shares" means up to 200 million perpetual preference shares
1ssued by ASB Bank and held by the Company

“ASB Capital Loan” means a loan made or to be made by ASB Capital to the
Company, whereby ASB Capital has lent or will lend to the Company the proceeds of
issue of the Preference Shares

“ASB Cap:ital Secunty Interest” means a security interest in the ASB Bank Preference
Shares granted by the Company in favour of ASB Capital, to secure the ASB Capital

Loan, which ranks after the securty interest granted by this deed in favour of the
Trustee

‘Business Day” means any day other than a Saturday, Sunday, or a statutory public
holiday in New Zealand

"Commonwealth Bank" means Commonwealth Bank of Australia Limited
“Collateral” has the meaning in clause 4 1

"Constitution” means the constitution of ASB Capital

"Defauit” means any event specified in clause 13 1

"Date of Enforcement” means the date on which the security created by this deed 1s
enforced by the Trustee

1565735 vB
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"Distnbution" has the meaning in section 2(1) of the Companies Act 1993

"Dividend"” means any dividend on the Preference Shares payable pursuant to Article
4 2 of the Terms

“‘Dividend Payment Date” has the meaning in the Terms
"Dividend Period" has the meaning in the Terms

"Holder" in respect of a Preference Share means a person whose name Is entered In
the Register as the holder for the time being of that Preference Share

‘Liguidation” means, in relation to a company, either

(a) the process of hquidation provided for in Part XVI of the Companies Act 1993,
or
(b) its becoming subject to statutory management under the Corporations

(Investigation and Management} Act 1989 or the Reserve Bank of New
Zealand Act 1989

‘PPSA" means the Personal Property Secunities Act 1999

"Preference Share" means a perpetual preference share issued by ASB Capital on the
terms recorded in the Terms

"Receiver" means a recewver, or receiver and manager, appointed under this deed
"Register" means the share register of ASB Capital

"Registered Address" n respect of a Holder means the address of that Holder for the
time being recorded in the Register

“Rights” has the meaning In clause 4 1

"Secured Money" means all amounts of any nature which the Company 1s or may at
any time become liable (whether actually or contingently) to pay or deliver to the Trustee
(whether as trustee for the Holders, on its own account, or otherwise)

“Special Resolution’ means a special resolution (as defined in section 2 of the
Companies Act 1993) of Holders

"Terms” means the nights, privileges, imitations and conditions of the Preference
Shares recorded in the Constitution and set out in the appendix to this deed

"Transfer" means, in relation to ASB Bank Preference Shares or Rights, a transfer
thereof duly signed by the Company with the name of the transferee, date, and
consideration left blank, but otherwise in proper form for registration by ASB Bank

Interpretation Unless the context otherwise requires or specially otherwise stated, in
this deed

(a) headings are to be ignored,
(b) "Including” and simitar werds do not imply any imitation,
(c) references to any form of law 1s to New Zealand law, including as amended or

re-enacted,
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(d) if a party compnises more than one person, each of those person's liability 1s
Jjoint and several,

(e) references to a party or a person includes any form of entity and therr
respective successars, assigns and representatives,

{f every nght, power and remedy of a party remains unrestricted and may be
exercised without prejudice to each other at anytime,

(9) singular includes plural and vice versa,

(h) references to a gender covers any gender,

(1) amounts are in NZ§,

)] New Zealand time and dates apply,

(k) any word or expression cognate with a definition 1n this deed has a meaning

corresponding or construed to the definition,

(N references to sections, clauses, schedules, annexes or other identifiers are to
those in this deed,

(m) references to a document or agreement includes 1t as varied, novated or
replaced,

(n) each schedule and any other attachment is part of this deed,

(0) the expressions “attach’, “document of ttle”, “investment secunty’,

“proceeds” and “security interest’ have, If and where used, the respective
meanings given to them under, or in the context of, the PPSA

COVENANT - DIVIDENDS

Unpaid Dividends If

(a) a Dividend 1s payable n respect of the Preference Shares pursuant to Article
4 2 of the Terms, and

(b) payment of that Dividend 1s not cancelled pursuant to Article 4 7 of the Terms,
and

(c) within five Business Days after the Dividend Payment Date on which that

Dividend s payable, ASB Capital has not paid to each Holder the amount of
that Dividend,

then the Company shall (subject to clause 2 2) pay to the Trustee an amount equal to
the amount of that Dividend in respect of all Preference Shares, or so much thereof as 1s

unpaid

Limitation The Company has no obiigation to make payment under clause 21 n
respect of a Dividend if ASB Bank or Commonwealth Bank has given to ASB Capital a
notice of the nature referred to in Article 4 8(c) or Article 4 8(d) of the Terms, except, if
the party which gave that notice subsequently gives to ASB Capital a notice of the
nature referred to in Article 49 of the Terms, In respect of Dividend Perods
commencing after that party gives that notice under Article 4 9 of the Terms, and then
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only unless and untl any of ASB Capital, ASB Bank or Commonwealth Bank give a
notice under Article 4 7 of the Terms

COVENANT - CAPITAL
Payment in Liquidation If
{(a} a Liguidation of ASB Capital 1Is commenced, and

[(s)] all Holders do not, within one year after commencement of that Liguidation,
receive In respect of the Preference Shares the amounts payable in respect of
the Preference Shares pursuant to Article 4 12 of the Terms, then {subject to
clause 3 2) the Company shall pay to the Trustee that amount or so much
thereof as I1s unpaid

Limitations Clause 3 1 shall not take effect, and the Company s not required to make
any payment under clause 3 1, and neither the Trustee nor any Holder may take any
proceedings to enforce clause 3 1, unless and until a Ligwdation of ASB Bank has
commenced For the avaidance of doubt, the Trustee may, after commencement of the
Ligquidation of ASB Bank, enforce the covenant in clause 3 1 in respect of an amount
which became payable in the Liguidation of ASB Capital before the commencement of
the Liguidation of ASB Bank

SECURITY
Secunty interest As secunty for

(a) the payment or delivery of the Secured Money, and

(b} the performance by the Company of all of the Company's other obligations to
the Trustee under this deed,

the Company grants to the Trustee a secunty interest in

(c) the ASB Bank Preference Shares,
(d) all,
() Distributions, and
(m) other nghts, meney or investment secunties of any nature,

("Rights") attnbutable to, or ansing from, the ASB Bank Preference Shares,
(e) all proceeds of any ASB Bank Preference Shares or Rights, and
() all documents of title relating to any ASB Bank Preference Shares or Rights,

and all of the Company's present and future nghts In relation to the ASB Bank
Preference Shares, Rights, proceeds and documents of title (“Collateral”) So far as it
concems each security interest over or in respect of any present or future account
receivable and present and future nghts in relation to any account receiwvable, the
secunty interest granted shall take effect as a transfer (as “transfer” is used n the
context of and for the purposes of the PPSA)
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No disposal The Company shall not dispose of, or permit the disposal of, or permit
any other security interest (other than the ASB Capital Secunity Interest) to attach to, any
Collateral

LIMITED RECOURSE

Limitation on recourse Not\m{hstandmg anything to the contrary in this deed but
subject to clause 5 2, the following provisions apply

(a) the Company remains liable in contract to meet the obligations assumed by the
Company under this deed but the nghts of the Trustee and Holders to enforce
those obligations shall be lmited in the manner provided in the following
paragraphs,

(b) neither the Trustee nor any Holder shall be entitled to enforce payment,
repayment or recovery of any moneys owing to the Trustee or any Holder
under this deed against the Company personally or against any assets or
property of the Company other than the Collateral,

(c) neither the Trustee nor any Holder shall, in relation to any obhgation of the
Company under this deed, obtain any judgment or seek or attempt to obtain
any judgment for payment by the Company of any money in relation to any
breach of this deed,

(d) the Trustee's and each Holder's nghts of recovery against the Company shall
be imited to the Collateral,

provided that nothing in this imited recourse provision prevents the Trustee from

(1} exercising the Trustee’s nights under this deed insofar as they enable
the Trustee to exercise the Trustee's security nghts in relation to the
Collateral,

() seeking or obtaining an injunction or restraining order to restrain any

breach of this deed or any secunty, or obtaining any declaratory relief

Trustee's remuneration Clause 5 1 does not apply to the obhgation of the Company
to pay to the Trustee or any Receiver amounts described in clause 12 1

COVENANTS OF COMPANY

Covenants The Company shall

(a) comply with all laws and all governmental requirements and orders so that
neither the Collateral nor the security interest under this deed are adversely
affected,

(b} promptly notify the Trustee of any matter adversely affecting a materal part of
the Collateratl, and of any Default,

(c) promptly deposit with the Trustee
(1 documents of title (if any) to the ASB Bank Preference Shares and

any Rights,
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(n} if required by the Trustee, a Transfer (or such number of separate
Transfers as the Trustee may require) In respect of the ASB Bank
Preference Shares and any Rights, and

(1) any certificates or documents of title issued by ASB Bank in
substtution for, or replacement of, any of the certificates or
documents of title referred to in clauses 6 1(c)(1) and (1),

{d) do all other things which the Trustee reasonably requires to enable the Trustee
to
{1 ensure that the Collateral is subject to an effective securnty interest

having first prionity (including, but not mited to, providing details of
any Collateral, and delivering any Collateral to the Trustee where
possession of that Collateral by a third party may have the result that
the interest of that third party in that Collateral would take pnonty over
the interest of the Trustee), and/or

{D)] assist the Trustee in exercising any of the Trustee's nghts or powers
under this deed, whether on enforcement of the secunty interest
(including, but not imited to, the sale of any of the Collateral) or
otherwise, Including, but not hmited to, exercising all nghts of
inspection, requesting all information and taking all necessary copies,
which the Company 1s entitled to exercise, request or take and, for the
purposes of section 216 of the Companies Act 1993, the Company
hereby authonses the Trustee to inspect those records of ASB Bank
which the Company 1s entitlied to inspect by virtue of that Act

(e) Whenever requested, provide the Trustee, any Recelver or any other person
appointed by the Trustee, within a reasonable time, any oral or written
information relating to its business or affairs which the Trustee may reasonably
require

Further assurance Without hmiting in any way any other provistons of this deed, the
Company shall deliver to the Trustee any transfer, assignment, secunty, instrument, or
other deed or document, and shall do all other things, which the Trustee requires to
enable it to

{a) ensure that the Collateral 1s subject to an effective secunty interest and/or
charge (as applicable) having first prionty, and/or

{b) exercise, or facilitate the exercise of, all or any of the nghts, powers and
remedies conferred on the Trustee or any Receiver by, or pursuant to, this
deed or by law, whether on enforcement of the secunty interest or charge
{including, but not hmited to, the saie of any of the Collateral} or otherwise,

and, for the purposes of this clause, a certificate signed by the Trustee to the effect that
any particular transfer, assurance or other thing required by 1t 1s required shall be
conclusive evidence of the fact

DISTRIBUTIONS

Before default Until a Default occurs the Company shall

{a) apply all Dividends received by the Company in payment of interest on the
ASB Capital Loan,

{b) apply any other Distnbutions made n respect of the ASB Bank Preference
Shares in payment of interest on, or repayment of, the ASB Capital Loan
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After default After a Default has occurred, all Distributions 1n respect of the ASB Bank
Preference Shares shall be applied by the Trustee in or towards payment of the Secured
Money, and If any such Distribution 1s received by the Company, the Company shall
promptly pay or transfer it to the Trustee

INDEMNITY
Indemmity The Company shall indemnify the Trustee and any Receiver

(a) for all costs, losses and other habilities incurred or sustained by the Trustee or
the Recerver in relation to this deed and In exercising any nght or recovenng
any Secured Money, and

(b) against any claim by any person relating to the Collateral, or the exercise by
the Trustee or the Receiver of any nght or power under this deed

ATTORNEY

Power of attorney The Company Irrevocably appoints the Trustee, every officer of the
Trustee and every Receiver, individually, to be the Company’s attorney (“Attorney”) with
full power to

(a) (at the Company's expense) do anything which the Company agrees to do
under this deed and anything which, 1n the Attomey's opinion, 1s desirable to
protect the Trustee's interests under this deed (even if the Attorney has a
conflict of duty in doing so, or has a direct or personal interest in the means or
result of the exercise of any of the Attorney’s powers), and

(b) delegate the Attorney's powers to any person for any period and to revoke a
delegation,

and the Company ratifies anything done by the Attorney or any delegate in accordance
with this clause

REPORTS FOR TRUSTEE

Reporting requirements of ASB Capital Within three Business Days after each
Dividend Payment Date, ASB Capital shall deliver to the Trustee a certificate, signed by
two directors of ASB Capital on behalf of all directors of ASB Capital, stating

Q) whether a Dividend was paid on the Dividend Payment Date and, if
not, whether the Dividend was cancelled,

D) whether a Liguidation of ASB Capital has commenced dunng the
Dvidend Period ending on the Dividend Payment Date,

() whether ASB Capital has complied with the Terms durning the
Dividend Penod ending on the Dividend Payment Date and, If not,
providing details of the non-compliance, and

Notices ASB Capital shall provide to the Trustee, at the same time as they are sent to
Holders, copies of any notices or other communications sent by ASB Capital to Holders

Reporting requirements of the Company Within 10 Business Days after 30 June and
31 December in each year, the Company shall deliver to the Trustee a certificate, signed
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by two directors of the Company on behalf of all directors, stating whether during the
penod commencing on the date of last certificate (or in the case of the first certificate,
the date of this deed) and ending on the date as at which the certificate 1s given

(a) a Default has occurred, and

{b) the Company has complied with its obligations under this deed

RIGHTS AND POWERS OF THE TRUSTEE
Rights The Trustee may at any time
(a) do all things as the Trustee thinks desirable to remedy any default by the

Company or otherwise protect the Collateral or the security iterest or charge
under this deed,

(b) notify ASB Bank of the secunty interest under this agreement,
{c) after a Default has occurred
(1 cause itself to be registered as the holder of any ASB Bank

Preference Shares, or as the person entitled to any Rights, in order to
hold those shares or Rights as the secured party under this deed,

() complete and present any Transfer to ASB Bank for registration, and

() complete in favour of any person (including the Trustee itself) who 1s
purchasing the ASB Bank Preference Shares under the powers given
to the Trustee by this agreement or by law, any Transfer or any other
document signed by or on behalf of the Company

(d) retain and hold all documents of title and Transfers deposited with the Trustee
In accordance with this deed until the Trustee delivers to the Company a final
release of this deed,

(e) determine whether or not to enforce this deed or any other secunty or right,

{f) make any arrangement or compromise with the Company or any other person
which the Trustee thinks fit

Powers of investment Any moneys held by the Trustee which are subject to the trusts
of this deed may, at the discretion of the Trustee, be invested in the name of the
Trustee, or its nominee, In any investment whatever, with power to vary such
Investments for others of a ke nature and to deal with, or dispose of, such investments
The income ansing from all such mmvestments shall, untif the Date of Enforcement,
belong to the Company

Applcations to court The Trustee may, on or at any time after the Date of
Enforcement, apply to the court for an order that the powers and trusts contained in this
deed be exercised under the direction of the court andjor for the appomntment of a
Receiver of the Collateral and/or for any other order or direction in relation to the
execution and administration of the powers and trusts contained In this deed as the
Trustee deems expedient and the Trustee may assent to, approve of, or oppose, any
application to the court made by, or at the instance of, any Holder and shail be
indemnified by the Company against all costs, charges and expenses incurred by, and
in relation to, any such application or proceedings
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Waiver Subject to any direction or request given pursuant to clauses 14 1 or 151 or
otherwise given by the Holders, the Trustee may, at any time, by wntten notice to the
Company waive, in whole or in part, for a specified pertod or indefinitely and on such
terms and conditions (if any) as it deems expedient, any breach or anticipated breach by
the Company of any provision expressed or implied in this deed, provided the Trustee Is
satisfied that the interests of the Holders will not be matenally prejudiced as a result, but
such waiver shall not prejudice the nghts of the Trustee or the Holders in respect of any
other breach Any waiver by the Trustee In accordance with this clause 11 4 shall be
binding on all Holders and the Company shall, if the Trustee considers that the
circumstances warrant such notification and so certifies to the Company, notfy the
Holders as soon as reascnably practicable

Supplemental powers In addition to the provisions of the law relating to trustees, and
to facilitate the discharge of its duties under this deed the following I1s expressly
declared

(a) Third party advice The Trustee may, without liability for loss, obtain and act
on, or decime and elect not to act on

) the opinion or advice of, or any information obtained from, any
barrister, solicitor, valuer, stockbroker, chartered accountant or other
expert, whether obtained by the Company or by the Trustee or
otherwise, and although that opinion or advice may subsequently be
found to contain some error or not be authentic,

{n) a certificate signed by any two directors of the Company on behalf of
the directors of the Company as to any fact or matter pnma facie
within the knowledge of the Company, or certifying that any particular
dealng, transaction, step or thing 1s expedient or commercially
desirable and not detrimental to the interests of the Holders,

(n) the statements contained in any certificate or report given pursuant to
this deed as conclusive evidence of the facts stated in that certificate

(b) Holders’ resolution The Trustee shall not be responsible for acting, or
relying, upon any resolution purporting to have been passed at any meeting of
the Holders which the Trustee believes to have been properly passed even
though it afterwards appears that the resolution 1s not binding or valid by
reason of a defect in the convening of that meeting, or its proceedings, or for
any other reason

(c) Subscribers’ money  The Trustee I1s not responsible for the moneys
subscribed by the applicants for, or by subscribers of, the Preference Shares,
and is not bound to see to the application of any of those moneys

(d) Defects in title The Trustee shall not be bound or concerned to examine or
enquire into, or be hable for any defect or fallure in, the title of the Company to
any Collateral, whether such defect or failure might have been discovered upon
an examination or enquiry and remedied or not

(&) Breach Notwithstanding any other provision of this deed, the Trustee shall
exercise reasonable diligence to ascertain whether or not the Company has
committed any breach of this deed

(f) Knowledge of default The Trustee may assume that the Company s
performing its obhgations and will not be deemed to have knowledge of the
occurrence of any breach of this deed unless any of its officers actually
becomes aware that such a breach has occurred or the Trustee has receved
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(h)

(1)

0

1

written notice from a Holder or the Company stating that such a breach has
occurred and descntbing that breach

Discretton Except as otherwise expressly provided in this deed, the Trustee

n shall have absolute discretion as to the exercise of all trusts, powers,
authonties and discretions vested in 1t by this deed and as to the
conduct of any action, proceeding or claim and, provided it has acted
with reasonable care and diligence, 1t shall not be responsible for any
loss or cost that may result from the exercise or non-exercise of a
trust, power, authonty and/or discretion,

(1) may reframn from exercising any discretion, power or authonty vested
in it by this deed until it has a direction to act from the Holders given
by Special Resolution and the Trustee shall not be responsible for any
loss or cost that may result from doing so

Determinations conclusive As between itself and the Holders, the Trustee
may determine all questions and doubts ansing in relation to any provision of
this deed and every such determination, whether made on a question actually
raised, or implied in the acts or proceedings of the Trustee, shall be conclusive
and shall bind the Trustee and the Holders

Delegation The Trustee, whenever it thinks 1t expedient in the interests of the
Holders to do so, may

() delegate, at any time, to any person, any of the trusts, powers,
authorites or discretions vested in the Trustee by this deed which
cannot conveniently be exercised by 1t or through its employees, upon
such terms and conditons and under such regulations (including
power to sub-delegate) as the Trustee thinks fit, and the Trustee shall
not be responsible for any loss incurred by any misconduct or default
on the part of any such delegate or sub-delegate,

() authorise such person as it thinks fit to act as its representative at any
meeting, or
() n addition to the exercise of the powers contained in clause 11 3,

apply to the court for directions n relation to any question ansing
either before or after the Date of Enforcement

Interests of foreign Holders In the exercise of any trust, duty, power,
authonty or discretion under this deed, the Trustee shall have regard to the
interests of the Holders as a whole and shall not have regard to the
consequences of such exercise for individual Holders as a result of the Holder
being, for any purpose, domiciled or resident in, or otherwise connected with,
or subject to the junsdiction of, any particular country or place other than New
Zealand

Represent Holders The Trustee may, either of its own volition or pursuant to any
directions or in accordance with any policy given or indicated by any meeting of Holders,
represent the Holders in any matter concerning them generally

No prejudice The rights, powers, authorties and discretions conferred upon the Trustee
by this deed are without prejudice, and In addition, to any other nghts, powers, authorities
and discretions to which the Trustee 1s at any time entitled (whether under this deed or
by law, contract or otherwise, and whether vested in the Trustee in its capacity as
trustee for the Holders, or otherwise) Unless otherwise expressly provided in this deed,
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the Trustee's nghts under this deed may be exercised by the Trustee without prior notice
to the Company, any Holder or any other person

OTHER PROVISIONS RELATING TO THE TRUSTEE

Remuneration

(a)

(b)

()

(d)

The Company shall pay to the Trustee, for its services as Trustee, such
remuneration as 1s, from time to time, agreed between the Company and the
Trustee If the Company and the Trustee fall to agree on any amount payable
under this clause, the matter shall be referred to an arbitrator to be appointed
by the parties, If they can agree on one, and otherwise to an arbitrator to be
appointed by the President, for the time being, of the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of New Zealand, in accordance with the Arbitration Act 1996

The Company shall also pay all expenses {including legal fees on a full
indemnity basis and travelling expenses) reasonably incurred by, or on behalf
of, the Trustee in connection with

{1 the preparation, execution and registration of this deed,

(n) the exercise by the Trustee of any nght, power, duty or privilege
conferred by this deed on the Trustee or on any Holder, inciuding the
taking of any expert advice deemed necessary or expedient by the
Trustee,

() any breach or default in the observance or performance by the
Company of any provision of this deed,

() the convening, and holding, and carrying out of any directions or
resolutions, of any meeting of Holders,

(v) any application under the trusts and prowisions of this deed for its
consent to, or approval of, any act or matter, or

{v1) the preparation, execution and registration of any release of this deed

The remuneraton and other amounts payable pursuant to this clause are
payable on demand and shall continue to be payable until the trusts of this
deed are finally wound up, whether or not a Receiver has been appointed or
the trusts of this deed are in the course of admmustration by, or under the
direction of, the court

All expenses incurred, and payments made, by the Trustee or any Receiver in
the lawful exercise of the powers conferred by this deed, and all remuneration
payable to the Trustee or to any Receiver, are payable by the Company on
demand, shall form part of the Secured Money, shall be secured by the
secunty interest and charge under this deed, and shall be satisfied before any
payment 1s made out of the Collateral to the Holders and, until payment, shall
carry interest at the rate certified by the Trustee to be 2% per annum In excess
of the 90 day bank bill rate fixed on such basis as the Trustee determines

Indemmity out of Collateral Without prejudice to the nght of indemnity given to
trustees by law

(@)

the Trustee and every Recewer, attorney, manager, agent or other person
appointed by the Trustee pursuant to this deed shall be indemnified out of the
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Collateral in respect of all habilities and expenses incurred in the execution or
purported execution of the trusts, duties, powers, authorties and discretions of
this deed and against all actions, proceedings, costs, clams and demands n
respect of any matter or thing done or omitted, or in any way relating to this
deed, other than a clam ansing out of wilful default, wilful breach of trust or
gross negligence,

(b) the Trustee may retain and pay out of any moneys in its hands arising from the
trusts of this deed all sums necessary to give effect to the indemmty given
under clause 12 2(a) and to pay the remuneration and disbursements of the
Trustee provided for in this deed, and

(c} all moneys payable to the Trustee under this clause 12 2 or otherwise anising in
any way out of, or in connection with, this deed shall form part of the Secured
Money and shall be secured by the secunity interest and charge under this deed

Indemnity by Heolders The Trustee 1s not bound to comply with a request or direction
pursuant to the provisions of clauses 14 1 or 15 1, or its obligations under clause 20 1,
unless the Trustee has first been indemnified to its satisfaction against all actions,
proceedings, claims and demands to which it may be rendered hable, and all costs,
charges, damages and expenses which it may incur, by so doing, and such indemnity
survives release of this deed

Fiduciary relationship Nothing expressed in this deed or impled by law prohibits the
Trustee or any of its related companies {(in this clause, where the context permits, all
being included n the term “Trustee”) or the officers of the Trustee from being a
sharehclder, stockholder or other creditor of the Company or of any of its related
companies or from acting in any representative capacity for a Holder The Trustee may
enter into any transaction with the Company or any of its related companies and 1s not
accountable to the Holders for any profits ansing from any such transaction

Confidentiality The Trustee 1s not required to disclose to any Holder any confidential
financial or other information made available to the Trustee by the Company, unless
ordered to do so by a court of competent jurisdiction

Retirement The Trustee may retire at any time, without assigruing any reason for doing
s0, upon giving written notice to the Company of not less than 90 days, subject to the
due appointment of a new Trustee and the transfer to that new Trustee of the secunties
(if any) collateral to this deed and the moneys and investments held by the Trustee
pursuant to this deed

Appointment of new Trustee

(a) The power of appointing a new Trustee or Trustees is vested in the Company
but no new Trustee shall be appointed unless the appointment 1s first approved
by a Special Resolution

(b) Upon any vacancy in the office of Trustee ansing, the Company shall promptly
call a meeting of the Holders for the purpose of approving the appointment of a
new Trustee and, If approval 1s given, the Company shall exercise its power of
appointment

(c) if, within 30 days after receiving notice of the Trustee’s intention to retire, the
Company fails to call a meeting of Holders in accordance with clause 12 7(b),
or to exercise the power of appointing a new Trustee or new Trustees vested in
it by this clause, the Holders may, by Special Resolution, exercise such power
to the exclusion of the Company
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DEFAULT

Enforcement Subject to clause 11 4, the secunty created under, and by, this deed
becomes enforceable if any of the following events occur

() a Liguidation of ASB Capital 1s commenced,

(b) a Ligudation of ASB Bank 1s commenced,

(c) a Liquidation of the Company 1s commenced,

(d) the Company fails to comply with any of its obligations under this deed, and

that falure continues for a period of 20 Business Days after receipt by the
Company of notice from the Trustee specifying the failure and requiring that it
be remedied

TRUSTEE’S POWERS ON ENFORCEMENT

Powers on enforcement At any time after a Default occurs, the Trustee may, and
shall iImmediately (subject to the provisions of clause 12 3) upon being directed to do so
by a Special Resolution

{(a) require payment to the Trustee of an amount calculated in accordance with
clause 14 2,
{ (whether or not a Receiver has been appointed) exercise any of the powers of

a Recever, or which a person would have If appointed as a Receiver under this
deed, and/or

(c) pay any expenses incurred In the exercise of any of such powers out of the
revenue from, or proceeds of realisation of, the Collateral, and the Trustee may
for any such purpose, or for any other purpose expressed or implied n this
deed, borrow or raise money on the secunty of the Collateral in priority to the
Secured Money, on such terms as the Trustee thinks fit

Amount The amount referred to in clause 14 1(a) i1s the aggregate of

(a) any part of the Secured Money due and payable by the Company to the Trustee
on the date the Trustee makes a requirement under clause 14 1(a), and

{b) an amount equal to the aggregate amount which would be payable under Article
4 12 of the Terms if a Liquidation of ASB Capital commenced on the date on
which the Trustee makes its requirement

For the avoidance of doubt, the Trustee may require payment to the Trustee of any part of
the Secured Money not referred to in clause 14 2(a) or (b) which becomes due and
payable after the Trustee makes a requirement under clause 14 1(a), as and when the
same becomes due and payable

No obligation to advise event of default The Trustee shall not be under any
oblhigation to adwise any Holder of any occurrence of the nature specified in clause 14 1,
or to convene any meeting of Holders, unless in the Trustee’s opinion the occurrence
will, or may have, a matenal adverse effect on the interests of the Holders generally
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RECEIVER

Appointment of Receiver The Trustee may (whether or not the Trustee has exercised
any other power)

(a) at any time after a Default occurs, or
(b} If the Company requests,

appoint any person or persons to be a Receiver of all or any of the Collateral, and shall
(subject to the provisions of clause 12 3) appoint a person or persons as Receiver upon
being directed to do so by a Special Resolution The Trustee may remove any Receiver
and may appoint a new Receiver in place of any Receiver who has ceased for any
reason to hold office, or in addition to a Receiver already appointed

Powers of Receiver In addition to, and without Imiting or affecting, any other powers
and authonties conferred on a Recewver (whether under the Receiverships Act 1993 or
at taw or otherwise), a Recewver has the power to do all things in relation to the
Collateral as If the Receiver had absolute ownership of the Collateral The Receiver
shall, in the exercise of his or her powers, authonties and discretions, comply with any
directions given by the Trustee

Moneys on trust Except as otherwise directed by the Trustee, all money from time to
time held by the Receiver which 1s not required to be retained by the Receiver for the
performance of his or her duties shall be paid to the Trustee to be held by it on the trusts
declared in this deed

PROTECTION OF TRUSTEE, RECEIVER AND OTHER PERSONS

Accountability If the Trustee or a Receiver sells any Collateral (whether pursuant to
this deed or otherwise), the Trustee or Recewer shall be accountable only for any
purchase money which that person actually receives

Protection of persons dealing with the Trustee or Receiver No person dealing with
the Trustee or any Receiver, or with any person acting on behalif of any of them, shall

(a) be concerned to enquire whether any power which the Trustee, Receiver, or
person acting on their behalf, as the case may be, 1s purporting to exercise
have become exercisable (whether by a Default, the proper appointment of a
Receiver, or otherwise), or otherwise as to any matter in connection with the
exercise of any such power, or

{b) see to the application of any amount paid to the Trustee, Recewver, or person
acting on therr behalf, as the case may be,

and, in the absence of fraud on the part of that person, such dealing shall be deemed,
so far as regards the safety and protection of that person, to be within the powers
conferred by this deed and to be valid and effective accordingly, and the remedy of the
Company n respect of any wregularnty or impropnety whatever in the exercise of those
powers shall be in damages only

No habiiity The Trustee or a Receiver shall not be lable to account, or for any loss, as
mortgagee in possession and may at any time give up possession of any Collateral
Netther the Trustee nor a Recelver shall be liable for any losses which may occur n, or
as a result of, the exercise, purported exercise or non-exercise of any of their nghts,
powers or remedies
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Concurrent sale or receivership The Trustee may, upon such terms as it thinks
proper, join n exercising its powers under this deed with any other secured creditor of
the Company and in particular may, on such terms as 1t thinks proper, join in appointing
a common Receiver of the Collateral or any part thereof, subject to the Trustee retaining
such priority as is enjoyed by it in respect of the Collateral but with liberty for the Trustee
to make any arrangements it thinks proper for the purpose of ensunng the respective
priorities

DISTRIBUTION OF PROCEEDS

Apphcation of proceeds All amounts received by the Trustee or any Recewver,
whether in the exercise of that person’s powers or otherwise shall be applied mn
accordance with the provisions of the PPSA

Distribution of funds All meney received by the Trustee pursuant to clause 17 1 and
available for that purpose shall be held and apphed

(a) first, in or towards payment to the Holders, pan passu in proportion to the
amounts owing to them, of Dividends payable in accordance with the Terms,

(b) secondly, In or towards payment to Holders, pan passu in proportion to the
amounts owing to them, of amounts payable pursuant to Article 4 12 of the
Terms,

{c) lastly, subject to the nghts of any subsequent encumbrancers, in payment to

the Company, or such other person or persons as the Company, or any court
of competent junsdiction on the application of the Trustee, directs

Payments to ASB Capital Notwithstanding clause 17 2, if a Liqguidation of ASB Capital
has not commenced, the Trustee may at its entire discretion pay to ASB Capital any
amount held by the Trustee, If the Trustee 1s satisfied at its discretion that that amount
will be applied by ASB Capital in payments to Holders

Trustee’s powers to postpone distribution if the moneys at any time available under
clause 17 2 are less than 10% of the amounts then owing to Holders, the Trustee may,
tn 1ts discretion, invest those moneys and those investments and the income from them
may be accumulated until the accumulations and any other available funds amount to a
sum sufficient to pay at least 10% of the amounts then owing to Holders

Reliance on Register For the purposes of determining the appropriate payment to be
made to Holders pursuant to clause 17 2, the Trustee may rely absolutely on the
Register

ALTERATIONS TO TRUST DEED AND MEETINGS

Trustee may concur In certain alterations The provisions of this deed may be added
to, or varied, by deed executed by the Company and the Trustee

(&) without the consent of the Holders, if the addition or vanation
(1) IS necessary or desirable to correct a manifest error, or to comply with
the requirements of any statute or statutory regulations, or the listing

rules of any stock exchange,

() 1s of a formal or technical nature,
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(i) in the opinion of the Trustee, is not, or i1s not likely to become,
prejudicial to the general interests of the Holders,

(v) in the opirion of the Trustee, 1s 1N the Interests of the Holders to take
cognisance of a modification to the law in New Zealand, or

(v) Is necessary or convenient for complying with any generally accepted
financial market, banking or business practice and, in the opinion of
the Trustee, 1s appropnate and reasonable in all the circumstances
and 1s not, and 1s not likely to become, prejudicial to the general
interests of the Holders, or

(b) with the consent of the Holders given by Special Resolution

Meetings Meetings of Holders shall be convened and held in accordance with the
Constitution  ASB Capital shall convene a meeting of Holders without delay after
receiving from the Trustee a request in writing to convene a meeting of Holders,
specifying the resolution or resolutions to be considered at that meeting or a request of
Holders in accordance with section 121(b) of the Compantes Act 1993 The Trustee
shall have no habilty to any Holder or any other person If the directors of ASB Capital,
having been requested by the Trustee or Holders to convene a meeting of Holders, fail
fo do so

NOTICES
Form and method of service Any notice, requisition, demand or request under this

deed ("Notice”) may be signed by, or on behalf of, the Company, the Trustee or a
Holder, by an officer, employee, agent, attomey or solicitor and may be given to

(a) a Holder by posting it, postage prepaid and air mail in the case of a Registered
Address outside New Zealand, addressed to the Registered Address of the
Holder,

(b) the Company by delivering it, or posting it in accordance with clause 19 1(a), to

the registered office of the Company,

(c) the Trustee, by delivering i, or posting 1t in accordance with clause 19 1(a), to
the office of the branch of the Trustee which normally undertakes and performs
the administration of the trusts of this deed or to its registered office or principal
place of business

Proof of service In proving the giving of a Notice by post, it shall be sufficient to prove
that the person signing has signed for, or on behalf of, the person giving the Notice and
that the envelope containing the Notice was properly addressed, stamped and
dispatched in the ordinary course of post, and the Notice shall be deemed to be served
on the day following the day of posting

Notice to Jjoint holders In the case of joint holders of Preference Shares, a Notice
given to the Holder whose name stands first in the Register shall be deemed to have
been given to all the joint holders

Notice by Trustee Any Notice may be given by the Trustee to the Company in
accordance with sections 185 to 189 of the PPSA
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RELEASE, REINSTATEMENT AND REDEMPTION

Release The Trustee shall not be obliged to sign a release of this deed, or to release
any Collateral from this deed, unless the Trustee 1s satisfied that

(a) the Trustee has received all of the Secured Money, and

{b) no payment received, or to be received, by the Trustee may be avoided, or
required to be repaid by the Trustee, whether under any law relating to
insolvency or otherwise

Reinstatement If any payment received or recovered by the Trustee, a Receiver, or
any other person on behalf of the Trustee 1s or may be avoided, whether by law or
otherwise, then (notwithstanding that the Trustee may have signed a release pursuant to
clause 20 1)

(a) such payment shall be deemed not to have affected or discharged the hability
of the Company under this deed or any other secunty given by the Company In
favour of the Trustee and the Trustee and the Company shall, to the maximum
extent permitted by law, be restored to the position in which each would have
been Iif such payment had not been received or recovered, and

(b) the Trustee shall be entitied to exercise all nghts which the Trustee would have
been entitled to exercise If such payment had not been received or recovered

PERSONAL PROPERTY SECURITIES ACT 1999

No consent or subordination Nothing in this deed shall be construed as

{a) an agreement to subordinate the secunty interest under this deed in favour of
any person, or

(b) a consent by the Trustee to any security interest attaching to, or any other
secunty subsisting over, any Collateral other than the ASB Capital Secunty
Interest

Contracting out of PPSA nghts The Company

(a) agrees that If, at any relevant time, the Trustee does not at that tme have
prionty over all other secured parties in respect of any Collateral, then the
Company and the Trustee will, for purposes of section 109(1) of the PPSA, be
deemed, in accordance with the entitliement to do so under section 107(1) of
the PPSA, to have contracted out of that section but specifically on the basis
that, as between them and for purposes of this deed and the operation and
application of the PPSA, that section 109(1) (but amended only by the deletion
of the words “with priority over all other secured parties") 1s reinstated and
contracted back into,

(b) agrees that nothing in sections 114(1){a), 133 and 134 of the PPSA shall apply
to this deed, or the secunty under this deed, and

{c) waives the Company’s nght to do any of the following
n object to the Trustee's proposal to retain any Collateral under section
121 of the PPSA,
() redeem any Collateral under section 132 of the PPSA

Name change If the Company wishes to change its name, it shall give the Trustee
notice of the new name not less than 15 Business Days before the change takes effect,
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and shall do all things necessary to ensure that the secunty interest under this deed 1s
maintained

MISCELLANEQOUS

Other secunities This deed s collateral to each other secunty {whenever executed or
given) which 1s at any time held by the Trustee in respect of any Secured Money, and
nothing in this deed shall prejudice any other security at any time held by the Trustee
The Trustee may exercise any of the Trustee's nghts under this deed and any such
other secunty separately or concurrently

Obligations independent Each of the obligations of the Company under section 8 and
clause 122 of this deed, shall constitute a continuing obligation, separate and
independent from the Company's other obligations under this deed and shall sunvive
payment of the Secured Money and release of this deed It shall not be necessary for
the Trustee to incur any expense or make any payment before enforcing any of the
Trustee's nghts in respect of any obligation of the Company under this deed

No waiver No delay in acting, or failure to act, by the Trustee 1s a waiver of any of the
Trustee's nghts, and the Trustee shall not be lhable to any person for any such delay or
failure

No merger or marshalling The Trustee’'s nght to payment of any Secured Money
(including under any negotiable instrument or other agreement or arrangement) shail not
merge the Company's obligation to pay that Secured Money under this deed The
Trustee has no duty to marshal in favour of the Company or any other person

Partial invahidity An invahd provision of this deed shall not affect the enforceabihity of
the remaining provisions of this deed

Certificates A certificate of the Trustee as to any amount or fact which might
reasonably be expected to be within the Trustee’s knowledge shall be prnma face
evidence of that amount or fact

Continuing secunty This deed 1s a continuing security and shail operate irespective
of any intervening payment, settlement of account or other matter or thing whatever,
untl a release has been signed by the Trustee and delivered to the Company

Governing law New Zealand law governs this deed, and the parties submit to the non-
exclusive junsdiction of the courts of New Zealand

SIGNED AS A DEED

ASB Glji) P (HOLDINGS) LIMITED by
4
f e

Signature of director Slgnaturp’of director

. Tobn W1 aen Duncan Groham Hugh Burredt

Name of director Name of director

1565735 v7
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Executed under the name and seal of
THE NEW ZEALAND GUARDIAN
TRUST COMPANY LIMITED

and witnessed by

A\

Signature of witness
Rsowyn Hum

19 Shefimar Pleco
Menuiet—

Occupation
Execubve Assistant

City/town of residence

ASB CAPW? I I/ D by

N/

Authopsed signatory

Authonsed signatory

Signature of director

Slgnah{ﬁ director
@L.A_ [4/ “: e Du-mcm/\,\

bt fif’{m\c;'/ ! |

Name of director

1565735 v7
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APPENDIX

Terms of Preference Shares

Set out below are the provisions of the Constitution relevant to the Perpetual Preference Shares
The numbering of the provisions reflects the numbening in the Constitution

1

11

14
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DEFINITIONS AND INTERPRETATION

Defimtions

In this Constitution, unless the contrary intention appears

"ASB" means ASB Bank Limited,

"ASB Group (Holdings}' means ASB Group (Holdings) Limited,
"Act" means the Companies Act 1993,

"Article” means a provision of this Constitution as amended or added to from time to
time,

"Company" means ASB Capital Limited,
"Constitution” means this Constitution as amended or added to from time to time,

"director" means a person holding office as a director of the Company, and where
appropriate includes an alternate director,

"directors” means all or some of the directors acting as a board and the term "board"
shall be construed accordingly,

"Holding Company" means CBA Funding (NZ) Limited,
"register” means the register of members to be kept pursuant to the Act,

"ordinary share" means an ordinary share issued, or to be 1ssued, by the Company as
the case may require,

"preference share” means a perpetual preference share 1ssued, or to be 1ssued, by the
Company as the case may require,

"share" means an ordinary share, a preference share or any class of share in the capital
of the Company,

"shareholder" means any person who is the registered holder of a share,

"special resolution” means a resolution approved by a majority of seventy-five per cent
(75%) of the votes of those shareholders entitled to vote and voting on the issue

Amendment of Constitution

(a) Subject to the Act, this Constitution may be altered at any time by way of a special
resolution
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(b)  An application to change the name of the Company 1s not an amendment of this
Constitution for the purposes of Article 14(a) above and may be made by a
director with the prior approval of the Holding Company

(c) Without hmiting Articles 4 25 and 4 28, this Constitution shall not be altered or
revoked without the wnitten approval of ASB

Rights of Preference Shares

The nghts, privileges, hmitations and conditions attaching to the preference shares shall
be as set out In Article 4 If there 1s any conflict between a provision i Article 4 and any
other provision of this Constitution, the provision in Article 4 shall prevail

ISSUES OF SHARES

Issue of further shares

The issue of further shares ranking equally with, or in prionty to, any existing shares,
whether as to voting nghts, distributions or otherwise, 1s deemed not to be an action

affecting the rights attaching to the existing shares

PREFERENCE SHARES

Definitions
In Articles 4 1 to 4 30 of this Constitution, unless the context otherwise requires

"Benchmark Rate" on any day means the rate per annum expressed on a percentage
yield basis, and rounded up to the nearest two decimal places, which 1s

(@) the average of the bid and offered swap rate displayed at or about 11am on that
day on page FISSWAP (or any successor page) of the Reuters monitor screen for
an interest rate swap with a one year term, or

(b) If a rate 15 unable to be determined In accordance with paragraph (a), or If the
Company forms the view that the rate so determined 1s not an accurate reflection
of market rates, the average of the mean and bid offered swap rates quoted by
three registered banks in New Zealand other than ASB at or about 11am on that
day for an interest rate swap with a one year term

"Business Day” means any day other than a Saturday, Sunday or a statutory public
holiday In New Zealand

"Buyout Notice” has the meaning in Article 4 21

"Buyout Price” in respect of each preference share at any date means the aggregate
of

(a) thelssue Price,

(b) subject to Article 4 7, Dividends payable on that preference share as at that date
calculated on a daily basis from the end of the most recent Dividend Period to that
date

"Commonwealth Bank" means Commaonwealth Bank of Australia
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"Commonwealth Bank Subsidiary" means the Holding Company or any wholly owned
subsidiary of Commonwealth Bank (which 1s not ASB or a subsidiary of ASB) to which
the Holding Company assigns its nghts under Articles 4 21 to 4 24

"Distnibution” has the meaning set out In section 2(1) of the Act

"Dividend” means any dividend on the preference shares payable pursuant to Article
42

"Dividend Amount” In respect of a Dividend Period means a sum n respect of each
preference share calculated in accordance with the following formula

Divid
Issue Price x M e::d Rate x(1-1)

Where

Dividend Rate 1s

(a) n respect of each Dividend Penod commencing after 15 November 2003, the
Benchmark Rate on the Relevant Reset Date plus the Margin (adjusted to an
equivalent quarterly rate),

(b) n respect of each Dividend Period ending on or before 15 November 2003, the

greater of
n the Benchmark Rate on the Rate Set Date plus the Margin (adjusted
to an equivalent quarterty rate), or
() 7 4% per annum

t i1s the basic rate of income tax applicable to the Company under Schedule 1 of the Tax
Act

provided that the Dividend Amount n respect of the first Dividend Penod shall be an
amount calculated m accordance with the following formula

Y

x...—

9125
where
X1s an amount calculated in accordance with the first formula set out in this definttion
Y is the period from and including the Issue Date to but excluding 15 February 2003

"Dividend Cancellation Notice" means a notice given by the board pursuant to Article
47

"Dividend Payment Date" means 15 November, 15 February, 15 May and 15 August in
each year

"Dividend Perniod" means each period commencing on and including a Dmwvidend
Payment Date and ending on but excluding the next Dividend Payment Date, or, n
respect of the first Dividend Period, the peniod from and including the Issue Date to but
excluding 15 February 2003
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"Dividend Resumption Notice" means a notice given pursuant to Article 4 9

"Fully Credited" means in relation to a Dividend, that imputation Credits are validly
attached to the Dividend, so that the imputation ratio of the Dividend 1s the maximum
imputation ratio permitted by law

"Holder" In respect of a preference share means a person whose name s entered In the
Share Register as the holder for the time being of that preference share

“Imputation Credit” means an imputation credit as defined in section OB 1 of the Tax
Act

"Issue Date" In respect of a preference share, means the date on which that preference
share I1s 1ssued

"Issue Price” means $1 in respect of each preference share
"Margin" means 1 3% per annum

"Rate Set Date” means a date specified by the Company, being the Business Day
following the closing date of an offer of preference shares to the public

"Reset Date" means 15 November 2003 and each 15 November thereafter

"Relevant Reset Date” means In respect of a Dividend Period, If that Dividend Penod
begins on a Reset Date, that Reset Date, and if that Dividend Period does not begin on
a Reset Date, the Reset Date mmediately preceding that Dividend Period

"Regulatory Authonty" means the Reserve Bank of New Zealand, the Austrahan
Prudential Regulation Authonty or any other authonty having junsdiction in respect of
banking in Australia or New Zealand

"Share Registrar’ means an agent appointed by the Company to keep the register of
the preference shares

"Tax Act" means the Income Tax Act 1994

"Trust Deed” means a trust deed dated 30 October 2002 between the Company, ASB
Group (Holdings) and The New Zealand Guardian Trust Company Limited whereby the
Company and ASB Group (Holdings) give certain covenants for the benefit of Holders

Whenever 1n Articles 4 1 to 4 30 there 1s a reference to a date, and that date 1s not a
Business Day, the reference shall be deemed to be to the next day which is a Business
Day

Dividend

The preference shares carry the nght to a dividend, payable in prionty to other
Distributions 1n accordance with Article 4 6, in respect of each Dividend Period equal to
the Dividend Amount for that Dividend FPenod

Dividend to be Fully Credited

All Dividend Amounts shall be Fully Credited The only consequence of, or remedy for,
a Dividend Amount not being Fully Credited shall be the payment by the Company of the

amount referred to in Article 4 4

Imputation Credit shortfall
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If all or any part of a Dividend Amount 1s not Fully Credited the Company shall pay to
each Holder an amount equal to the shortfall in Imputation Credits of which Holders
would otherwise have had the benefit The amount payable under this Article 4 4

(@) 1s due on the Dividend Payment Date of the Dividend Amount and, to the extent
paid, substitutes for or replaces the corresponding obligation of the Company
under Article 4 3, and

(b) shall be regarded as a vanation in the rate at which Dwvidends are calculated
Dividend Payment Date

If a Dividend 1s paid In respect of any Dividend Period, it shall be paid on the Dwidend
Payment Date on which that Dividend Period ends

Dividends to have priority

Dividends shall rank for payment in priority to the nghts in respect of dividends or other
Distributions of all holders of other classes of shares of the Company

Cancellation of Dividends

Without imiting section 52(1) of the Act, but subject to Article 4 8, the directors may, by
notice sent to Holders not later than five Business Days after the end of a Dividend
Period, cancel the payment of Dividends in respect of that Dividend Period and all
subsequent Dividend Periods, until such time as the board gives a Dividend Resumption
Notice

Reasons for cancellation
The board may give a Dividend Cancellation Notice if

(@) the board I1s not satisfied on reasonable grounds that immediately after payment of
a Dividend the Company will satisfy the solvency test, or

{b) the board has for any other reason determined in s discretion that a Dividend, or
Dividends generally, should not be paid, or

(c) ASB has given notice to the Company that the board of directors of ASB has
determined that a Dividend, or Dividends generally, should not be paid, or

(d} Commonwealth Bank has given notice to the Company that the board of directors
of Commonwealth Bank has determined that a Dividend, or Dividends generally,
should not be paid

Dividend Resumption Notice

If the board has given a Dividend Cancellation Notice the board may at any time
thereafter send notice to Holders to the effect that Dividends should again be paid If
such a notice i1s given, Dividends shall agan be payable as from and tncluding the first
Dividend Period commencing after the giving of that notice, unless and until a further
Dividend Canceliation Notice 1s given  If the board has given a Dividend Cancetllation
Notice following receipt from ASB or Commonwealth Bank of a notice of the nature
referred to 1n Article 4 8(c) or 4 8(d) and the Company receives from the party which
gave that notice a notice to the effect that Dividends should again be paid, the board
shall give a Dividend Resumption Notice unless the board makes a determination of the
nature referred to in Article 4 8(a) or (b)
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Effect of cancellation

if a Dividend Cancellation Notice 1s given, any obligation of the Company to pay, and
any nght of Holders to receive, the Dividends referred to in Article 4 7 shall be cancelled
absolutely The preference shares are not cumulative

Suspension period

If a Dividend Cancellation Notice 1s given, then for the penod from the date of that
Dividend Cancellation Notice unti the Company has paid in full Dividends for two
consecutive Dividend Perods the Company shall not make any Distribution, other than
Dividends

Capital

Each Holder shall have the night in a iquidation of the Company to payment, in priority to
the holders of other classes of shares of the Company, of the Issue Pnce of the
preference shares held by that Holder and (subject to Article 4 7) Divdends payable on
those preference shares at the date of commencement of liquidation calculated on a
daly basis from the end of the most recent Dividend Perncd to the date of
commencement of hquidation

Voting

Holders shall have no nght to receive notice of, attend, or vote at meetings of
shareholders of the Company, other than meetings called under Articles 4 25 or 4 26

Transfer
A Holder may, subject to Article 4 18, transfer any preference share

(a) under a system of transfer approved under section 7 of the Securities Transfer Act
1991 which is applicable to the Company,

(b) under any other share transfer system which operates in relation to the trading of
securties on any stock exchange outside New Zealand on which preference
shares are quoted and which 1s applicable to the Company, or

{c) by an instrument of transfer which complies with this Constitution
Systems of Transfer

A preference share which 1s disposed of 1n a transaction which complies with the
requirements of a system of transfer authonsed under Article 4 14(a) or 4 14(b) may be
transferred in accordance with the requirements of that system Where an instrument of
transfer executed by a transferor outside New Zealand would have complied with the
provisions of the Secunties Transfer Act 1991 if it had been executed in New Zealand, it
may nevertheless be registered by the Company if it 1s executed In a manner acceptable
to the Company or the Share Regstrar

Instrument Requirements

An Instrument of transfer of preference shares to which the provisions of Article 4 15 are
not applicable shall

(@) be in any common form or any other form approved by the Company or the Share
Registrar, and
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(b) be signed or executed by or on behalf of the transferar
Delivery of instrument

An instrument transferning preference shares must be delivered to the Company or to
the Share Registrar, together with such evidence (f any) as the Company or the Share
Regrstrar reasonably requires to prove the title of the transferor to, or nght of the
transferor to transfer, the preference shares

Refusal to register

Subject to section 84 of the Act (which imposes certain procedural requirements on a
board), the board may refuse to register a transfer of any preference share if

{(a) the Company has a lien on the preference share,

(b) the transferor fals to produce such evidence as the Company or the Share
Registrar reasonably requires to prove the title of the transferor to, or nght of the
transferor to transfer, the preference share, or

(c) registration of the transfer (together with registration of any further transfer or
transfers then held by the Company and awaiting registration) would result in less
than 5000 preference shares standing in the name of the transferee,

provided that the board resolves to exercise Its power under this Article within 30
Business Days after receipt of the relevant transfer and notice of the resolution 1s sent to
the transferor and to the transferee within five Business Days of the resolution being
passed by the board

Transferor to remain Holder until registration

A transferor of a preference share 1s deemed to remain the Holder of the preference
share until the name of the transferee 1s entered In the register in respect of the share

Company to retain instruments

If the Company registers an instrument of transfer it shall retain the istrument
Compulsory Buyout

Subject to Article 4 22, Commonwealth Bank Subsidiary may give notice to all Holders in
the manner specified In Article 12 (@ "Buyout Notice") requinng Holders to transfer their
preference shares to Commonwealth Bank Subsichary A Buyout Notice shall take
effect. and the Buyout Price shall be paid, on the day specified in the notice, being not

less than 90 days, and not more than 120 days, after the date on which the notice 1s
given

Timing of Buyout Notice

A Buyout Notice may be given only

(a) five years or more after the Issue Date, or

(b) at any earlier tme, if there has occurred any change n law (including any law
relating to taxation) or in the interpretation or application thereof by any Court or

governmental agency, or In any directive, regulation, request or requirement of a
Regulatory Authonty or other governmental agency, which matenaily adversely
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affects the benefits of the preference shares to the Company, ASB, or
Commonwealth Bank

Effect of Buyout Notice
If Commonwealth Bank Subsidiary gives a Buyout Notice then

(a) each Holder shall be deemed, on the day on which Commonwealth Bank
Subsidiary pays to that Holder the Buyout Price, to transfer that Holder's
preference shares to Commonwealth Bank Subsidiary, and the Company shall on
that day enter the name of Commonwealth Bank Subsidiary on the register as the
holder of those preference shares,

(b) each Holder shall be deemed to have authorsed the Company to act on behalf of
that Holder i respect of the transfer of that Holder's preference shares to
Commonwealth Bank Subsidiary, and to sign any document necessary to effect or
record that transfer

(c) Commonwealth Bank Subsidiary may pay the Buyout Pnce in the manner
specified in Article 10 5 (with the necessary modifications)

Partial Buyout

Commonwealth Bank Subsidiary may give a Buyout Notice in respect of a specified
proportion of the preference shares held by each Holder If Commonwealth Bank
Subsidiary does so, Articles 4 21 to 4 23 shall apply modified so as to refer to that
proportion of each Holder's preference shares Commonweailth Bank Subsidiary may
give notice of the nature referred to in this clause on more than one occasion
Amendment

Subject to Article 4 28, the rights, pnvileges, hmitations and conditions attaching to the
preference shares may be amended with the approval of

(a) the board, and
(b)  an ordinary resolution of the holders of ordinary shares, and
{c) aspecial resolution of Holders

A meeting of Holders for the purposes referred to in paragraph (c) may be convened by
the board

Meeting for purposes of Trust Deed

The board may at any time convene a meeting of Holders to consider a resolution
proposed to be passed for a purpose referred to 1n the Trust Deed The board shall
convene such a meeting If the trustee under the Trust Deed so requests

Conduct of Meetings

A meeting of Holders to consider a resolution of the nature referred to in Article 4 25 or
4 26 shall be convened and held in accordance with the first schedule to the Act At any
such meeting

(a) where voting 1s by show of hands or by voice every Holder present in person or by
representative has one vote,
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(b) on a poll every Holder present in person or by representative has one vote In
respect of each preference share held by that Holder, and

(c) if the meeting is to consider a resolution of the nature referred to in Article 4 26,
and the trustee under the Trust Deed nominates any person as chairperson for
the meeting, that person shall chair the meeting

Restrictions on amendments
No amendment of the nature referred to in Article 4 25 shall be made unless
{a) ASB has approved that amendment, and

(b) that amendment will not affect the classification of the preference shares under
the rules of any Regulatory Authonty

Deductions

The Company may make from Dividends any deduction or withholding on account of tax
or on any other account which the Company 1s required by law to make

Supplementary dividend
If the Company at any time

(a) pays a dividend (as defined In section LE 2(1) of the Tax Act and n section OB 1
of that Act for the purposes of Part LE of that Act) to a Holder who 1s not resident
in New Zealand for tax purposes at that time, and

(b) the Company attaches an Imputation Credit to such dividend pursuant to section
ME 6 of the Tax Act,

then the Company may pay a single supplementary dividend (as defined in section OB 1
of the Tax Act) to that person

DIVIDENDS AND RESERVES
Method of Payment

A dividend payable in cash may be paid in such manner as the board thinks fit to the
entitled shareholders or, In the case of joint shareholders, to the shareholder named first
in the register, or to such other person and in such manner as the shareholder or jomt
shareholders may in writing direct  Any one of two or more joint shareholders may give
a receipt for any payment in respect of the shares held by them as joint shareholders

NOTICES

(@) A notice may be given to any member or to any other person entitled to notice
under this Constitution either by serving it on that person personally or by sending
it by post or facsimile transmission to the member's registered address or the
address supplied by that other person to the Company for the purpose of notices

{(b) Where a notice 1s sent by post, service of the notice shall be deemed to be
effected by properly addressing, prepaying, and posting a letter containing the
notice, and to have been effected, in the case of a notice of a meeting, on the day
after the date of its posting and, in any other case, at the time at which the letter
would be delivered in the ordinary course of post
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Where a notice I1s sent by facsimile transmission, service of the notice 1s deemed
to be effected by properly addressing the facsimile transmussion and the notice 1s
deemed to have been served in the case of a facsimile transmission on the day
following its despatch
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PERPETUAL LOAN NOTE AGREEMENT dated 30 Octobe 2002

PARTIES

ASB GROUP (HOLDINGS) LIMITED {“Borrower")
ASB CAPITAL LIMITED (“Lender”)

INTRODUCTION

A The Lender has agreed to make a Loan to the Borrower upon the terms and subject to
the conditions contained in this agreement

B The Loan will be secured by a secunty given by the Borrower to the Lender over all of
the perpetual preference shares held by the Borrower in ASB Bank Limited (“ASB Bank
Preference Shares”) ranking after a secunty in favour of The New Zealand Guardian
Trust Company Limited (the “Trustee”)

AGREEMENT
1 INTERPRETATION
11 In this agreement unless the context otherwise requires

"Advance Date" means a date notified by the Lender by at least one Business Day's
notice to the Borrower

"Benchmark Rate" on any day means the rate per annum expressed on a percentage
yield basis, and rounded up to the nearest two decimal places, which 1s

(a) the average of the bid and offered swap rate displayed at or about 11 am on
that day on page FISSWAP (or any successor page) of the Reuters monitor
screen for an interest rate swap with a one year term, or

(b) if a rate 1s unable to be determined in accordance with paragraph (a), or if the
Lender forms the view that the rate so determined 1s not an accurate reflection
of market rates, the average of the mean and bid offered swap rates quoted by
three registered banks in New Zealand other than ASB Bank Limited at or
about 11 am on that day for an interest rate swap with a one year term

"Business Day" means any day other than a Saturday, Sunday, or a statutory public
holiday in New Zealand

"Collateral” has the meaning in the securty referred to in paragraph B of the
Introduction

“Interest Amount” In respect of an Interest Period means a sum calculated in
accordance with the following formula

Interest Rate

Loan Amount x 2

where

Interest Rate 1s
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(a) In respect of each Interest Penod commencing after 15 November 2003, the
Benchmark Rate on the Relevant Reset Date plus the Margin (adjusted to an
equivalent quarterly rate),

(b) In respect of each interest Penod ending on or before 15 November 2003, the
greater of

() the Benchmark Rate on the Rate Set Date plus the Margin (adjusted to
an equivalent quarterly rate), or

() 7 4% per annum

provided that the Interest Amount in respect of the first interest Penod shall be an
amount calculated in accordance with the following formula

91 25

where
X ts an amount calculated in accordance with the first formula set out in this defintion
Y 1s the period from and including the Advance Date to but excluding 15 February 2003

"Interest Payment Date" means 15 November, 15 February, 15 May and 15 August in
each year

"Interest Period" means each penod commencing on and including an Interest
Payment Date and ending on but excluding the next Interest Payment Date, or, in
respect of the first Interest Pencd, the penod from and including the Advance Date to
but excluding 15 February 2003

"Loan” means the loan recorded In this agreement

“Loan Amount” means the amount (as certified by the Lender) received by the Lender
from the Offer

"Margin" means 1 3% per annum
"Offer" means an offer of perpetual preference shares to the public by the Lender

"Rate Set Date" means a date specified by the Lender, being the Business Day
following the closing date of the Offer

"Reset Date" means 15 November 2003 and each 15 November thereafter

"Reievant Reset Date” means in respect of an Interest Period, if that interest Period
begins on a Reset Date, that Reset Date, and if that interest Peniod does not begin on a
Reset Date, the Reset Date immediately preceding that interest Penod

Whenever in this agreement there i1s a reference to a date, and that date 1s not a
Business Day, the reference shall be deemed to be to the next day which 1s a Business
Day



-

21

31

32

42

51

LOAN

The Lender shall on the Advance Date lend to the Borrower the Loan Amount

INTEREST

The Borrower shall pay to the Lender, as interest on the Loan, the Interest Amount In
respect of each Interest Penod

The Interest Amount in respect of an interest Penod shall be paid to the Lender on the
last day of that Interest Perod

REPAYMENT OF LOAN

The Borrower shall repay the Loan if

(a) the process of iquidation provided for in Part XV of the Companies Act 1993 1s
commenced in respect of the Borrower, or

(b) the Borrower becomes subject to statutory management under the
Corporations (Investigation and Management) Act 1989 or the Reserve Bank of
New Zealand Act 1989.

If the Borrower receives any amount 1n respect of the ASB Bank Preference Shares
other than dividends, the Borrower shall erther

(a) if the Trustee so requires, pay that amount to the Trustee, or
(b) If the Trustee does not so require, pay that amount to the Lender in reduction
of the Loan

LIMITED RECOURSE

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this agreement, the following provisions
apply

(a) the Borrower remains liable in contract to meet the obligations assumed by the
Borrower under this agreement but the nghts of the Lender to enforce those
oblgations shall be imited in the manner provided in the following paragraphs,

(b) the Lender shall not be entitled to enforce payment, repayment or recovery of
any moneys owing to the Lender under this agreement against the Borrower
personally or against any assets or property of the Borrower other than the
Collateral,

(©) the Lender shall not, in relation to any obligation of the Borrower under this
agreement, obtain any judgment or seek or attempt to obtain any judgment for
payment by the Borrower of any money in relaton to any breach of this
agreement,

(d) the Lender's rnights of recovery against the Borrower shall be hmited to the
Collateral,

provided that nothing in this Iimited recourse provision prevents the Lender from
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(1) exercising the Lender's nghts under this agreement insofar as they
enable the Lender to exercise the Lender's secunty nghts In respect
of the Collateral,

(i) seeking or obtaining an injunction or resiraining order to restrain any
breach of this agreement or any secunty, or obtaiming any declaratory
relief

6 JURISDICTION
61 This agreement will be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of New
Zealand and the parties submit to the non-exclusive junsdiction of the New Zealand
Courts
SIGNATURES
ASB GT P (HOLDINGS) LIMITED by
’( i
Signature of director Signature f’ director /-
. Gobn Wilaw  Duncan Groham Huqﬁ Busrett
Name of director Name of director -
ASB CAPYWTED by
Signature of director SlgnéaMffolrector
fa‘fw gw!yl-e() #ﬂ /) ohn WV gn Dutncun.
Name of director J - Nare of director
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SPECIFIC SECURITY AGREEMENT - INVESTMENT SECURITIES

AGREEMENT dated 30 October 2002 given by ASB Group {Holdings) Limited (“Debtor”} in favour
of ASB Capital Limited (“Secured Party”)

OPERATIVE PROVISIONS

A

Description of Relevant Agreement “Relevant Agreement’ means the loan agreement
dated 30 October 2002 between the Debtor and the Secured Party, as modified, novated,
supplemented, vaned or replaced from time to time

Charging clause As secunty for

(a) the payment or delivery of all amounts of any nature which the Debtor 1s, or may
at any time become, hable (whether actually or contingently) to pay or deliver to
the Secured Party under, pursuant to, or ansing out of, the Relevant Agreement
or this agreement ("Secured Money”), and

(b) the performance by the Debtor of all the Debtor's other obligations to the
Secured Party at any time under the Relevant Agreement and this agreement,

the Debtor grants to the Secured Party a secunty interest in

(c) all of the perpetual preference shares held by the Debtor in ASB Bank Limited
(*Securities”),
(d) all
()] distnbutions (as that term 1s defined 1n section 2 of the Companies Act
1993), and
(n) all other nghts, money or investment securities of any nature,

(“Rights”} attnbutable to, or anising from, any Secuntes,
(e) all proceeds of any Secunties or Rights,
(f) all documents of title relating to any Secunties or Rights,

and all of the Debtor's present and future nghts in relation to those Secunties, Rights,
proceeds and documents of title, (“Collateral”) So far as it concerns each security
interest over or In respect of any present or future account recetvable and present and
future nghts In relation to any account receivable, the secunty interest granted shall take
effect as a transfer (as “transfer” 1s used in the context of and for the purposes of the
PPSA)

Restriction on dealings with Collateral Other than a secunty interest 1n favour of The
New Zealand Guardian Trust Company Limited, The Debtor shall not dispose of, or
permit the disposal of, or permit any other security interest to attach to, any Collateral

Other fundamental provisions The Debtor acknowledges and agrees that the provisions
set out in the Schedule of Terms attached are incorporated into this agreement
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ASB GROUP (HOLDINGS) LIMITED by

Signature of director Stgnatuﬂ of director N
Cohn Wilom Duncan  Graham Huah Burred?
Name of director Name of director
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ALL OBLIGATIONS SPECIFIC SECURITY AGREEMENT

SCHEDULE OF TERMS

11

12
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INTERPRETATION

Definitlons In this agreement
"ASE Bank” means ASB Bank Limited

“Collateral” has the meaning given to that term In the
Operative Prowisions, and a reference to Collateral
ncludes any part of it

“Companies Act” means the Companies Act 1993

"Default" means any falure by Debtor to pay to the
Secured Party any sum payable under the Relevant
Agreement, which 1s not remedied within 5 business days
after receipt by the Debtor of notice from the Secured Farty
specifying the fallure and requinng remedy

“law” ncludes common or customary law and any
constitubon, decree, judgment, legislation, order,
ordinance, regulation, by-law, statute, tfreaty or other
legistative measure

“person” Includes an individual, firm, company,
corporation, unincorporated body of persons, orgamsation
or trust, and any governmental agency or authorty, in each
case whether or not having separate legal personality

“PPSA" means the Personal Property Secunties Act
1999

“Receilver” means a recelver, or receiver and manager,
appointed under this agreement

“Relevant Agreement” means an agreement or
arrangement between the Debtor and the Secured Party
(whether or not other persons are parties to 1t) relating to
any Secured Money

“Rights” has the meaning given to that term in the
Operative Provisions, and “Right” means any of them

“Secured Money” has the meaning given to that term in
the Operative Provisions, and a reference to Secured
Money includes any part of it

“Secunties” has the meaning given to that term n the
Operative Provisions, and “Secunty” means any of them

*secunty” includes a guarantee or indemniy, a secunty
interest, any mterest in land of a secunty nature, a lien or a
pledge

*Secunity Trust Deed” means the secunty trust deed
amongst the Debtor, the Secured Party and The New
Zealand Guardian Trust Company Limited, pursuant to
which the Debtor grants first ranking securty over the
Collateral in favour of The New Zealand Guardian Trust
Company Limited

“tax” includes any present or future tax, levy, impost,
duty, rate, deduction or withholding of any nature and
whatever called, imposed or levied by any governmental
agency or authorty, together with any interest, penalty,
charge, fee or other amount imposed or made on, or In
relation to, any of the foregoing

“Transfer” means, in relation to any Secunties or Rights,
a transfer thereof duly signed by the Debtor with the
name of the transferee, date and consideration left blank,
but otherwise, if appropnate, in proper form for
registration by the relevant Issuer

PPSA references In this agreement, the expressions
“account recelvable”, “attach”, “document of title",
“investment secunty”, “proceeds”, "purchase money
securnty interest”, “secunty interest” and “value” have,

13

21
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if and where used, the respective meanings given fo them
under, or in the context of, the PPSA

Miscellaneous Unless the context otherwise requires

{a)  the singular includes the plural and vice versa, one
gender includes other genders, and the expression
“at any time” also means “from time to time”,

(b) references to a “person” include that person’s
successors, permitted assigns, executors and
administrators (as applicable), and

(c) references to any legisiation include statutory
regulations, rules, orders or instruments made
pursuant to that legislation and any amendments,
re-enactments, or replacements

PAYMENT

The Debtor shall pay to the Secured Party the
Secured Money at the tmes, and in the manner,
provided for in the Relevant Agreement.

OBLIGATIONS OF THE DEBTOR
Positive obhgations The Debtor shall

{a}) comply with all laws and all governmental
requirements and orders such that nerther the
Collateral nor the secunty nterest under this
agreement are adversely affected,

(b) promptly notfy the Secured Party of any matler
adversely aflecting a matenal part of the
Collateral, and

(c} promptly deposit with the Secured Party if required
by the Secured Party, a Transfer (or such number
of separate Transfers as the Secured Party may
require} in respect of the Secuntes and any
Rights, and

{d) do all other things which the Secured Party
requires to enable the Secured Party to

() ensure that the Collateral s
subject to an effective security
interest having the pronty
required by the Secured Party
(including, but not Imited to,
providing senal numbers and
other details of any Collateral,
and delivering any Collateral to
the Secured Party where
possession of that Collateral by
a third party may have the resuit
that the interest of that third party
in that Cellateral would take
prionty over the interest of the
Secured Party), and/or

{n) assist the Secured Parly in
exercising any of the Secured
Party's nghts or powers under
this agreement, whether on
enforcement of the secunty
Interest (including, but not imited
to, the sale of any of the
Collateral) or otherwise,
including, but not imited to,
exercistng all nghts of inspection,
requesting all information and
taking all necessary coples,
which the Debtor 1s entitled to



exercise, request or take and, for
the purposes of secton 216 of
the Companies Act, the Debtor
hereby authonses the Secured
Party to inspect those records of
each Issuer which the Debtor 1s
entitled to inspect by vitue of
that Act,

()  comply in all respects with the provisions of the
Secunty Trust Deed

32 Negative obligations The Debtor shall not

(a) change the Debtor's name without first notifying
the Secured Party of the new name not less than
21 days before the change takes effect,

{b) do, or omit to do, or allow to be done or omitted to
be done, anything which couid adversely affect
any Collateral or the secunty interest under this
agreement

RIGHTS OF THE SECURED PARTY

41 Rights The Secured Party may

(@)  do all thungs as the Secured Party thinks desirable
to remedy any default by the Debior or otherwise
protect the Collateral or the secunty interest under
this agreement,

(h) notify ASB Bank of the secunty interest under this
agreement,

{c) after a Default has occurred
0] cause itself to be registered as the holder

of any Secuntes, or as the person entitied
to any Rights, in order to hoid those
Securties or Rights as the secured party
under this agreement,
() complete and present any Transfer to the
relevant issuer for registration, and
(m)  complete n favour of any person (including
the Secured Party itself) who 1s purchasing
the Secuntes under the powers given to
the Secured Party by this agreement or by
law, any Transfer or any other document
signed by or on behalf of the Debtor, and
{d) retan and hold all documents of titie and
Transfers deposited with the Secured Party
in accordance with thus agreement until the
Secured Party delivers to the Debtor a final
release of this agreement
42 No prejudice The Secured Party’s nghts under this
agreement are without prejudice, and in addiion, to any
other nght to which the Secured Party 1s at any time
enttied (whether under this agreement or by law, contract
or otherwise), and may be exercised by the Secured Party
without prior notice to the Debtor or any other person
5 REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES
51 The Debfor represents and warrants (at the date of this
agreement, and on the first day of each month by
reference to the facts and circumstances existing on that
day) that

(a)  (f the Debtor is other than a natural person) the
Debtor has the power, and has taken all necessary
action to authonse the Debtor, to enter into, and
comply with its obligations under, this agreement,
and

{b) this agreement constitutes legal, valid and binding
obligations of the Debtor
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DEFAULT

Powers on enforcement At any time after a Default
occurs, the Secured Party may

(@ declare the Secured Money to be due and
payable, whereupon 1t shail become immediately
due and payable,

(b)  (whether or not a Recewer has been appointed)
exarcise any of the powers of a Receiver, or which
a person would have If appomted as a Receiver
under this agreement, and

(c) pay any expenses Incurred in the exercise of any
of such powers out of the revenue from, or
proceeds of realisation of, the Collateral

RECEIVER

Appointment of Receiver The Secured Party may
(whether or not the Secured Party has exercised any
other power)

(a)  atanytme after a Default occurs, or
(b) if the Debtor requests,

appoint any person or persons to be a Receiver of all or
any of the Collateral The Secured Party may remove
any Recever and may appoint a new Recetver In place of
any Recelver who has been removed, retired or died

Powers of Receiver In addmon to, and without limiting
or affecting, any other powers and authonties conferred
on a Receiver (whether under the Recetwverships Act 1983
or at law or otherwise), a Receiver has the power to do all
things n relaton to the Collateral and the Debtor's
business as if the Recewver had absolute ownershup of the
Collateral and carmed on the Debtor's business for the
Receiver's own benefit

PROTECTION OF SECURED PARTY, RECEIVER AND
OTHER PERSONS

Accountability If the Secured Party or a Recewver sells
any Collateral (whether pursuant to this agreement or
otherwise), the Secured Party or Receiver shall be
accountable only for any purchase money which that
person actually receives

No hability The Secured Party or a Receiver shall not
he hable to account, or for any loss, as morigagee In
possession and may at any time give up possession of
any Collateral Nerther the Secured Party nor a Receiver
shall be hable for any losses which may occur In, or as a
result of, the exercise, purported exercise or non-exercise
of any of their nghts, powers or remedies

Indemmity The Secured Party and a Receiver shall each
be indemnified cut of revenue from, or proceeds of sale
of, the Collateral against losses, expenses and liabilities
resulting from the exercise of any nghts or powers
(including, but not hmited to, losses, expenses and
liabilities resulting from a mistake or error of jJudgment)

Protection of persons dealing with the Secured Party
or Receiver No person dealing with the Secured Party

or any Receiver, or with any person acting on behalf of
any of them, shall

(a) enqure whether any power which the Secured
Party, Receiver, or person acting on their behalf,
as the case may be, 15 purporting to exercise have
become exercisable (whether by a Default
occurnng, the proper appomntment of a Recewver,
or ctherwise), or otherwise as to any matler in
connection with the exercise of any such power, or

(b)  see to the application of any amount paid to the
Secured Party, Receiver, or person acting on therr
behalf, as the case may be



10.
101

11
111

12
121

122

13

131

1572548 v2 AKL

INDEMNITY

The Debtor shall indemnify the Secured Party and any
Receiver

(a) for ail costs, losses and other iabilites incurred or
sustained by the Secured Party or the Receiver In
relation to this agreement and in exercising any
nght or recovenng any Secured Money, and

(b) aganst any claim by any person relating to the
Collateral, or the exercise by the Secured Party or
the Recewer of any nght or power under this
agreement

ATTORNEY

The Debtor revocably appoints the Secured Party, every
officer of the Secured Party and every Recewer,
indmvidually, to be the Debtor's attomney (*Attorney”) with
full power to

(a) (at the Debtor's expense} do anything which the
Debtor agrees 1o do under this agreement and
anything which, in the Attomey's opinion, 18
desirable to protect the Secured Party's interests
under this agreement (even If the Attorney has a
conflict of duty m doing so, or has a direct or
personal interest 1n the means or result of the
exercise of any of the Attorney’s powers), and

(b) delegate the Attorney’s powers to any person for
any penod and to revoke a delegation,

and the Debtor ratfies anything done by the Attorney or
any delegate in accordance with this clause

NOTICES

Each notice to be given by either party to this agreement
to the other may be given in accordance with sections
185 to 189 of the PPSA

COSTS

Costs The Debtor shall pay all the Secured Party's
costs, losses and other habistes (ncluding legal
expenses on a full ndemnity bas:s} incurred or sustaned
by the Secured Party in connection with

(a) the negotiation, preparation, signing,
administration and release of this agreement,

(b) the exercise, enforcement or preservation, or
attempted exercise, enforcement or preservabion,
of any nght under this agreement, or in suing for or
recovering any Secured Money, and

(c) the granting of any waiver or consent under, or the
gving of any varnaton or release of, this
agreement,

and without hmiting any of the above the Secured Party
may charge the Debtor fees and/or costs for compliance
with a demand given under section 162 of the PPSA,
whether any such demand s given by the Debtor or any
other person

Stamp duty and taxes The Debtor shall pay all stamp,
documentary, transaction, registration and similar taxes (if
any), which may be payable in connection with the
signing, delivery, registration, performance, exercise of
any nght under, or enforcement or vanation of, this
agreement

RELEASE,
REDEMPTION

Release The Secured Parly shall not be obliged to sign
a release of this agreement, or to release any Collateral
from this agreement, unless the Secured Party 1s satisfied
that

REINSTATEMENT AND DEBTOR’S
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(8) the Secured Party has recewved all of the Secured
Money, and

(b) no payment received, or to be recewed, by the
Secured Party may be avoided, or required to be
repaid by the Secured Party, whether under any
law relating to insolvency or otherwise

Remnstatement |f any payment received or recovered by
the Secured Party, a Receiver, or any other person on
behalf of the Secured Party 1s or may be avoided,
whether by law or otherwise, then (notwithstanding that
the Secured Party may have signed a release pursuant to
clause 13 1)

(a) such payment shall be deemed not to have
affected or discharged the lability of the Debtor
under this agreement or any other securty gwven
by the Debtor in favour of the Secured Party and
the Secured Party and the Debtor shall, to the
maximum extent permitted by law, be restored to
the position in which each would have been if such
payment had not been received or recovered, and

{b) the Secured Party shall be entitled to exercise all
nghts which the Secured Party would have been
entitled to exercise f such payment had not been
recelved or recovered

Redemption At any time after a Default, but before the
Secured Party sells any Collateral, or 1s deemed to have
taken any Collateral in satsfaction of the Debtor's
obligations, the Debtor may (unless the Debtor has
otherwise agreed n writing after the Default) redeem the
Coliateral by tendenng to the Secured Party, 1n cleared
funds, an amount certified by the Secured Party as being
equal to all the Secured Money as at the date such
amount 1s tendered

PPSA RIGHTS

No consent or subordination
agreement shall be construed as

(a) an agreement to subordinate the securnty interest
under this agreement in favour of any person, or

(b} a consent by the Secured Party to any other
secunty interest attaching to, or any other secunty
subsisting over, any Collateral

Nothing tn this

Verification statement The Debtor waives the right to
receive a copy of the venfication statement confirming
registration of a financing statement or financing change
statement relating to the secunty inferest under this
agreement

Contracting out of PPSA rights The Debtor

(a) agrees that if, at any relevant time, the Secured
Party does not at that tme have pnonty over all
other secured parties In respect of any Collateral,
then the Debtor and the Secured Party will, for
purposes of section 109(1) of the PPSA, be
deemed, In accordance with the entitlement to do
so under section 107{1) of the PPSA, to have
contracted out of that section but specifically on
the basis that, as between them and for purposes
of this agreement and the operaton and
application of the PPSA, that section 109(1) {but
amended only by the deletion of the words “with
priority over all other secured parhies”) s reinstated
and contracted back into,

(b)  agrees that nothing in sechons 114(1)(a), 133 and
134 of the PPSA shall apply to this agreement, or
the secunty under this agreement, and

(c}y wawves the Debtor's nght to do any of the
following



1)) object to the Secured Party's proposal to
retain any Collateral under section 121 of
the PPSA,

{n (without affecting clause 19 3) redeem any
Collateral under section 132 of the PPSA

15 MISCELLANEOQUS

151 Other securittes This agreement 1s collateral to each
other secunty (whenever executed or gwen) which 1s at
any time held by the Secured Party in respect of any
Secured Money, and nothing in this agreement shall
prejudice any other secunty at any time held by the
Secured Party The Secured Party may exercise any of
the Secured Party's nghts under this agreement and any
such other secunity separately or concurrently

152 Obligations independent Each of the obligations of the
Debtor under clauses 8 3 and sechons 9 and 12 shall
constitute a continuing obligation, separate and
mdependent from the Debtor's other obligations under
this agreement and shali survive payment of the Secured
Money and release of this agreement It shall not be
necessary for the Secured Party to incur any expense or
make any payment before enforcing any of the Secured
Party's nghts in respect of any obligation of the Debtor
under this agreement

153 No waiver No delay in acting, or failure to act, by the
Secured Party 1s a waiver of any of the Secured Party’s
nghts, and the Secured Party shall not be hable to any
person for any such delay or fatlure

154 No merger or marshalling The Secured Party’s nght to
payment of any Secured Money (including under any
negotiable instrument or other agreement) shall not
merge in the Debtor's obigation to pay that Secured
Money under this agreement The Secured Party has no
duty to marshal in favour of the Debtor or any other
person

155 Partial invahdity An invalid provision of this agreement
shall not affect the enforceabiity of the remarng
provisions of this agreement

156 Certificates A certificate of the Secured Party as to any
amount or fact which might reasonably be expected to be
within the Secured Party’s knowledge shall be pnrma facie
evidence of that amount or fact

157 Governing law New Zealand law governs this agreement,
and the parties submit to the non-exclusive junsdiction of
the courts of New Zealand
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